Public Document Pack
BELFAST CITY COUNCIL

SUMMONS TO ATTEND THE MONTHLY MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

TO:
THE LORD MAYOR, ALDERMEN AND THE COUNCILLORS OF BELFAST
CITY COUNCIL
Notice is hereby given that the monthly meeting of the Council will be held in a
hybrid format, both in the Council Chamber and online via Microsoft Teams, on Monday,
4th April, 2022 at 6.00 pm, for the transaction of the following business:

1.

Summons

2.

Apologies

3.

Declarations of Interest

4.

Minutes of the Council Meetings (Pages 1 - 16)

5.

Official Announcements

6.

Minutes of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee (Pages 17 - 80)

7.

Minutes of the People and Communities Committee (Pages 81 - 102)

8.

Minutes of the City Growth and Regeneration Committee (Pages 103 - 126)

9.

Minutes of the Licensing Committee (Pages 127 - 144)

10. Minutes of the Planning Committee (Pages 145 - 186)
11. Minutes of the Climate and City Resilience Committee (Pages 187 - 196)
12. Minutes of the Standards and Business Committee (Pages 197 - 198)
13. Motions to be debated by the Council
a)

University Sector - Industrial Dispute (Pages 199 - 200)

b)

City of Sanctuary (Pages 201 - 202)

The Members of Belfast City Council are hereby summoned to attend.

Chief Executive

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Council
MEETING OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL
Held remotely, via Microsoft Teams, on
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022 at 6.00 p.m., pursuant to notice.
Members present: The Deputy Lord Mayor, (Alderman Haire)
(Chairperson); and The High Sheriff, (Councillor Hussey);
and
Aldermen Dorrian, Kingston, McCoubrey,
Rodgers and Sandford; and
Councillors Baker,
Black, Bradley, Brooks, Bunting, Canavan, Carson,
Cobain, Matt Collins, Michael Collins, Corr, de Faoite,
Donnelly, Flynn, Garrett, Gormley, Groogan, Hanvey,
Howard, Hutchinson, M. Kelly, T. Kelly, Kyle, Long,
Lyons, Magee, Maskey, McAllister, McAteer,
McCabe, McCann, McCullough, McCusker,
McKeown, McLaughlin, McReynolds, Mulholland,
Murphy, Newton, O’Hara, Pankhurst, Spratt, Verner
and Walsh.
Summons
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted the summons convening the meeting.
Apologies
Apologies for inability to attend were reported for The Right Honourable the Lord
Mayor (Councillor Nicholl), Alderman Copeland, and Councillors Beattie, Ferguson,
Heading, Smyth and Whyte.
Declarations of Interest
Councillor Donnelly declared an interest in relation to the Motion under the
heading “Mountainview Centre”, in that he and his employer had been involved in direct
conversations regarding the centre and he left the meeting whilst the matter was under
consideration.
Councillor McCabe declared an interest in relation to the item “Requests for the
Use of Parks for 2022 Events” under the People and Communities Committee minutes,
in that she was an employee of Féile an Phobail, and if the issue arose that she would
leave and not take part in the discussion or vote.
Councillor Murphy declared an interest in relation to the item “Belfast Citywide
Tribunal Service, under the People and Communities Committee minutes, in that he was
a Board Member of Ligoniel Improvement Association, and if the issue arose that he
would leave and not take part in the discussion or vote.

A927

Page 1

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

Clarification
Councillor de Faoite advised that the minutes of the proceedings of the Special
Council meeting of 7th February omitted that, he had reported an apology for inability to
attend. The Council agreed that the minutes be varied accordingly.

Minutes of the Council Meeting
Moved by the Deputy Lord Mayor (Alderman Haire),
Seconded by Councillor Pankhurst and
Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the Monthly meeting
of the Council of 1st and the Special meeting of 7th February be taken as
read and signed as correct.
Official Announcements
Condolences
Several Members paid tribute to former Alderman, Christopher Stalford, following
his sudden death, and expressed sympathy and condolences to his family for their tragic
loss.
Platinum Jubilee
Alderman Kingston highlighted that the Queen would be celebrating her platinum
jubilee as the longest serving British monarch and he requested that the Office of the Lord
Mayor would write to the Queen to offer congratulations. The Deputy Lord Mayor
confirmed that he would liaise with the Lord Mayor to issue the correspondence.
Ukraine
A number of Members condemned the Russian invasion of Ukraine and
expressed concern and sympathy with the Ukrainian people. The Deputy Lord Mayor
stated that a press statement would be released, on behalf of the Council, to encourage
the people of Belfast and Northern Ireland to give generously to relief efforts that had
been organised by the local community.

Changes to Committees and Outside Bodies
The Deputy Chief Executive reported that notification had been received from Sinn
Fein of the following changes in membership:
 Councillor Black to replace former Councillor Magennis on
the West Belfast Partnership Board; and

A928

Page 2

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

 Councillor McCann to replace former Councillor Magennis
on the National Association of Councillors and Councillor
Carson on the Active Belfast Board Ltd.
The Council noted the changes.
Minutes of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Moved by Councillor Groogan,
Seconded by Councillor Lyons,
That the minutes of the proceedings of the Strategic Policy and
Resources Committee of 18th February, 2022, omitting matters in respect
of which the Council has delegated its powers to the Committee, be
approved and adopted.

Bonfire Management
Amendment
Moved by Councillor McLoughlin,
Seconded by Councillor Magee,
That the matter would be placed on the agenda for the March meeting of the
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee, in order that a progress update would be
provided to the Members.
The amendment was put to the Council and passed.
Update on Draft Amenity Bye Laws
Amendment
Moved by Councillor Michael Collins,
Seconded by Councillor Matt Collins,
That the matter be referred back to the Strategic Policy and Resources
Committee for further consideration.
On a recorded vote, sixteen Members voted for the amendment, and thirtytwo against, and it was declared lost.
For 16

Against 32

The Deputy Lord Mayor, (Alderman
Haire); and

Alderman Rodgers and;
Councillors
Baker,
Black,
Bradley, Canavan, Carson, Corr,

A929

Page 3

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

The High Sheriff (Councillor
Hussey); and
Aldermen Kingston, McCoubrey,
and Sandford; and
Councillors,
Brooks,
Bunting,
Cobain, Matt Collins, Michael
Collins, T. Kelly, McCullough,
Newton, Pankhurst, Spratt and
Verner

de Faoite, Donnelly, Flynn,
Garrett, Gormley, Groogan,
Hanvey, Howard, Hutchinson,
M. Kelly, Kyle, Long, Magee,
Maskey, McAllister, McAteer,
McCabe, McCann, McKeown
McLaughlin,
McReynolds,
Mulholland, Murphy, O’Hara,
and Walsh.

Bloody Friday - 50th Anniversary Commemoration
Amendment
Moved by Councillor McLaughlin,
Seconded by Councillor McCabe,
That the decision of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
under the heading “Bloody Friday – 50th Anniversary Commemoration” be
amended as follows:
“This Council remembers with great sadness the horror of the events of
21st July 1972, which became known as ‘Bloody Friday’, when the
Provisional IRA exploded over 20 bombs across this City within a period
of 80 minutes, resulting in the deaths of 9 people and physical injuries to
over 130 others. The Council commits to providing its citizens with the
opportunity to engage in a programme of commemoration but also
education, designed to build positive relationships for the future.
On this 50th anniversary year, the Council will reach out to survivors and
family members of those killed or injured on ‘Bloody Friday’ through
organisations such as the South East Fermanagh Foundation which have
supported them, to organise acts of solemn remembrance for all victims
and survivors of this atrocity, and to organise other suitable events which
will capture our rejection of terrorism in this City, both during ‘The Troubles’
and in the future.
In addition, the Party Leaders will discuss the potential for holding a
separate day of reflection to remember all of the victims of the Troubles in
Belfast.”
This Council recognises the hurt and trauma of all victims, families and
survivors from the past conflict here in the City of Belfast. The Council
notes that throughout the following years and decades there will be
significant anniversaries for citizens of this City regarding the conflict on
this part of the island.

A930

Page 4

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

The Council reiterates its commitment to doing everything in its power to
ensure that violence is a thing of the past.
Belfast City Council will ensure that all those who were affected by our
recent past are recognised equally.
That is why the Council will dedicate one day a year in which we remember
the past and create a space for victims and survivors of all communities to
commemorate and remember the past, while encouraging reconciliation
between our communities.
Lastly, the Council will seek to erect a memorial for all those impacted by
our past and will be dedicated to all victims, survivors, and families.”
The amendment proposed by Councillor McLaughlin, therefore read:
“This Council remembers with great sadness the horror of the events
of 21st July 1972, which became known as ‘Bloody Friday’, when the
Provisional IRA exploded over 20 bombs across this City within a
period of 80 minutes, resulting in the deaths of 9 people and physical
injuries to over 130 others. The Council commits to providing its
citizens with the opportunity to engage in a programme of
commemoration but also education, designed to build positive
relationships for the future.
On this 50th anniversary year, the Council will reach out to survivors
and family members of those killed or injured on ‘Bloody Friday’
through organisations such as the South East Fermanagh
Foundation which have supported them, to organise acts of solemn
remembrance for all victims and survivors of this atrocity, and to
organise other suitable events which will capture our rejection of
terrorism in this City, both during ‘The Troubles’ and in the future.
This Council recognises the hurt and trauma of all victims, families
and survivors from the past conflict here in the City of Belfast. The
Council notes that throughout the following years and decades there
will be significant anniversaries for citizens of this City regarding the
conflict on this part of the island.
The Council reiterates its commitment to doing everything in its
power to ensure that violence is a thing of the past.
Belfast City Council will ensure that all those who were affected by
our recent past are recognised equally.
That is why the Council will dedicate one day a year in which we
remember the past and create a space for victims and survivors of all

A931

Page 5

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

communities to commemorate and remember the past, while
encouraging reconciliation between our communities.
Lastly, the Council will seek to erect a memorial for all those
impacted by our past and will be dedicated to all victims, survivors,
and families.”
On a vote, twenty-three Members voted for the amendment and twenty-seven
against, and it was declared lost.
Adoption of Minutes
The minutes of the proceedings of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
of 18th February were thereupon approved and adopted, subject to the foregoing
amendment.

Minutes of the People and Communities Committee
Moved by Councillor Cobain,
Seconded by Councillor Garrett,
Resolved – That the minutes of the proceedings of the People and
Communities Committee of 8th February, be approved and adopted.

Minutes of the City Growth and Regeneration Committee
Moved by Councillor Murphy,
Seconded by Councillor Dorrian,
Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the City Growth and
Regeneration Committee of 9th February be approved and adopted.
Minutes of the Licensing Committee
Moved by Councillor Donnelly,
Seconded by Councillor McAteer,
That the minutes of the proceedings of the Licensing Committee of
16th February, omitting matters in respect of which the Council has
delegated its powers to the Committee, be approved and adopted.

A932

Page 6

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

Request to Create a New Film Classification Rating
Amendment
Moved by Councillor Carson,
Seconded by Councillor McCabe,
That, the Council agrees to depart from Standard Licence Condition 2(b) which
stated that, ‘No persons under the age of fifteen years shall be admitted to any Exhibition
when a ‘15’ film is in the programme’ and to permit cinema operators to impose a rating
of ‘15A’ for the Belfast City Council area in respect of ‘The Batman’ film, which would
allow patrons under the age of 15 entrance to view the film, when accompanied by an
adult.
The amendment was put to the Council and passed.
Adoption of Minutes
The minutes of the proceedings of the Licensing Committee of 16th February,
were thereupon approved and adopted, subject to the foregoing amendment

Minutes of the Planning Committee
Moved by Councillor Carson,
Seconded by Councillor Brooks,
Resolved - That the minutes of the proceedings of the Planning
Committee of 15th February, omitting matters in respect of which the
Council has delegated its powers to the Committee, be approved and
adopted.
Minutes of the Belfast Waterfront and
Ulster Hall Ltd Shareholders Committee
Moved by Councillor McCabe,
Seconded by Councillor Bradley,
Resolved - That the Minutes of the proceedings of the Belfast
Waterfront and Ulster hall Shareholders’ Committee of 21st February be
approved and adopted.

Minutes of the Standards and Business Committee
Moved by Councillor McCullough,
Seconded by Councillor Pankhurst,

A933

Page 7

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

Resolved - That the Minutes of the proceedings of the Standards and
Business Committee of 22nd February, 2022, omitting matters in respect
of which the Council has delegated its powers to the Committee, be
approved and adopted.
Motions to be debated by the Council
The Samaritans
In accordance with notice on the agenda, Councillor Kyle proposed:
“This Council commends and recognises the extraordinary efforts of the
Samaritans during the period of Covid 19 and beyond. The ability of the
volunteers to react quickly and effectively during the pandemic and to
continue to offer support to anyone who needs a listening ear day or night,
365 days a year is to be commended.
The motion was seconded by Councillor Lyons.
The motion was put to the meeting and passed.
Mountainview Centre
(Councillor Donnelly, who had declared an interest in this item, left the meeting for the
duration)
In accordance with notice on the agenda, Councillor Matt Collins proposed:
“This Council notes with concern that the childcare service at
Mountainview Centre in West Belfast is due to close in the coming weeks.
This follows a recent announcement by the Ardmonagh Family Centre,
also based on the Upper Springfield Road, that it too, is reluctantly having
to terminate its services.
The Council recognises the vital resource that the Mountainview Centre
has been to a large number of families over many years; by providing after
schools activities and childcare services at an affordable rate.
The Council believes the closure of this service will have a negative impact
on families in West Belfast.
This Council also expresses concern that several staff will face
redundancy as a result of this closure.
Given the recent spiralling cost of living, and the inability for working class
families to access affordable childcare, it is imperative that this centre

A934

Page 8

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

remains open to provide after schools services and creche facilities at an
affordable rate for parents.
The Council resolves to convene an urgent cross-party meeting, reaching
out to both the Education and Communities Ministers and their officials, as
well as Council officers and staff of the Mountainview Centre, in order to
explore the possibility of keeping the doors of this invaluable service open.”
The motion was seconded by Councillor Michael Collins
At the request of Councillor Corr, the proposer agreed to insert the following
paragraph at the end of his motion:
"Furthermore, we also ask that any meeting with the education minister
discusses the devastating cuts that are being made to Glor na Mona in the
same community of the Upper Springfield where a 98% cut is being made
to the budget Glor na Mona receive from the EA".
At the request of Councillor Pankhurst, the proposer agreed to insert that, the
urgent cross-party meeting would include the Education Authority and the Department for
Finance.
The motion, as amended, therefore read:
“This Council notes with concern that the childcare service at
Mountainview Centre in West Belfast is due to close in the coming weeks.
This follows a recent announcement by the Ardmonagh Family Centre,
also based on the Upper Springfield Road, that it too, is reluctantly having
to terminate its services.
The Council recognises the vital resource that the Mountainview Centre
has been to a large number of families over many years; by providing after
schools activities and childcare services at an affordable rate.
The Council believes the closure of this service will have a negative impact
on families in West Belfast.
This Council also expresses concern that several staff will face
redundancy as a result of this closure.
Given the recent spiralling cost of living, and the inability for working class
families to access affordable childcare, it is imperative that this centre
remains open to provide after schools services and creche facilities at an
affordable rate for parents.
The Council resolves to convene an urgent cross-party meeting, reaching
out to the Education, Finance and Communities Ministers and their
officials, as well as the Education Authority, Council officers and staff of

A935

Page 9

Meeting of Council,
Tuesday, 1st March, 2022

the Mountainview Centre, in order to explore the possibility of keeping the
doors of this invaluable service open.
"Furthermore, we also ask that any meeting with the Education Minister
discusses the devastating cuts that are being made to Glor na Mona in the
same community of the Upper Springfield where a 98% cut is being made
to the budget Glor na Mona receive from the EA".
The motion, as amended, standing in the name of Councillor Matt
Collins, was put the meeting and passed.

Lord Mayor
Chairperson

A936

Page 10

Council
SPECIAL MEETING OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL
Held in the City Hall and also remotely, via Microsoft Teams, on
Monday, 14th March, 2022 at 4.00 p.m., pursuant to notice.
Members present:

The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor;
(Councillor Nicholl) (Chairperson);
The Deputy Lord Mayor, (Alderman Haire);
The High Sheriff (Councillor Hussey);
Aldermen Dorrian, Kingston, Rodgers and
Sandford; and Councillors Baker, Beattie,
Black, Bradley, Brooks, Bunting, Canavan,
Carson, Cobain, Matt Collins, Michael Collins,
Corr, de Faoite, Donnelly, Ferguson, Garrett,
Gormley, Groogan, Hanvey, Heading, Howard,
Hutchinson, M. Kelly, T. Kelly, Kyle, Lyons,
Magee, Maskey, McAllister, McAteer,
McCabe, McCann, McCullough, McKeown,
McLaughlin, McMullan, Mulholland, Murphy,
Newton, O’Hara, Smyth, Spratt, Verner and Walsh.
Summons

The Divisional Solicitor submitted the summons convening the meeting.
Apologies
Apologies for inability to attend were reported for Aldermen Copeland and
McCoubrey and Councillors Flynn, Long, McDonough-Brown, McReynolds, Pankhurst
and Whyte.
Declarations of Interest
No declarations of interest were reported.
Motion
Cost of Living
In accordance with the notice on the agenda, Councillor Garrett proposed:
“This Council recognises with deep concern the cost-of-living crisis that is
impacting hundreds of thousands of families across our society, and
the rise in home energy and electricity costs, which has placed a severe
burden on already struggling households and businesses across our city.
The collapse of the Executive caused by the resignation of DUP First
Minister Paul Givan is preventing a budget, or the allocation of £300m
available from Treasury from being agreed and is hampering Ministers from
using their full spending power to give people relief who rely and depend
upon it.

A937

Page 11

Special Meeting of Council,
Monday, 14th March, 2022

This Council calls for the immediate restoration of the Executive in order to
allocate and agree spending to support workers and families.
Furthermore, this Council calls upon the Westminster Government to take
action, where local Ministers cannot, by scrapping VAT on domestic
energy bills and cutting duty on home heating oil, petrol and diesel, for the
duration of the energy crisis; introducing a windfall tax on energy
generators and redirect money towards supporting families; reverse the
planned increase in National Insurance Contributions; and halt the planned
change in red diesel entitlement.”
The motion was seconded by Councillor McLaughlin.
The proposer advised the Council that he wished to amend the wording of the
proposal to allow for the following two additions. After the word “families” in the third
paragraph insert the following sentence:
“(This would include requesting an expansion of the £200 home energy
scheme to include others considered particularly vulnerable at this time).”
To include and additional final paragraph, as follows:
“And finally, this Council agrees to present the Members with further
proposal including additional resources at the earliest opportunity to create
a citywide hardship fund to support those most at need at this time.”
The Council agreed to the updated wording for the proposal and the proposer also
acceded to a request from Councillor Heading to add the following additional wording after
the word “families” in the third paragraph “or the introduction of emergency legislation to
release the £300 million.”
The proposal, as amended, therefore reads:
“This Council recognises with deep concern the cost-of-living crisis that is
impacting hundreds of thousands of families across our society, and
the rise in home energy and electricity costs, which has placed a severe
burden on already struggling households and businesses across our city.
The collapse of the Executive caused by the resignation of DUP First
Minister Paul Givan is preventing a budget, or the allocation of £300m
available from Treasury from being agreed and is hampering Ministers from
using their full spending power to give people relief who rely and depend
upon it.
This Council calls for the immediate restoration of the Executive in order to
allocate and agree spending to support workers and families or the
introduction of emergency legislation to release the £300 million. (This
would include requesting an expansion of the £200 home energy scheme
to include others considered particularly vulnerable at this time).

A938

Page 12

Special Meeting of Council,
Monday, 14th March, 2022

Furthermore, this Council calls upon the Westminster Government to take
action, where local Ministers cannot, by scrapping VAT on domestic
energy bills and cutting duty on home heating oil, petrol and diesel, for the
duration of the energy crisis; introducing a windfall tax on energy
generators and redirect money towards supporting families; reverse the
planned increase in National Insurance Contributions; and halt the planned
change in red diesel entitlement.
And finally, this Council agrees to present the Members with further
proposal including additional resources at the earliest opportunity to create
a citywide hardship fund to support those most at need at this time.”
Amendment
Moved by Councillor Ferguson,
Seconded by Councillor Collins,
That the motion standing in the name of Councillor Garrett and
seconded by Councillor McLaughlin be amended to read as follows:
“This Council recognises with deep concern the cost-of-living crisis that is
impacting hundreds of thousands of families across our society, and the
rise in home energy and electricity costs, which has placed a severe burden
on already struggling households and businesses across our city.
The collapse of the Executive caused by the resignation of DUP First
Minister Paul Givan is preventing a budget, or the allocation of £300m
available from Treasury from being agreed and is hampering Ministers from
using their full spending power to give people relief who rely and depend
upon it.
The Council condemns the failure of the Stormont Executive to declare a
Hardship Emergency months ago and to put in place financial assistance
in line with the scale of the cost-of-living crisis.
Accordingly, the Council demands that any restoration of the Executive to
deal with this crisis must be based on agreeing to allocate and agree
spending to support workers and families; to implement above inflation pay
raises across the public sector; raise the minimum wage to a living wage;
expand the benefits system, by scrapping the benefit cap and restoring the
Universal Credit £20-a-week uplift; expand the existing Energy Payment
Support Scheme; implement a rent freeze and rent reductions in the private
sector; and adopt the full recommendations of the Anti-Poverty Strategy
Expert Advisory Panel report from December 2020.
Furthermore, this Council calls upon the Westminster Government to take
action, where local Ministers cannot, by:

A939

Page 13

Special Meeting of Council,
Monday, 14th March, 2022
●

●
●
●
●

scrapping VAT on domestic energy bills, cutting duty on home heating
oil, petrol and diesel, and introducing price caps to ensure customers
benefit, rather than fuel companies, for the duration of the energy crisis;
introducing a windfall tax on energy generators and redirect money
towards supporting families;
reversing the planned increase in National Insurance Contributions;
halting the planned change in red diesel entitlement;
and implement a permanent increase on corporation tax to ensure
those who profited from the pandemic assist with getting those in need
through this crisis.”

The Council agreed to vote on the amended motion, on a recorded vote, sixteen
Members voted for the amendment, and thirty-two against, and it was declared lost.
For 16

Against 32

The Lord Mayor, (Councillor
Nicholl); and
Councillors Matt Collins, Michael
Collins, de Faoite, Ferguson,
Groogan, Hanvey, Heading, M.
Kelly, Lyons, McAllister, McKeown,
McMullan, Mulholland, O’Hara and
Smyth.

The Deputy Lord Mayor,
(Alderman Haire);
The High Sheriff (Councillor
Hussey); and
Aldermen Kingston, Rodgers
and Sandford; and
Councillors
Baker,
Beattie,
Black,
Brooks,
Bunting,
Canavan, Carson, Cobain, Corr,
Donnelly, Garrett, Gormley,
Howard, Hutchinson, T. Kelly,
Kyle,
Maskey,
McAteer,
McCabe, McCann, McCullough,
McLaughlin, Murphy, Newton,
Spratt, Verner and Walsh.

The Motion standing in the name of Councillor Garrett, as altered by the proposer
and seconder, was thereupon put to the Council as the substantive motion, on a recorded
vote, thirty-three Members voted for the amendment, and seventeen against, and it was
declared passed.
For 33

Against 17

The Lord Mayor, (Councillor
Nicholl); and
Councillors Baker, Beattie, Black,
Canavan, Carson, Matt Collins,
Michael Collins, Corr, de Faoite,
Donnelly,
Ferguson,
Garrett,
Gormley,
Groogan,
Hanvey,
Heading, M. Kelly, Lyons, Magee,
Maskey,
McAllister,
McAteer,

The Deputy Lord Mayor,
(Alderman Haire);
The High Sheriff (Councillor
Hussey); and
Aldermen Dorrian, Kingston,
Rodgers and Sandford; and
Councillors Brooks, Bunting,
Cobain, Howard, Hutchinson, T.

A940

Page 14

Special Meeting of Council,
Monday, 14th March, 2022

McCabe, McCann, McKeown,
McLaughlin, McMullan, Mulholland,
Murphy, O’Hara, Smyth and Walsh.

Kelly,
Kyle,
McCullough,
Newton, Spratt and Verner.

Lord Mayor
Chairperson

A941

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Monday, 28th March, 2022

MEETING OF THE STRATEGIC
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND
REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS
Members present: Councillor Groogan (Chairperson);
Aldermen Dorrian, Haire, Kingston and Sandford; and
Councillors Beattie, Black, Bunting, Carson, Garrett,
Heading, Long, Lyons, McDonough-Brown, McLaughlin,
McReynolds, Murphy, Pankhurst and Walsh.
In attendance:

Mr. J. Walsh, Chief Executive;
Mr. R. Cregan, Deputy Chief Executive and Director
of Finance and Resources;
Mr. R. Crozier, Director of Neighbourhood Services;
Ms. S. Grimes, Director of Physical Programmes;
Mr. J. Tully, Director of City and Organisational
Strategy;
Mr. J. Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer; and
Mr. H. Downey, Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies
An apology for inability to attend was reported on behalf of Councillor McAllister.
Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of 18th February were taken as read and signed as
correct. It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its
meeting on 1st March, subject to the omission of those matters in respect of which the
Council had delegated its powers to the Committee.
Declarations of Interest
Councillor Murphy declared an interest in respect of agenda item 3a - Belfast
Citywide Tribunal Service, on the basis that he was on the Board of the Ligoniel
Improvement Association, which managed the service on behalf of the citywide advice
consortium and left the meeting whilst the matter was being discussed.
Restricted Items
The information contained in the reports associated with the following
fourteen items is restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.

B3957

Page 17

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of the
Press and public from the meeting during discussion of the following items
as, due to the nature of the items, there would be a disclosure of exempt
information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.
Motion - Pay Rise for Leisure Workers
The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 21st January, it had
considered a motion, which had been proposed by Councillor Ferguson, calling upon the
Council to support a joint Trades Union pay claim, seeking a 11.75% increase for members
on Belfast City Council terms and conditions and a 15.75% increase for those on
Castlereagh Borough Council terms and conditions.
The Committee had agreed that a meeting be held initially between GLL
representatives and Elected Members, with a report on the key issues discussed to be
submitted to a future meeting.
The Chief Executive reported that GLL representatives had, on 24th February, met
with Party Leaders, during which GLL’s assessment of the request for a pay rise, including
the number of staff affected and the estimated cost, had been set out. GLL had provided
details around the timeline and process for engagement on the annual pay review and, in
terms of next steps, had confirmed that meetings would be held with individual staff, staff
groupings and Trades Unions. The Council would, over the next three months, receive an
update on negotiations, details of which would then be presented to the Committee.
The Committee noted the information which had been provided.
Bonfire and Cultural Expression
Programme - Approach for 2022
The Director of Neighbourhood Services submitted for the Committee’s
consideration a report seeking approval on three proposed elements to the overall
approach to the Bonfires and Cultural Expression Programme for 2022.
After discussion, the Committee agreed as follows:
i.

Beacons
That the fourteen groups which had used a beacon in 2019 and
2021 be invited to submit an expression of interest to avail of a
beacon to replace a traditional bonfire in July, 2022, subject to
availability and site suitability;

ii.

Funding for Community Events
That potential participants on the Bonfire and Cultural Expression
Programme Grants scheme for community festival events be
directed to apply for funding for these events/activities over the

B3958

Page 18

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

summer to the generic Micro Grant Funding 2022/23 and that this
approach be adopted for subsequent years, going forward; and
iii.

Positive Cultural Expression Programme
That up to £30,000, previously delivered through the Bonfire and
Cultural Expression Programme for community events, be aligned
with the new co-design framework which aimed to create a more
rounded, sustainable and grass roots programme to support
leadership and capacity building in arts, culture and heritage work
in the broad Unionist community, as a joint approach from the
Good Relations and the Tourism, Culture, Heritage and Arts Units
via the ‘City Imagining Strategy’.

Update on Organisational Reviews
and Change Programme
The Committee noted the contents of a report providing a quarterly update on the
indicative timescales and prioritised work programme associated with the Organisational
Reviews and Change Portfolio.
Employees on Temporary Contracts
The Director of City and Organisational Strategy submitted for the Committee’s
consideration a report providing a quarterly update on the number of employees on
temporary contracts. The report provided information also, on a Departmental basis,
on the number of agency staff engaged by the Council.
He confirmed that, at 1st March, 270 staff were filling posts on a temporary basis,
162 of whom had a substantive post to return to when no longer required. The remaining
108 staff were employed on a fixed-term contract basis and did not have a substantive
post to return to. In addition, 301 agency staff were employed by the Council at
31st December.
After discussion, the Committee:
i.

noted the contents of the report, including the appointment of a
‘gatekeeper’ post to manage the overall use of agency staff;

ii. agreed that the report on staff on temporary contracts would in
future include details of the progress which had been made since
the previous report;
iii. agreed that the report on agency staff would in future be presented
in a similar format as that on staff on temporary contracts; and
iv. noted that the protocol requiring permanent posts to be trawled
internally, which prevented agency assignees from applying initially,
would end on 31st March, 2022.

B3959

Page 19

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Review of Leisure Governance
and Active Belfast Limited Board
The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 20th November, 2020, it had
agreed to review the current tri-partite leisure model and the operation of the Active Belfast
Limited Board, including its membership and governance arrangements. The Committee
had subsequently approved the Terms of Reference and a consultancy firm had been
appointed to undertake the review.
The Director of Neighbourhood Services reported that the review had entailed an
extensive desktop exercise and a programme of stakeholder consultations and had been
followed by a draft report setting out the key findings, proposals and recommendations.
In terms of recommendations, the following three options had been presented for
consideration, with Option 3 being preferred, based on an assessment of the findings
within the report:


Option 1 - Do nothing



Option 2 - Bring Contract Compliance and Performance Monitoring
of GLL back into the Council and retain Active Belfast
Limited in a different form to focus on its broader
objectives



Option 3 - Bring Contract Compliance and Performance Monitoring of
GLL back into the Council and commence the winding up of
Active Belfast Limited.

She pointed out that, should the Committee agree to adopt Option 3, officers would
begin the process of transferring contract compliance and performance monitoring to the
City and Neighbourhood Services Department and would liaise with the Active Belfast
Limited Board to pursue a voluntary and solvent winding up of the company. Legal
amendments would also be required to be made to the existing tri-partite arrangements
and contractual documentation.
The Committee agreed to proceed with Option 3.
Alleygates – Phase 5
The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 19th March 2021, it had
agreed a budget of £500K for Phase 5 of the Council’s alleygating scheme, with the
funding to be divided equally between North, South, East and West. The Committee
subsequently agreed a framework to be used to identify potential locations.
The Committee was reminded further that, at its meeting on 18th February, it had
been requested to approve a ‘long list’ for each of the four quadrants of the City, based
upon the agreed framework, for referral to relevant Area Working Group for prioritisation.
The Committee had, in light of omissions which had been highlighted by Members,
agreed to defer the matter to allow for a full list of location requests to be circulated and a
comprehensive list of potential locations to be drafted.

B3960

Page 20

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

The Director of Neighbourhood Services reported that that work had now been
completed and drew the Committee’s attention to Appendices 1 to 4 of the report, which
had been generated from Members’ returns for each of the four areas of the City and been
assessed using the agreed framework. The ‘long lists’ set out in Appendices 5 – 8 of the
report provided details of the 456 streets, divided also into four areas, for which requests
for alleygates had been received.
Accordingly, she recommended that the Committee:
i

approve the list of potential alleygate locations for North, South,
East and West Belfast, as set out in Appendices 1 – 4;

ii

agree to refer the lists to the relevant Area Working Group for
prioritisation, based on the available budget of £125,000 for each
quadrant of the City; and

iii

note that the Department for Communities had offered an additional
£100k for an environmental improvement scheme, ringfenced for
the Holylands area, with the South Belfast Area Working Group to
be updated on the progress of this proposal.

After discussion, it was
Moved by Councillor McDonough-Brown,
Seconded by Councillor McReynolds and
Resolved – That the Committee agrees instead that the long lists set
out within Appendices 5 – 8 be approved and that they be referred to the
relevant Area Working Group for prioritisation.
The Committee agreed also to note the offer of funding from the Department for
Communities.
Update on Key Funding Streams
The Director of City and Organisational Strategy submitted for the Committee’s
consideration a report providing information on the UK Government’s Levelling Up Agenda
and its plans in relation to the Shared Prosperity Fund, which had been established to
replace European Union funding.
After discussion, the Committee agreed:
i

to note the update in relation to the Levelling Up and Shared
Prosperity Funds;

ii

to note that officers would submit to a future meeting a list of suitable
projects which were aligned to corporate priorities and the Belfast
Agenda for consideration under Round 2 Levelling Up; once the
themes had been announced;

B3961

Page 21

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

iii

that officers would develop a preferred corporate approach to
Levelling-Up and Shared Prosperity Funds and other key funding
streams such as Peace Plus, Complementary Fund, Shared Island,
that will be presented to members at a future Strategic Policy and
Resources Committee meeting;

iv

that the Council would write to the local Department for Levelling
Up, Housing and Communities team to raise concerns around the
timeliness of information being provided on the Levelling Up fund;

v

to note the resource and governance arrangements required to
corporately co-ordinate the bid development process for future
Levelling Up and Shared Prosperity Fund projects, in addition to
other funding avenues such as Peace Plus, the High Street Task
Force and Shared Island funding; and

vi

that officers would develop a mechanism by which requests from
local organisations for letters of support for funding applications are
assessed to determine if they supported existing corporate
priorities.

Update on Physical Programme
City Hall Statues – Winifred Carney and Mary Ann McCracken


The Committee agreed that both projects be moved to Stage 3 –
Committed on the Capital Programme and that the necessary
procurement processes be initiated, as required, with contracts to
be awarded on the basis of the most economically advantageous
tenders received and full commitment to deliver.

IT Programme – In Cab Technology and Routing System


The Committee agreed that this project be moved to Stage 2 –
Uncommitted under the IT Programme to enable an Outline
Business Case to be developed.

DfI Green and Blue Infrastructure Fund and Active Travel Projects


The Committee granted approval for the Council to act as the
delivery agent for a range of projects proposed under the DfI Green
and Blue Infrastructure Fund and Active Travel funding and agreed
that any necessary procurement processes for these projects be
initiated, as required, with contracts to be awarded on the basis of
the most economically advantageous tenders received and full
commitment to deliver.

Peace IV – Forth Meadow Community Greenway


The Committee noted the potential negative impact of any delay on
this project.

B3962

Page 22

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Update on Organisational Structures
The Director of Neighbourhood Services reminded the Committee that, at its
meeting on 19th May, 2017, it had approved a new operating model for the Council and
had noted that further engagement and alignment had been required for some functions.
Following on from this, the management function and associated budgets for
Belfast Castle, Belfast Zoo and Malone House would, from 1st April, 2022, transfer from
the City and Neighbourhood Services Department to the Place and Economy Department.
The Committee noted the information which had been provided.
Request for the use of Woodvale Park
The Committee acceded to a request from the Apprentice Boys of Derry
Association to use Woodvale Park as an assembly point for its annual Easter Monday
parade on 18th April and delegated authority to the Directors of City
Services/Neighbourhood Services to:


negotiate satisfactory terms and conditions of use via an appropriate
legal agreement, to be prepared by the Council’s Legal Services
section, including managing final booking confirmation dates and
flexibility around ‘set up’ and take down’ periods, and booking
amendments, subject to:
(a) the organiser resolving any operational issues to the Council’s
satisfaction;
(b) compliance with any Covid-19 restrictions in place at the time of the
event; and
(c) the organiser meeting all statutory Planning and Building Control
requirements, including the terms and conditions of the Park’s
Entertainments Licence.

Extension of Off-Street Parking
Enforcement Services
(Mr. D. Bone, City Services Manager, attended in connection with this item.)
The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 20th August, 2021, it had
been informed that the agency arrangement with the Department for Infrastructure for the
provision of off-street parking enforcement services had been due to expire on
31st October, 2022.
The Committee had agreed, in line with the views which had been expressed at a
meeting of SOLACE, that the eight participating councils should tender for enforcement
services on the open market, through a joint tendering procurement exercise, rather than
renew the service agreement with the Department for Infrastructure. That process would
be led by Ards and North Down Borough Council.

B3963

Page 23

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

The City Services Manager reported that delays in the process required to
terminate the existing contract and to put in place appropriate arrangements for a new
service provider had meant that a temporary extension was required to ensure that offstreet enforcement services could continue. The Regional Off-Street Parking Group, at a
recent meeting, had suggested that an extension until 31st October, 2023 would allow
sufficient time to procure a new service provider and ensure a smooth transition from the
Department for Infrastructure.
Accordingly, the Committee agreed to support the request for the Department for
Infrastructure to extend the current arrangement for off-street enforcement services until
31st October, 2023.
Draft Plan Strategy (dPS) – Required
Amendments and Adoption
(Mr. K. Sutherland, Planning Manager, attended in connection with this item.)
The Committee considered a report providing details of the Planning Appeals
Commission’s report on the independent examination of the Belfast Local Development
Plan draft Plan Strategy, the subsequent formal Direction from the Department for
Infrastructure requiring the Council to adopt the draft Plan Strategy development plan
document and, finally, setting out the potential process for the Council to formally adopt
what would be the first draft Plan Strategy to be brought forward under the new system.
After discussion, the Committee:
i.

noted the contents of the report, including the Planning Appeals
Commission’s assertion that the draft Plan Strategy could, with
modifications, be considered as “Sound”;

ii.

noted the Department for Infrastructure’s Statutory Direction
document, the Planning Appeals Commission’s report on the
Independent Examination of the draft Plan Strategy, the required
amendments and outline work programme, as set out in the
appendices 1, 2, 3 and 5; and

iii.

endorsed the proposed response to the requirement for a new
strategic policy and modifications to draft Policy HOU1, as set out
in paragraphs 3.7 to 3.11 of the report and in Appendix 4.

Social Value Procurement Policy
The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 18th June, 2021, it had
approved the draft Social Value Procurement Policy.
The Chief Executive reported that a twelve-week public consultation exercise had
commenced on 21st September, which had provided stakeholders with an opportunity to
comment upon the key aspect of the draft policy. The Social Policy Working Group had
reviewed the findings of the public consultation and had made a number of amendments

B3964

Page 24

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

to the policy. Accordingly, he recommended that the Committee approve the revised draft
Social Value Procurement Policy for implementation on 1st June, 2022.
After discussion, the Committee adopted the recommendation and noted that the
policy would be reviewed by the Social Policy Working Group and the Committee on an
annual basis.
Recruitment of Post of Director
of Finance and Resources
(Ms. C. Sheridan, Head of Human Resources, attended in connection with this
item.)
The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 22nd October, it had agreed
that the role of Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources be altered
as part of a structural review and had granted approval for the current postholder to retire
no later than 31st October, 2022.
The Head of Human Resources reviewed the proposed timeline for the recruitment
process, following which the Committee:
i.

approved the recruitment of the post of Director of Finance and
Resources on a permanent basis; and

ii.

agreed that the selection panel should consist of:
a.

the Chairperson and the Deputy Chairperson of the
Committee (or their nominees) and Councillor Bunting;
and

b.

the Chief Executive (or his nominee) and a Director.
Matters referred back from Council/Motions

Motion - Belfast Citywide Tribunal Service
The Chief Executive informed the Members that the Standards and Business
Committee, at its meeting on 22nd February, had referred the following motion, which had
been proposed by Councillor Ferguson and seconded by Councillor Matt Collins, to the
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee for consideration:
“This Council notes with concern that the Belfast Citywide Tribunal service
once again faces a lack of funding, putting staff jobs and a vital service at
risk.
Additionally, the Council is deeply disappointed that the Department for
Communities has failed to provide core funding for this service, despite the
impact this will have on workers and working-class communities in
particular.

B3965

Page 25

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Given the vast amount of successful tribunal appeals, the Council
recognises that there is an onus on the Executive to fund a tribunal service
which is capable of addressing the flawed welfare system.
However, given that core funding is not forthcoming and the upcoming
election leaves uncertainty about future funding, the Council agrees that
measures should be taken to ensure the service can stay open for the next
year.
Accordingly, the Council agrees to fund the Tribunal services an amount of
£342,278, from its reserves if necessary, to maintain the service and stave
off redundancies.”
The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources reported that
the People and Communities Committee, at its meeting on 8th March, had agreed:
i

to allocate £90,000 from existing 2022/23 budgets to the Belfast
Citywide Tribunal Service; and

ii

that an allocation of £70,400, which the Department for
Communities had indicated that it would, in line with 2021/21, be
making available for welfare mitigation – tribunal representation
during 2022/23, be ringfenced for use by the Belfast Citywide
Tribunal Service, subject to the receipt of formal confirmation.

In terms of addressing the shortfall of £181,878, he pointed out that due diligence
work on the Tribunal Service’s business plan was continuing and that the Department for
Communities was due to hold in the near future a business planning event around the
future funding of advice services.
The Committee agreed that a report be submitted to its next meeting on the
outcome of the due diligence process and the Department for Communities’ business
planning event.
Industrial Action
At the request of a Member, the Committee agreed that a report be submitted to a
future meeting providing details of the total earnings lost by those staff who had
participated in the previous weeks’ industrial action.
Governance
Revisions to the Scheme of Allowances 2022-23
The Chief Executive reminded the Committee the Department for Communities
was responsible for determining the maximum hourly rate of Dependant’s Carers’
Allowance for both standard care and specialised care. The rate for standard care was
based on the hourly National Living Wage for a person aged 25 years and over and would
increase on 1st April, 2022 from £8.91 to £9.50 per hour. The rate for specialised care was
double that for standard care. The Department also set the maximum monthly amounts

B3966

Page 26

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

for standard care and specialised care, which was capped at the equivalent of 52 hours
per month.
Accordingly, he recommended that the Committee approve the following
amendments to the Scheme of Allowances, in line with the increase in the National Living
Wage and with effect from 1st April, 2022:
“(iv) Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance
Standard Care
Specialist Care

£9.50 per hour - limited to £494.00 per month
£19.00 per hour - limited to £988.00 per month”

The Committee adopted the recommendation.
Belfast Agenda/Strategic Issues
Recruitment and Selection of New Chief Executive
The Committee noted the contents of a report providing details of the selection
process which had resulted in the appointment of Mr. John Walsh, City Solicitor and
Director of Legal Services, to the post of Chief Executive, with effect from 21st March,
and congratulated him on his success.
Belfast Residents’ Survey
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To update the Committee on the key findings from the Belfast
Residents’ Survey and to outline how the data will be used and
reported.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the report.

3.0

Key Issues
Background

3.1

Every two years, the Council commissions consultants to carry
out an independent survey of residents. The survey provides
statistically reliable, perception data based on a representative
sample of Belfast residents (aged 16 and over) and is used to
inform strategic planning and performance management at the
city (Belfast Agenda) and organisational level. Normally
conducted face-to-face, this year’s survey was carried out by
telephone due to Covid restrictions. Following a quotation
exercise, we appointed Social Market Research (SMR) to carry

B3967

Page 27

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

out the survey on our behalf. They interviewed 1504 people
between 15th November and 12th December, with quotas
applied to ensure those completing the survey were
representative of the population of Belfast (by age, gender,
social class and geographical area).
Trend Data
3.2

On the whole, the results for 2021 are positive. In 2019,
satisfaction with the Council and life in Belfast dipped, a trend
replicated across the rest of the UK. This year, our results have
improved on 2019 and are now generally on a par, and in some
places better than the 2017 results. For most of the Council
indicators, we have reversed the downward trend in
satisfaction and approval ratings, whereas this has continued
in English council areas (as per the LGA benchmark).

3.3

The Committee is asked to note that overall satisfaction with
Belfast and local area remains lower than in 2017 (85% now
compared to 91% in 2017), though still higher when compared
to other local authorities. Some data has fallen, such as views
on whether all people can lead healthy lives or live life to the
full, whether they feel listened to and whether they feel safe in
the city centre at night. This data will be used to inform
improvement activities of council and the Belfast Agenda.
Key Results

3.4

Overall satisfaction with Belfast and local area:



3.5

85% of those surveyed were satisfied with Belfast as a
place to live
85% of those surveyed were satisfied with their local
area as a place to live

When asked about Living in Belfast, more than three quarters
of those surveyed agreed that:








Belfast was a good place to visit - 90%
People are friendly, caring and compassionate - 88%
Belfast had good infrastructure (83%) and was easy to
get about (85%)
The city centre was vibrant and attractive, with lots
going on - 80%
Belfast is a welcoming safe, fair and inclusive city for all
- 79%
Older people are treated with respect and dignity -76%
People can live life to the full - 75%

B3968

Page 28

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.6

However, respondents were less likely to agree that Belfast:






3.7

Is an environmentally friendly city - 73%
Where everyone benefits from a thriving and
prosperous city - 65%
Everyone fulfils their potential - 52%
Everyone experiences good health and wellbeing - 51%
Just over half of those surveyed (56%) said they felt safe
in the city centre after dark

Priorities for Belfast
When asked to select their most important priority for Belfast
overall, health and wellbeing emerged as the highest priority
followed by a stronger economy and employment and skills:
Health and wellbeing

26%

A stronger economy

13%

Employment and skills (jobs)

13%

Reducing poverty

12%

Improving local communities and
neighbourhoods
3.8

11%

My Local Area
When asked about their Local Area, at least three quarters of
those surveyed agreed their area:









3.9

Was safe 96% (during the day) and 86% (after dark)
They could access all the services they needed - 85%
Was seen as welcoming to others - 82%
Had a strong sense of community - 82% and was a place
where people worked together to improve things - 80%
Was clean and attractive - 80% and
Had good quality parks and green space - 78%
Had parks and green space that were safe - 76%
They could access job and training opportunities - 76%

However, respondents were less likely to agree that their local
area was a place where:



People from different racial and ethnic backgrounds got
on well together - 72%
People from different religions and political
backgrounds got on well together - 67%

B3969

Page 29

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.10

When asked unprompted, to specify what one thing would
most improve the quality of life in their local area, the most
frequently mentioned individual issues were:
All good, don't know or can’t think of anything

25%

Community safety

17%

Cleanliness

8%

Jobs / wages

5%

Children and Young people

4%

Housing

4%

3.11

Respondent came up with an extensive list of issues, which we
have grouped under 5 broad headings. Appendix 1 provides
more detail on the type and relative importance of each of the
issues raised under these themes.

3.12

Belfast City Council
When asked about Belfast City Council, around three quarters
(76%) were satisfied with the Council overall up from 65% in
2019. And at least three quarters agreed that we:




3.13

And around two thirds or more agreed that we:



3.14

Make Belfast a better place to live - 80%
Keeps resident very well or fairly well informed - 78%
Responds to the needs of local residents – 77%

Provide good customer service- 73% (up from 62% in
2019)
Show good leadership for the City - 72% (up from 62%
in 2019)

Although the primary aim of the survey is to provide statistical
information (quantitative data), respondents who stated that
they were dissatisfied with council were asked why they had
said this. 93 comments were provided, many of whom cited
Covid-19 and in some way:


24 comments about covid and its impact on access to
council services, the impact on cleanliness and pest
control or concerns about the lack of enforcement;

B3970

Page 30

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.15



12 residents felt the council could listen more to local
residents; some felt they did not have a voice or weren’t
respected and that council be more responsiveness to
local residents’ needs;



12 residents felt that the council was not doing enough
in their local area, with some suggesting that their area
has been neglected;



8 references to crime and anti-social behaviour;



8 comments relating to lack of communication or
information;



7 felt the Council was not doing enough to support
poorer and vulnerable residents;



A smaller number cited cleanliness issues (5); felt more
could be done to promote recycling and the green
environment (4) or that we took too long to act (2); and



5 residents felt that we ‘could just do more’ and 3 said
they can’t see or don’t know what we do. 3 comments
did not relate directly to council e.g., housing and
healthcare.

Benchmarking our Results
In previous years, we have benchmarked our results against
other UK cities, but due to covid or budgetary constraints
benchmark data is either no longer available or has been
delayed. Bristol and Cardiff have recently completed resident
surveys, which we will benchmark against once this data
becomes available. Available comparisons against Glasgow
City Council and local council averages as measured by the
Local Government Association are provided below. When
comparing Belfast with these benchmarks, our results are
significantly higher:
Glasgow

LGA Average

Belfast

2021

2021

Overall satisfaction
with local area
Overall satisfaction

48%

council

78%



85%

56%



76%

Value for money

33%

43%



64%

Keeps informed

39%

57%



78%

B3971

Page 31

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Responsiveness
(Listens and acts)
Trust

42%

52%



77%

57%



63%

92%



96%

71%



86%



78%

Feels safe in local
area - during the
day
Feels safe in local
area - after dark
Satisfaction with

50%

response to
pandemic
3.16

Resident Survey – Analysing the Results:
On the whole, these results are positive and encouragingly for
Belfast, and in particular the council:


Significant increases in satisfaction with Belfast City
Council. Many of the 2017 survey results were high,
whereas the 2019 results were exceptionally low, a trend
also replicated across the UK. However, our results for
2021 are generally on a par, and in some places better
than the 2017 results.



Perceptions of the Council in terms of reputation and
trust has improved (up by 16% and 10%) with the
majority of respondents (78%) indicating that we
responded well or very well to the covid -19 pandemic;



The percentage of people who felt that people in Belfast
were friendly, caring and compassionate increased
significantly, up from 80% to 88%. As did those who
felt that Belfast was a good place to visit, up from 82%
to 90%;



Significant increase in percentage of people who felt
Belfast was safe, fair and inclusive, and that local areas
were welcoming to others. However, perceptions in
relation to people from different religious and racial
backgrounds ‘getting on’ with each other were still the
lowest rated local area indicators, with only two thirds
agreeing that people from different religious and
political backgrounds got on well, down slightly from
2019.

B3972

Page 32

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.17

However, although these results are positive and compare
quite favourably to other council areas, it is noted that levels
of dissatisfaction have increased compared to previous years.
This is in contrast to 2019, where despite local government
approval ratings falling, both in Belfast and across the UK, our
levels of dissatisfaction did not increase significantly. Instead,
more respondents voiced a neutral opinion than in previous
years. Whilst these results show that we have been able to
move people back into the satisfied band, the increase in
dissatisfaction suggests that there is a small but increasing
proportion of residents who have shown dissatisfaction.

3.18

Other findings to note include:

3.19



The percentage of people who agreed that people in
Belfast ‘lead healthy lives’ and can ‘fulfil their potential’
fell (down by 7% and 9% respectively). The proportion
of those disagreeing also rose. Only around half of
residents agreed with these statements whilst almost a
third (32%) disagreed that everyone experiences good
health and wellbeing (up from a fifth in 2019), and
almost a quarter (24%) disagreed that everyone fulfils
their potential (also up from around a fifth in 2019);



This was reflected in people’s opinion regarding the
city’s priorities with a quarter of respondents (26%)
selecting ‘health and wellbeing’ as their number one
priority, making it the highest-ranking priority for
Belfast;



Significant increase in the number of people feeling less
safe at night, especially in the city centre (up to 25%
from 9%). Perception of safety during the day remained
high and fairly constant; and



The number of people who have sought advice for debt
or financial problems remained constant (approx. 1 in
10 respondents), and although the percentage of
respondents who report using a food bank is relatively
low, that percentage has doubled - up from 4% in 2019
to 8% in 2021.

Impact of Covid-19
Whilst it is unclear as to the full impact of covid-19, these
results point to a correlation between perceptions, behaviours
and covid. For example:

B3973

Page 33

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.20



Increase in perceptions of people being caring and
compassion;



Increase in those disagreeing that
experiences good health and wellbeing;



Reduction in volunteering and participation in local
groups and community activities (although 4% did
indicate that they do more volunteering now);



Whilst 23% said they would be more likely to use public
transport during the next 6 months, 28% said they
would be less likely;



Increase in use of foodbanks;



Perceptions of wellbeing generally remained constant,
although there were slight falls in reported satisfaction
with mental / emotional wellbeing; financial situation
and living accommodation; and



People have equally reported being ‘more’ and ‘less’
active as a result of covid; Further analysis might shed
more light on physical activity levels by age and
reported physical activity in due course, which might
correlate with research undertaken by Age UK that
indicated older people have become less active during
covid. Currently, the results do seem to indicate a
general increase in walking for leisure.

everyone

Next Steps
The results from the resident survey play a key part in helping
to track progress against key outcomes within the ‘Belfast
Agenda’. These results will also be used to inform the ongoing
review and action planning process of the Belfast Agenda,
corporate plan and other council strategies, particularly where
figures indicate room for improvement. Information relating to
the city centre, safety and physical and active travel for
example will be shared with relevant operational sections and
strategic programmes.

3.21

Further detailed analysis of the survey data is currently
underway. This includes an analysis by area (North, South
East and West) and by other demographic characteristics
including age and social class. An initial analysis by gender
indicates that, with the exception of safety at night particularly
in the city centre, there is no or limited statistical difference in
perceptions based on gender. Area based results will be
brought to the Area Working Groups in due course. Relevant

B3974

Page 34

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

results will also be shared with, for example, the Healthy Aging
Strategic Partnership and Belfast Community Safety
Partnership. Benchmark data will be added as it becomes
available. Relevant survey data (in the form of performance
indicators) will be included within the Council Improvement
Plan, year-end performance assessment report for the Local
Government Auditor and our corporate plan.
3.22

Currently this survey is repeated every 2 years, but with the
introduction of the Your Say Belfast platform, we may trial the
survey through this platform later this year. The reliability of
this method will be determined by response rates and, whilst it
may not be as statistically representative nor provide accurate
trend data for certain analysis (such as by age or area), it could
provide interim citywide data to inform progress and annual
performance data.

3.23

Resources Implications
There are no resource implications contained in this report.

3.24

Equality or
Assessment

Good

Relations

Implications/Rural

Needs

There are no equality implications contained in this report.
However, the information obtained will help inform our good
relations work and audit of inequalities.”
After discussion, the Committee noted the contents of the report.
Response to Consultation on Infrastructure 2050 –
Draft Investment Strategy for Northern Ireland
The Director of City and Organisation Strategy informed the Committee that the
Strategic Investment Board had, in January, published on behalf of the Northern Ireland
Executive a consultation document entitled ‘Infrastructure 2050 – Draft Investment
Strategy for Northern Ireland.’
The draft Strategy set out how the Northern Ireland Executive’s stated vision for
infrastructure would be achieved and had identified the following five key strategic
objectives, needs and priorities for its investment in infrastructure over the coming
decades:




to decarbonise the economy and society;
to strengthen and protect essential services;
to build a strong, connected and competitive region;

B3975

Page 35

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022




to enhance communities and places; and
to maximise the benefits from new technology and innovation.

He reviewed the key elements of the draft Council response to the consultation
and recommended that it be forwarded to the Strategic Investment Board by the deadline
date of 20th April.
The Committee adopted the recommendation.
Review of Belfast Agenda – Update on Action Planning
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update the Committee on
the progress of the Belfast Agenda Review, including the
action planning phase and to seek approval of the minutes
of the All-Party Working Group on Community Planning of
23rd February.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:

i

note the progress of the development of the refreshed
Belfast Agenda Strategy document and supporting
four-year Delivery Action Plans as set out in this
report;

ii

endorse the emerging strategic intents and measures
of success (stretch goals), as set out in Appendix 1;

iii

note the proposed next steps and timeline, as set out
in Appendix 1;

iv

note the plans for continued Member engagement, as
detailed in section 3.5 below; and

v

approve the minutes of the meeting of the All-Party
Working Group on Community Planning of
23rd February.

3.0

Main Report

3.1

In November 2021, Members received an update on the
emerging findings and recommendations following the initial

B3976

Page 36

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

phase of Belfast Agenda: Continuing the Conversation
engagement to inform the refreshed Belfast Agenda (BA) for
the period 2022-2026. As reported at the November meeting,
there was broad agreement that the existing long-term vision
and outcomes of the BA remain relevant, and the proposed
priorities for focus were the things that stakeholders and
communities believed community planning could help address
over the next 4-year period. There had been feedback in
relation to how some of the priorities had been framed and the
need for them to be easily understood. As a result, some minor
changes had been made to the framing of the priority areas
such as, changing ‘economic recovery’ to ‘Sustainable and
Inclusive Economic Growth’.
3.2

Bringing Focus and Commitment to Delivery
Building on the recommendations and consensus reached
through Phase I, the Community Planning Partnership (CPP)
and council has committed to co-design specific and
measurable actions plan(s) which would underpin the priority
areas of focus. Subsequently, a small group of core partners
(cross-sectoral) has been brought together to help further
develop the approach to co-designing each of the priority
areas and cross-cutting themes. Each task and finish group
were responsible for analysing the range of outputs from
phase 1 of the ‘Belfast Agenda: Continuing the Conversation’
engagement process; assessing relevant strategies, plans and
local intelligence (including information received through the
call for evidence); feedback from the community and Belfast
Agenda Board engagement workshops; online and paperbased survey results; and the current delivery plans of existing
Belfast Agenda Boards.
Based on this initial analysis, partners prepared a strategic
framework to help bring focus and shape the co-designed
action plans consisting of:
1. What we are trying to achieve over the next 4 years
(strategic intent);
2. How will we measure success (stretch goals); and
3. How will we realise such success (SMART Action
Plan(s).

B3977

Page 37

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Figure 1 below illustrates this framework and how a structured and
informed approach is being implemented with partners to ensure
there is a strong thread between each of the priority areas, ambitions,
measures of success and importantly the focus for collaborative
action.
Figure 1: strategic framework adopted by partners to bring focus and
shape co-designed action plans

Priority Area

Strategic Intent

Stretch Goal

Action

3.3

Action

Strategic Intent

Stretch Goal

Action

Stretch Goal

Action

Action

Action

Stretch Goal

Action

Action

Output from this initial exercise will inform the next phase of
the Continuing the Conversation engagement programme,
where we will continue to work with partners and communities
to co-design delivery plans. This represents an ongoing and
complex process, which requires participation and
involvement across sectors and communities at multiple
levels, which has resulted in some priorities being more
developed than others. The emerging frameworks for each of
the priorities, which have been circulated, were discussed with
the All-Party Working group on Community Planning when it
met on 23rd February. Since that meeting, the strategic intents
and stretch goals have been further developed, particularly the
City Development elements following the Board meeting on
Friday 11th March. This reflects the dynamic nature of the codesign process which remains a work in progress. Members
are asked to consider and provide feedback on the emerging
frameworks
outlined
by
1st
April
2022
to
communityplanning@belfastcity.gov.uk . This feedback will

B3978

Page 38

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

then be reflected in future iterations and can be discussed
further with members as the strategy is further refined.
3.4

As discussed with the All-Party Working Group, it is proposed
that the timeline for developing the refreshed Belfast Agenda
strategy document and underpinning delivery plans includes
sufficient time for direct and genuine engagement with
partners, communities/ communities of interest and specific
sectors including the business and private sector over April
and May 2022. In addition, more formal and intensive
consultation activities are planned on the strategy document
as well as further engagement to co-design the action plans
during May and June 2022. Slide 33 in Appendix 1 outlines the
proposed next steps and timeline for this process. It is felt that
the timeline will allow for greater input and enable valuable
buy-in to the emerging plans.

3.5

Political Engagement with Elected Members
In addition to the All-Party Working Group on Community
Planning on 23rd February, and subsequently the Strategic
Policy and Resources Committee, it is also intended to bring a
similar paper, presentation, and discussions to the Social
Policy Working Group in early April. The intention would be to
bring a further iteration of the draft strategy and emerging
action plans to Committee in April for further consideration,
input, and refinement.
The minutes of the meeting of the All-Party Working Group on
Community Planning meeting of 23rd February are attached at
Appendix 2 for approval. It is important to note that the
feedback and recommendations from Members at this meeting
will be factored into the continued refinement of the BA
Refresh.

3.6

Financial and Resource Implications
Any financial implications arising from this report will be
covered from existing budgets. The review process will
continue to involve the participation of all community planning
partners, who will need to commit their resources to the review
process and the agreed action plans.

3.7

Equality or Good Relations Implications / Rural Needs
Assessment
It is recommended that the consultation and engagement
activities to review the Belfast Agenda will take account of the
draft Audit of Inequalities and include specific sessions with

B3979

Page 39

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

targeted harder to reach groups to ensure that equality
implications are considered as part of the review process.”
The Committee adopted the recommendations.
Update on Belfast Poverty Commission
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues

1.1

To update the Committee on the initial engagement sessions
carried out by with the Poverty Truth Network to explore the
potential to establish a Belfast Poverty Commission to support
the Council’s work on Inclusive Growth and Anti-Poverty and
to consider next steps.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:
i

agree that officers continue to engage with partners and
those engaged in poverty-related initiatives in Belfast to
identify how a Poverty Commission could be adapted to
work in Belfast and secure buy-in to that approach; and

ii

agree to the inclusion of a Belfast Poverty Commission
as an identified workstream in the Belfast Agenda to aim
to address poverty and tackle inequalities.
This
approach would require CPP agreement to collectively
meet the resourcing requirements for a poverty
commission.

3.0

Main Report

3.1

Key Issues
The Poverty Truth Network helps cities to determine whether a
Poverty Truth Commission would be right for their local area.
Poverty Truth Network accompany cities at every stage of their
journey from asking ‘whether a Poverty Truth Commission
could happen here’ through to the establishment of a
commission. The Poverty Truth Network is a registered charity
that supports Poverty Truth Commissions and encourages
them to work together. Further information is available at:
https://povertytruthnetwork.org/commissions/what-is-apoverty-truth-commission/

3.2

Following the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
meeting in December 2021, four initial engagement sessions

B3980

Page 40

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

were organised for the Poverty Truth Network to engage with
key stakeholders in January and March 2022. Stakeholders
included Members, community planning partners and the
VCSE Panel as well as government departments (Department
for Communities and the Executive Office). The purpose of
these sessions was to:




hear the experience from the Poverty Truth Network
about what a Poverty Truth Commission is.
consider if this is an approach that could be adapted for
Belfast
consider whether the timing is right for it and who would
need to own/drive it

A separate session was also hosted by NICVA.
3.3

The Committee will recall that a phased approach is supported
by the Poverty Truth Network:







Establishment of a start-up group - to host, develop and
facilitate the establishment of the Commission.
Recruitment of commissioners – those with lived
experience of poverty (15 people), and civic/business
commissioners, including the VCSE sector (15 people).
These 30 individuals should reflect the demographic
make-up of Belfast.
Commission implementation – full commission
conversations and issue groups formed.
Closing event for the Commission – to communicate the
findings and commit to plans to embed changes.
The City may decide to run another Commission in
subsequent years, for example, Leeds is now running
its third Commission.

3.4

The Belfast Poverty Commission, if established, would be
responsible for setting their agenda and their own work.
The approach is a 2–3-year commitment, focusing on creating
a cultural shift at the level of the individuals and organisations
participating as well as at a policy and societal/city level, in
terms of changing language and attitudes. It’s a deliberate
process to build relationships, trust and capacity of those
involved in order to understand the issues deeply before
moving to solutions and therefore requires the personal
commitment of all those who sit on the commission.

3.5

A key commitment in the Belfast Agenda and Council’s
Inclusive Growth Strategy is to strengthen civic voice and to
enable us and our partners to tackle poverty and inequality in
the city. A Belfast Poverty Commission would seek to:

B3981

Page 41

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022




Strengthen and diversify civic voice.
Build
capacity
of
participants
and
shared
understanding of the issues faced by those living in
poverty to inform policy, programmes, service delivery.
Create cultural change at an individual, organisation
and city level.

3.6

Establishing a Belfast Poverty Commission would provide a
mechanism for the Council and Community Planning
Partnership to design and test a model of engagement to
enable individuals who are seldom heard to share their
experiences and views on policy/service design issues that are
important to them in order to help inform and improve them.

3.7

The following provides a summary of the key points raised in
the initial engagement sessions:











3.8

A Poverty Commission must sit alongside existing
structures aligning and enhancing existing work rather
than displacing, replacing or adding layers of
governance.
It must recognise and connect to the strong,
established community networks across the city to
ensure the Commission and its work is knitted in.
There is a range of work across the city on povertyrelated issues which a Poverty Commission could
enhance.
The Commission and its Commissioners must reflect
Belfast – the Commission must look and feel like the
people of the city
Organisational commitment is essential to support the
commissioners,
particularly
local
‘community
commissioners’, to develop and fulfil their role on the
Commission.
Assurance that there is buy-in, resource and
commitment to the process, including the co-design
nature of the process.
Build on the experience and learning from Belfast based
initiatives as well as the impact that Poverty
Commissions have had elsewhere.
It was welcomed that the Commission is a timebound
programme, over a 3-year period, as a means of keeping
it focused and ‘fresh’.

The Committee will be aware that the Department for
Communities is considering a regional approach to
establishing a poverty commission, based on the
recommendations in the Report from the Anti-Poverty Strategy
Expert Panel. Initial conversations with DfC have indicated
that should Belfast go ahead with a Poverty Commission, they

B3982

Page 42

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

would be keen that this informs the regional strategy and
approach.
Any Belfast Poverty Commission must be
positioned to align with these plans as well as the Belfast
Community Planning structures, particularly the VCSE Panel.
3.9

Feedback from all the engagement sessions indicated that a
significant focus on poverty in the city is now imperative at a
strategic and practical level. There was support for the Poverty
Commission approach; however further engagement with
stakeholders is required to ensure that the approach is owned
by partners and that the process is co-designed with partners
/ stakeholders. The inclusion of a workstream in the refresh of
the Belfast Agenda to explore and establish a Belfast Poverty
Commission would provide the means to continue the
conversations to develop an approach that works for Belfast.

3.10

It is important to note that this process should not detract from
the ongoing efforts to tackle poverty and provide practical
support to those who are experiencing poverty across the city,
for example fuel poverty. However, the Commission will
provide a mechanism to support, inform and shape these
efforts in the medium and longer term, while also increasing
and improving our civic engagement and involvement.

3.11

Financial and Resource Implications
Officer time will be required to support the ongoing
engagement and development of the approach. The Poverty
Truth Network estimate that financial resource of approx.
£110,000 is required for three part-time staff members (approx.)
to recruit the commissioners and to facilitate and support the
Poverty Commission. If included within the Belfast Agenda
action plan, CPP agreement would be sought to collectively
meet the resourcing requirements for the poverty commission.
An organisation will also be required to ‘host’ the commission,
acting a base for the staff team and to provide
equipment/materials. In-kind support from partners will also
be required, for example, provision of meeting space.

3.12

Equality or
Assessment

Good

Relations

Implications/Rural

Needs

The programme to develop a Belfast Poverty Commission will
be subject to equality, good relations and rural needs
considerations.”
The Committee adopted the recommendations.

B3983

Page 43

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

PEACE PLUS Programme
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with an
update on the development of the PEACE PLUS programme
and on emerging work being undertaken as part of the first
investment area that will open 1.1. Co-Designed Local
Community Peace Action plan for Belfast.

1.2

Approval is also being sought for officers to proceed with the
development of a new PEACEPLUS Partnership for Belfast that
will oversee the development of the local action plan via SP&R
committee and will build on learning from PEACE IV and the
governance arrangements through the Shared City
Partnership (SCP).

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:
i

note the report; and

ii

approve the proposed approach for the development
a PEACEPLUS partnership for Belfast.

3.0

Main Report

3.1

Background
The EU Programme for Peace and Reconciliation is a unique
Structural Funds programme aimed at reinforcing progress
towards a peaceful and stable society in Northern Ireland and
the Border Region of Ireland. Currently, through its Managing
Authority, the Special EU Programmes Body (SEUPB), the
European Commission is developing a €1billion PEACE PLUS
programme.
The overall objective of the PEACE PLUS Programme is to
build Peace and Prosperity and ensure that this Programme
will leave a lasting and tangible legacy across Northern Ireland
and the border counties of Ireland. The Programme’s strategy
is to continue to take the opportunities and address the needs
arising from the peace process in order to boost economic

B3984

Page 44

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

growth and stimulate social and economic regeneration and
secondly, to promote social inclusion, particularly for those at
the margins of economic and social life.
SEUPB is currently seeking approval from the European
Commission for the development of the PEACE PLUS
Programme and have submitted a finance agreement to the
European Commission as part of the process to receive final
approval for the overall programme. The Programme in its
totality comprises of six themes, which encompass 22
individual investment areas for possible submissions for
investment.
An infographic illustrating the main themes of the PEACE
PLUS Programme is shown in appendix 1. Further information
on the PEACE PLUS Programme including consultation
responses is available at:
https://www.seupb.eu/PEACEPLUS
The potential for investment within Belfast is significant, due
to the scale of the overall programme Senior officers are
currently scoping the overall programme to assess where we
should consider making submissions across the 22
investment areas. It is likely that some of the investment areas
may open in 2022, with others to follow in 2023, not all of them
will be suitable for Councils to make submissions, but an initial
scope has identified a number of areas where we may lead on
delivery.
A corporate approach is required to provide cross Council
oversight for delivery of potential investment opportunities for
the Council from across PEACEPLUS. A more detailed report
will be brought back to members to consider the areas of work
in addition to the Local Community PEACEPLUS Action Plan
where Council may make a bid for investment.
3.2

Co-Designed Local Community Peace Action Plan Investment
Area 1.1
The first investment area likely to open is The Local
Community PEACE Action Plans contained within Theme 1:
Building peaceful and thriving communities of the PEACE
PLUS Programme under Investment Area 1.1. Co-designed
Local Community Peace Action Plans (€110 million budget
across 17 local authorities). Following discussions with
SEUPB, early indications are that Belfast may be able to make
a submission of at least £17million, with this being managed
as previous Local PEACE action plans.

B3985

Page 45

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

The plans will centre on three core themes:
1. Local community regeneration and transformation.
2. Thriving and peaceful communities; and
3. Building respect for all cultural identities.
and are likely to include activities such as;








youth development programmes;
health and wellbeing initiatives;
community regeneration projects;
redevelopment and reimaging of existing community
facilities for shared usage;
initiatives to build positive relations;
education and skills development programmes;
social innovation / enterprise initiatives.

The Managing Authority, SEUPB has indicated that the open
call for applications to this programme will be made in Quarter
Two 2022 and that the application process may remain open
for 3-6 months with the earliest date for open call expected to
be April 2022 (though this may not be realistic as no guidance
on the expected co-design process has yet been received from
SEUPB). It is yet to be confirmed but it is expected that there
will be a 6-month window for applications. Members should
note that this will be an extremely tight timeframe with
significant consultation and engagement required to inform
any submission.
3.3

PEACE PLUS Partnership - Co-designed Local Community
Peace Action Plans (priority 1.1)
It is a requirement that each Local Community Action Plan
should comprise of a PEACE PLUS local authority partnership
which will oversee the co-design and implementation of a
process in their local authority area which will be used to
inform the development and delivery of an overarching PEACE
Action Plan ensuring alignment with the local Community Plan
for the area.
SEUPB previously advised that they will not be overly
prescriptive in terms of partnership composition, development
process or selection, but rather they encourage that
representation should be balanced as far as possible. They
advised partnerships should ideally include some of the
following:

B3986

Page 46

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.5

Pillar 1

Pillar 2

Elected Members

Statutory Partners

Pillar 3

Pillar 4

Social Partners Geographical Community
Representatives / Civic
Society

Social Partners - PEACE
PLUS Target Groups; S75 /
under-represented groups

Preferred option
Council officers have been engaging with SEUPB on a
preferred model for the Belfast partnership with the preferred
option as follows:
The current Shared City Partnership (SCP) retains oversight of
the development and implementation of the future
PEACEPLUS Local Action Plan and becomes the PEACEPLUS
Partnership.
The key reasons that officers engaged with SEUPB on this
model included:







There was a significant refresh of the SCP recently,
which included recruitment of new members from the
Community and Voluntary Sector.
The SCP is a formal working group of the Council that
oversees the Good Relations Strategy and Action Plan
and PEACE IV Plan via SP and R.
SCP will continue post PEACEPLUS completion and will
have sustainability with capacity to continue to work on
Peace and Reconciliation post PEACE funding.
SCP has representation from across Political parties.
SCP has a good mixture of elected members, statutory
agencies, interested groups and community partners
across the four pillars outlined above.
SCP membership currently has clear alignment with
community planning partnership members.

Following discussions with SEUPB, it has advised that it is
content that the preferred option above is an acceptable model
for overseeing the future PEACEPLUS Local Community
Action Plan. Officers are seeing approval from members to
proceed on this basis.

B3987

Page 47

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.5

External Support
SEUPB has also given approval to councils to use a maximum
of €100,000 on resourcing the development of the local action
plan. This expenditure is not additional to any final award that
the Council receives, it will be included in the PEACE PLUS
Action Plan application and when successful, will form part of
the letter of award for reimbursement.
There will be significant work required to deliver on these
ambitious timelines, which will require additional external
support. While we may not maximise the full €100,000
available to assist with the development of the local action
plan, we will initially use circa £48,500 (€56,260) to appoint
suitably qualified contractors who will be expected to lead on
the development, facilitation and submission of the Belfast
PEACE PLUS local community PEACE action plan, this
investment cannot be used for anything other than 1.1
Development of the Local Community PEACEPLUS Action
Plan.
This will help develop the systems and processes including the
design and facilitation of a consultation and engagement
framework and associated local area informal governance to
enable Council to submit their Local Community PEACE Action
Plan. The successful applicants will be expected to undertake
a co-designed approach with members, the local community
and stakeholders to develop a prioritisation list for possible
projects, develop and draft the action plan for consideration by
Council and write the detailed plan and engage with SEUPB on
any changes required post submission. As we develop our
approach to 1.1, ongoing engagement will take place with
members, with updates brought back via SP&R.

3.6

Financial and Resource Implications
External support of up to 100,000 euros for the development of
1.1 local action plans can be claimed from any future Letter of
Offer from SEUPB but will be included in the final budget
allocation.

3.7

Equality or
Assessment

Good

Relations

Implications/Rural

The plan will be subject to equality screening.”
The Committee adopted the recommendations.

B3988

Page 48

Needs

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

City Co-operation on Achieving Net Zero
The Director of Organisational Strategy informed the Committee that, in addition
to the global negotiations at last year’s COP26 conference in Glasgow, a number of cityto-city events had taken place, to emphasise the need for increased collaboration around
topics such as climate finance, energy and achieving a just transition.
The Lord Mayor, Councillor Nicholl, had played a key role in many of these events
and there had been follow up discussions with a number of cities, including Greater
Manchester, Liverpool, and Dublin, to explore opportunities to work together on common
causes.
He confirmed that a delegation including the Mayors of Greater Manchester, the
Liverpool City Region and Dublin would meet in Belfast on 30th March to view the good
work being undertaken in Belfast around the use of hydrogen. The itinerary would include
a visit to a school, engagement with local businesses and a workshop, at which officers
from each city would discuss their programme of work and opportunities for collaboration.
It was proposed that the following Statement of Intent be agreed and publicised on
the day of the visit:
“Belfast, Dublin, Liverpool City Region and Greater Manchester, with
a collective population of over five million, will come together to form
a co-operative partnership to develop practical approaches to
accelerate the delivery of net-zero commitments in our cities and city
regions.
Climate change is the greatest challenge facing our nations and our
planet. That is why we have developed ambitious climate agendas to
become more equitable, fairer, prosperous and greener cities. Each
of us is committed to the protection of our economies and our people
and we are firmly of the view that working together will give us the
best chance of realising the benefits of transitioning to a low carbon
economy.
To achieve these goals, we are committed to:


sharing best practices, knowledge and experience;



connecting organisations and facilitating research and
development, business and investment collaborations; and



co-ordinating joint participation at events (including the Net
Zero Summit in June, 2022) and hosting, where necessary,
incoming delegations.”

The Committee approved the Statement of Intent.

B3989

Page 49

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Draft Corporate Delivery Plan 2022-23
The Chief Executive submitted for the Committee’s approval the draft Corporate
Delivery Plan for 2022/23. The Plan reflected the in-year deliverables against the priorities
which had been agreed as part of the four-year Corporate Plan, as well as some additional
priorities which had arisen in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, and had been structured
around the following themes:







Our Services
Economic Recovery
Community Recovery
Environmental Recovery
Strategic Planning Frameworks and
Organisational Foundations

He confirmed that a series of priorities had been identified for each theme, with
each of those having a number of committed deliverables for 2022/23, and pointed out
that, in addition to being provided with in-year reports on a number of priorities, the
Committee would receive a six-monthly progress report against all commitments and a
year-end report.
After discussion, the Committee approved the draft Corporate Annual Delivery
Plan for 2022/23.
Ukraine Refugee Scheme
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues

1.1

To update the Committee on the emerging plans to implement
the local response to the ‘Homes for Ukraine’ scheme, which
allows UK individuals, charities, community groups and
businesses to record their interest in supporting Ukrainians
fleeing the war.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to note:


the work that is ongoing with The Executive Office, DfC,
NIHE and across Local Government to plan for local
responses to the Ukrainian Refugee Scheme, which was
launched on 14th March; and



that this work is progressing at pace, and it may be
necessary for the Chief Executive to quickly assign

B3990

Page 50

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Council resources to the emerging scheme using his
delegated authority.
3.0

Main Report

3.1

On 14th March, the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing
and Communities, Michael Gove launched the ‘Homes for
Ukraine’ scheme, which allows UK individuals, charities,
community groups and businesses to record their interest in
supporting Ukrainians fleeing the war.

3.2

The Homes for Ukraine scheme will allow individuals, charities,
community groups and businesses in the UK to bring
Ukrainians to safety, including those with no family ties to the
UK. Phase One of the scheme will allow sponsors in the UK
to nominate a named Ukrainian or a named Ukrainian family to
stay with them in their home or in a separate property. The
scheme uses a webpage for sponsors to record their interest,
with the scheme opening for applications on 18th March.

3.3

The scheme will operate in Northern Ireland and The Executive
Office (TEO) plans to strongly encourage expressions of
interest in the provision of accommodation from both
individuals and organisations. Whilst not all the details have
yet been announced by Westminster, TEO is working at pace,
making preparations so they can provide sanctuary to
Ukrainian refugees.

3.4

Mindful of the pressure on social housing stock, TEO officials
are engaging with councils and the voluntary and community
sector to find creative ways of bringing suitable
accommodation into use and identifying all available capacity.
TEO is also in close contact with the Home Office and the
Department for Levelling Up, Communities and Housing and
with colleagues in other jurisdictions.
Indicative areas of Focus for Local Government

3.5

TEO has stated that partnership working will be central to
making the best of this scheme and to maximise the positive
impact for refugees more generally. TEO has met with SOLACE
and NILGA to identify how a co-design approach might be
taken.

3.6

The indicative workstreams that will involve Local Government
are likely to include:

B3991

Page 51

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022



Possible design and delivery of Welcome Centres in
their local areas, in partnership with public sector
organisations and community and voluntary sector.
This will include orientation centres, as well as
centres with accommodation for short stays. NIHE is
also looking at the option of a single regional
Welcome Centre.



Provision of local knowledge and information to inform
the capacity exercise being led by NI Housing Executive
as well as on an ongoing basis.



Communications in liaison with a central comms
team that will be established by TEO with Council
colleagues.

Next Steps
3.7

Further co-design meetings will be arranged with agreed
points of contacts for each council and there will be further
meetings with TEO, DfC and others commencing as soon as
possible. SOLACE is represented on the Strategic Planning
Group (SPG) chaired by TEO and BCC is represented on the
regional planning group for local government. A central
comms working group has also been established and BCC is
represented in this group. Regular updates on the refugee
scheme will be provided to Elected Members as further details
emerge.

3.8

The original ambition was to stand Welcome Centres in each
council up by end of March 2022 and evolve thereafter.
A recent readout from the SPG indicates that NIHE is now
considering a single regional Welcome Centre. BCC has
established an internal working group and will continue to
work with partner organisations as the operating model and
role of local government emerges. BCC has requested an
ongoing readout of numbers and locations from the on-line
sponsor and refugee registration system, which should
identify the locations of sponsors where refugees will be based
and provide an indication of scale.

3.9

Financial and Resource Implications
BCC costs to support the refugee programme will be estimated
as the programme develops. TEO has indicated that councils
will need to make use of existing resources as far as possible

B3992

Page 52

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

in the first instance. However, TEO recognises that additional
resources may be required as action plans are costed.
3.10

Equality or
Assessment

Good

Relations

Implications/Rural

Needs

The programme to support Ukrainian refugees will be subject
to equality, good relations and rural needs considerations.”
After discussion, the Committee noted the contents of the report.
UK - Republic of Korea
Innovation Twins Programme
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues

1.1

To seek Committee approval of a Statement of Intent to support
ongoing collaboration with the city of Sejong (South
Korea). A pre-recording of the signing of the Statement by the
Chief Executive will feature as part of a virtual International
Showcase Day with Sejong on 30th March, which will mark the
culmination of this last phase of the project.

1.2

To provide an update on the virtual international Showcase
Day on March 30th and planned agenda.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:
i

approve the Statement of Intent - which has been
developed with support from key institutions across
the city - to progress opportunities for collaboration
with the city of Sejong in South Korea; and

ii

note the arrangements for a joint city to city virtual
international showcase day on March 30th, which will
feature a pre-recording of the signing of the Statement
of Intent by the Chief Executive.

3.0

Main Report

3.1

At the Committee meeting in November 2021, Members were
presented with details of the Council’s participation in the ‘UKRepublic of Korea Innovation Twins’ programme1 which was

B3993

Page 53

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

set up by the Connected Places Catapult and funded by BEIS
and UKRI.
3.2

The programme aims to build relationships between smart
cities with high potential for accelerating long term R and I
collaborations and generating opportunities for trade and FDI.
Committee has also received regular updates on the
programme and has been made aware of the development of a
Statement of Intent to support ongoing collaboration and this
is now being submitted for approval.

3.3

While not legally binding, the Statement sets out areas of
shared interest which will form the basis for ongoing
cooperation between Sejong and Belfast. These include smart
cities, medtech, cyber security, fintech, academic, educational
and cultural cooperation, economic development and
opportunities for bilateral trade and investment.

3.4

The Statement of Intent has been developed in conjunction
with our colleagues in the city of Sejong in South Korea and
with support from Invest NI who are in the process of
developing a presence there. It will facilitate opportunities for
mutual benefit between both cities and make it possible to
unlock further funding from BEIS post March, 2022.

3.5

It has also been discussed with Colin Crooks, the newly
appointed UK Ambassador to South Korea. Following a
meeting led by the City Innovation team with representatives
from Queens University, Ulster University, Health Innovation
Research Alliance and QUBIS, Ambassador Crooks has taken
the opportunity to table areas of interest detailed in the
Statement with the Mayor of Sejong to promote future
collaboration.

3.6

With Committee approval, a pre-recording of the signing of the
Statement of Intent by the Chief Executive will be shown on
March 30th, at a virtual international Showcase Day (organised
and funded by Connected Places Catapult) to mark the
culmination of the UK innovation twins programme.

3.7

Ian Greer, Vice-chancellor of Queens University and Chair of
Innovation City Belfast will provide a keynote speech at the
showcase event, setting out the city’s innovation ambitions
and sector strengths and addressing the benefits of bilateral
engagement between Belfast and Sejong, potential outcomes
and impact for both cities. Invest NI will outline their role to

B3994

Page 54

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

support international trade and showcase companies currently
doing business and who wish to do business in South Korea.
3.8

Deborah Colville will present at the event on the theme of
Smart Cities and Belfast Digital Innovation investments and
John Greer will attend a panel session to outline how
opportunities can be further developed between Belfast and
Sejong beyond the current programme.

3.9

Local companies who have received funding (from a total
budget of c £100k as part of the Innovation Twins programme)
will also have the opportunity to show-case their innovative
products or services at the event. Eight companies in total
have been successful in their application for funding and will
present on a range of products relating to areas such as
encouraging recycling behaviour, fitness hubs, virtual tourism,
community rewards programmes, last mile delivery, safer
cycling, and personal safety.

3.10

There are also opportunities for companies not directly
involved in the programme but who wish to explore
business/collaboration in Sejong/South Korea to profile their
work within a virtual exhibition space.

3.11

Work undertaken to develop an ‘Innovative Procurement
Playbook’ will also feature as part of the event. The Playbook
will capture the learning from the full programme and support
local councils and public sector bodies across the UK to find
better ways to procure more innovative solutions and
services. It will also include learning from the delivery of a
training programme delivered to local SMEs, and to council
officers (who took part in the programme) to build their
capacity to engage in challenge-led competitions.

3.12

The training for both officers and for SMEs will provide useful
preparation and learning for the council to ensure that we are
able to maximise the innovation opportunities offered by the
Belfast Region City Deal challenge funds and in particular
the Innovation for Societal Impact fund which is in
development.

3.13

Financial and Resource Implications
The programme requires officer time commitment from across
the Departments.

3.14

Equality or Good Relations Implications / Rural Needs
Assessment
None.”

B3995

Page 55

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

STATEMENT OF INTENT

Statement of Intent between Sejong City and Belfast

This Statement of Intent is intended to set out areas of shared interest which will
form the basis for cooperation between Sejong and Belfast to support their city
twinning project as well as other relevant activities.

The cities of Sejong and Belfast wish to explore opportunities for long-term city to
city relationships which, inter alia, contribute to shared economic prosperity,
enhance bilateral trade and investment and accelerate research and innovation for
both cities. Cooperation between both cities will also include the promotion of skills
development and job creation in both regions, business growth, market access for
participating entities, shared socioeconomic prosperity and lasting research and
innovation to address city challenges.
Both cities, working together for the purposes of this Statement of Intent, will
consider their cooperation in such particular areas of interest as follow but are not
exclusive to:












smart cities, cyber security, fintech, medtech, regtech, enabling and
emerging technologies
regulatory sandboxes
research and innovation contributing to mobility, health and wellbeing,
advanced manufacturing, net zero, sustainable and resilient cities.
innovation eco-systems and innovative procurement.
economic development and diversification.
start-up and SME support.
academic, educational and cultural cooperation.
opportunities for bilateral trade and investment, as appropriate, supported
by Invest Northern Ireland

In accordance with the principles of equality and mutual benefit, both cities will
explore opportunities to carry out cooperation in various forms to support the areas
listed above.
Both cities will conduct regular visits and exchanges to strengthen further their
friendly and cooperative relationships and will exchange information on the areas
listed above as applicable.

B3996

Page 56

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

This Statement of Intent is not a legally binding document and will not be deemed
to constitute or create any legally binding or enforceable obligations, express or
implied.
It will come into effect on the date of signing and will be reviewed on an annual
basis.

Signed on behalf of Sejong City

Signed on behalf of Belfast City
Council

Name:

Name:

Title:

Title:

Date:

Date:
The Committee adopted the recommendations.

UEFA Conference League Final 2023
(Mr. J. Greer, Director of Economic Development, attended in connection with this
item.)
The Director of Economic Development reminded the Committee that Belfast had,
in August 2021, hosted the UEFA Super Cup final in the National Stadium. The Council
had allocated £200,000 to the event, which had been used primarily for city animation, fan
mobility and fan experience, a formal dinner in the City Hall and other City logistics.
He reviewed the overall impact of the event and confirmed that the Council had
now received from the Irish Football Association a request to support its bid for the UEFA
Conference League Final in 2023. This competition was now in its second year and
infrastructure and expectations for the event would be similar to that of the UEFA Super
Cup Final. The timelines for UEFA’s evaluation phase was as follows:


February/March, 2022 - Potential site visits by UEFA



April 2022 - Evaluation completed



May 2022 - Appointment of the Host Association by UEFA’s
Executive Committee

He reported that the Lord Mayor had, at the request of the Irish Football
Association, issued on behalf of the Council a letter of support prior to the deadline for
bids expiring in February. The letter did not commit the Council to any financial outlay.
UEFA had since requested the Council to sign a ‘Host City Authority Undertaking’ letter to
further confirm its support for the Irish Football Association’s bid. That letter had set out a
number of obligations which the host City would have to meet in order to host the event.
It had been reviewed by the Legal Services section, which had advised that Committee
approval would be required prior to the Council agreeing to the terms of the document.

B3997

Page 57

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

The Director pointed out that, should the bid be successful, it was anticipated that
the Council would again be requested to provide funding for the event, with the amount
potentially being similar to that which had been allocated to the UEFA Super Cup final,
given that the events were similar in profile. He drew the Committee’s attention to a
number of significant major events which were due to take place in 2023 and confirmed
that no financial provision had been made in the medium term for the UEFA Conference
League Final.
After discussion, the Committee agreed:
i.

to note the details of the imminent bid by the Irish Football
Association to host the UEFA Conference League Final 2023;

ii.

that the Council would support the bid by the Irish Football
Association;

iii.

to note that, should the bid be successful:
a. it would potentially lead to a future request for financial
support, which had not been factored into medium-term
financial planning; and
b. a report would be presented to the Committee outlining
the resource implications for the Council and providing
details of funding from other sources; and

iv.

authorised officers to engage with the Irish Football Association
in the development process.
Physical Programme and Asset Management

Asset Management
The Director of Physical Programmes submitted for Committee’s consideration a
report seeking approval in relation to the following asset related disposal, acquisition and
estate matters:
Suffolk Playing Fields - Grant of Cable Easement
and Right of Way to NIE Networks Ltd.


The Committee approved the surrender of two cable easements
and the grant of a new cable easement and right of way to NIE
Networks Ltd.

2 Royal Avenue – Licence for Hoarding


The Committee approved a licence agreement with Bennett
(Construction) Ltd. to formalise the arrangement for the hoarding
around the Primark building, which encroaches onto Council land at
2 Royal Avenue.

B3998

Page 58

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Hit the North Arts Festival 2022


The Committee noted the inclusion of ‘Site 10’ in the City centre as
part of the Hit the North Festival on 1st May, 2022.

Update on Area Working Groups
The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of:


the North Belfast Area Working Group of 23rd February, subject to
the inclusion of a declaration of interest which had been made at
the meeting by Councillor Pankhurst to reflect that he was on the
Board of the Cultural Community Hub, which had been allocated
funding under the Belfast Investment Fund;



the West Belfast Area Working Group of 24th February;



the South Belfast Area Working Group of 28th February; and



the East Belfast Area Working Group of 3rd March.
Finance, Procurement and Performance

Requests for Funding
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the following requests for funding, which
fell under the Council’s discretionary expenditure policy:
Glór na Móna
The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources informed the
Committee that a request had been received from Glór na Móna for funding of £86,000 to
cover the 2022/23 financial year. The request had followed a decision by the Education
Authority not to allocate a budget for that period and, if approved, would secure five youth
worker posts and the continuation of Irish medium youth services in the Upper Springfield
area.
In response to issues which had been raised by some Members around the
request, he confirmed that, if the Committee was to agree to provide the £86,000, it would
be paid in four equal tranches. Should the ongoing discussions between Glór na Móna
and the Education Authority lead to funding being reinstated, the Council would seek to
recoup funding which it had provided during any period of overlap.
On that basis, the Committee agreed to allocate £86,000 to Glór na Móna and
granted approval for Elected Members to engage with Glór na Móna and the Education
Authority, if required.

B3999

Page 59

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Malone Tornadoes Rugby Football Club
The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources reported that
Malone Tornadoes Rugby Football Club had requested that the Council provide £10,000
towards the estimated overall cost of between £30,000 and £35,000 required to secure
the club’s participation in the third International Mixed Ability World Cup Rugby
Tournament being held in Cork between 5th and 10th June, 2022.
The Committee agreed to allocate £10,000 to the Club.
Update on Contracts
The Committee:


approved the public advertisement of tenders, as per Standing
Order 37a, as detailed in Table 1 below;



approved the award of Single Tender Actions, in line with Standing
Order 55 exceptions, as detailed in Table 2 below;



approved the modification of the contract, as per Standing Order
37a, as detailed in Table 3 below; and



noted the award of retrospective Single Tender Actions, in line with
Standing Order 55 exceptions, as detailed in Table 3 below.
Table 1: Competitive Tenders

Title of Tender

Supply and delivery of
steeled wheeled bins,
castors and all supporting
spare parts
Email filtering solution to
help prevent spam,
phishing attacks and other
malicious email
Provision of legionella
monitoring & risk
management programme
at BCC properties
Design and build of a
mobile responsive and
accessible website for

Estimated
Total
Contract
Value

SRO

Up to 2
years

£100,000

S Toland
/R
Crozier

Up to 3
years

£48,000

R
Cregan

Proposed
Contract
Duration

Up to 5
years
Up to 4
years &
3 months

Short description of
goods / services

Supply of
commercial bins and
spare parts for
repair
To reduce risk of
infection or loss of
data from malicious
email

£250,000

S Grimes

Statutory
compliance
requirement

£45,000

R
Cregan

There is currently no
standalone website
for the BRCD

B4000

Page 60

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Title of Tender

Proposed
Contract
Duration

Estimated
Total
Contract
Value

SRO

Belfast Region City Deal
(BRCD) and implement a
web CMS

T2119 - Supply of bottled
and mains-fed water with
dispensers across BCC
offices and sites

Up to 3
years

£50,000

R
Cregan

Multi supplier framework
agreement for the
provision of marketing
services for the Marketing
and Corporate Comms
Business Area of BCC

Up to 4
years

N/A

J Tully

In-depth technical
research and guidance to
help Digital Services
advance the
initiatives/projects that
support execution of the IT
strategy

Up to 2
years

£39,600

R
Cregan

B4001

Page 61

Short description of
goods / services

programme. The
information is
currently on a
landing page on
BCC’s website.
Supply of bottled
and mains-fed water
with dispensers
across BCC offices
and sites. This is a
continuing
requirement as
kitchens throughout
Council buildings
need to be
refurbished to
provide safe drinking
water and public
access areas need
to have a supply of
water
BCC target a
number of
audiences with our
Marketing and
Communication
activities: residents,
businesses,
potential investors,
tourists (local and
international) and
students that come
to study in Belfast
Use proven
reference
architecture to
develop technology
architecture
Receive
organisation-specific
guidance through
calls with analysts

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Title of Tender

Proposed
Contract
Duration

Estimated
Total
Contract
Value

SRO

Multi supplier framework
agreement for the
provision of technical
support, advice and
research and economic
analysis support service
for the Labour Market
Partnership, Employability
& Skills, Enterprise &
Business Growth
departments as well as the
wider Economic
Development division and
BRCD
Suppliers on the
framework will have not
have a guarantee of any
work

Up to 5
years

Up to
£4,000,000

A Reid

T2210 - professional
congress/conference
organiser required for One
Young World 2023
conference

Up to 20
months

£2,700,000

A Reid

B4002

Page 62

Short description of
goods / services

Leverage industry
best practices to
avoid costly
mistakes
Enables Digital
Services to stay
current with
changing markets
and technologies
The tender will
provide technical
assistance and
economic data
analysis as part of
an intelligence-led
approach, based on
robust economic
data and strong
consultation and
research with
relevant
stakeholders in the
city.
*Note - approval
granted Oct 2021 for
4.5 year at £225k
which for Labour
Market Partnership
only. Requesting
increase to 5 years
and up to a total
value of £4m which
includes potential
use by other
departments in BCC
The contractor will
be entitled to a
management fee of
£250k but will be
responsible for
managing the
overall budget for
the event £2.7m.

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Title of Tender

Proposed
Contract
Duration

Estimated
Total
Contract
Value

Short description of
goods / services

SRO

*Note - approval
granted Sept 2021
for £175k.
Requesting
increased to £2.7m.
Of this £1m is
funding coming from
NI Executive to BCC
and a further
£350,000 from BCC
directly with the
remaining to be
raised from the
private sector.

New camera and
microphone system for the
Committee Rooms

Design, provision and
management of a
meanwhile use at 2 Royal
Avenue

1 off
purchase

Up to 2
years

£49,816

To prepare the
Committee Rooms
to hold hybrid
meetings

J Walsh

£1,200,000

A Reid

Agreement to deliver
meanwhile use at 2
Royal Avenue until
end of temporary
planning permission

Table 2: Single Tender Actions
Title

Total
Value

Renewal of support and maintenance for SSA
(Spectrum Spatial Analyst) software
Renewal of support and maintenance for
MapInfo mapping software
Belfast City brand advertising at George Best
Belfast City Airport
Extension of the design and build contract for
ongoing corporate website development and
development of additional BCC websites

SRO

Supplier

£45,000

R Cregan

CDR Group

£57,000

R Cregan

CDR Group

£30,000

J Tully

£170,000

R Cregan

B4003

Page 63

George Best
Belfast City
Airport
Simply
Zesty UK
Ltd

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Table 3: Modification to Contract
Title of Contract
T2084 (b) Provision of a ‘Shared
History, Heritage and Identity
Content / Narratives for
Interpretative Panels on Shared
Space Greenway’ PEACE IV
Programme Services
T1710 - Provision of a cleaning
service at Belfast Castle, Malone
House, The Stables and Lock
Keepers Cottage
T1870 Tender for the Maintenance
and Removal of Flower Displays

Duration Modification

SRO

Supplier

Up to 16
months

Additional 3
months

S Toland
/R
Crozier

Mediation
NI

Up 5
years

Additional 3
months and
£20,000

S Toland
/R
Crozier

Precision
Industrial
Services

Up 3
years

Additional 3
months and
£16,000

S Toland
Clive
/R
Richardson
Crozier
Ltd

Table 4: Retrospective Single Tender Actions
Title of Contract
Delivery of a feasibility study and
essential public engagement work
for the Urban Forest project at 2
Royal Avenue
(Part funded)
Company required to produce and
action a detailed and robust Venue
Management Plan to cover
operational and event needs at 2
Royal Avenue
(fully funded)
Increase connectivity between the
city centre and neighbourhoods
through thematically aligned
programmes at 2 Royal Avenue
(fully funded)
Develop and deliver an extensive
Marcomms campaign to support
the reopening of the city at 2 Royal
Avenue
(fully funded)

Duration

Value

SRO

Supplier

Up to 1
month

£100,000

A Reid

The Eden
Trust

Up to 4
months

£100,000

A Reid

Smallworld
Music

Up to 1
month

£54,000

A Reid

BDA
Property
Projects Ltd

Up to 6
weeks

£125,000

A Reid

Visit Belfast

CIPFA Prudential Code Capital Strategy and
Treasury Management Indicators 2022-23

B4004

Page 64

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources submitted for
the Committee’s consideration the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The Local Government Finance Act (NI) 2011 and the
supporting Prudential and Treasury Codes produced by
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA), require the Council to consider the affordability and
sustainability of capital expenditure decisions through the
reporting of prudential and treasury management indicators.

1.2

The Prudential Code requires the Council to produce a Capital
Strategy for 2022/23. This report provides information for
the Committee on the Capital Strategy, incorporating the
prudential indicators for Belfast City Council for the period
2022/23 to 2024/25, and the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy for 2022/23.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:
i note the contents of this report and the prudential and
treasury management indicators included within the
appendices;
and agree:
ii the Authorised Borrowing Limit for the Council of
£147m for 2022/23; and
iii the Treasury Management Strategy for 2022/23, which
has been included as Appendix 2 to this report.

3.0

Main Report

3.1

The Local Government Finance Act (NI) 2011 requires the
Council to adopt the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance
in Local Authorities. In doing so, the Council is required to
agree a minimum revenue provision policy annually and to set
and monitor a series of Prudential Indicators, the key
objectives of which are to ensure that, within a clear
framework, the capital investment plans of the council are
affordable, prudent and sustainable.

3.2

At the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee on the
9 December 2011, Members approved the Council’s Treasury
Management Policy which is based on the CIPFA
Treasury Management Code of Practice.
The Treasury

B4005

Page 65

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Management Policy requires that a Treasury Management
Strategy be presented to the Strategic Policy and Resources
Committee on an annual basis and that it is supported by a
mid-year and year end treasury management reports.
3.3

The Capital Strategy, incorporating the prudential indicators,
is included as Appendix 1, while the Treasury Management
Strategy and treasury management indicators have been
included as Appendix 2.

3.4

The comparison of ‘Gross Borrowing’ to ‘Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR)’ is the main indicator of prudence when
considering the proposed capital investment plans of the
Council. Estimated gross borrowing should not exceed the
CFR for the current year plus two years. The Council’s
estimated gross borrowing position, illustrated in Table 6,
Appendix 1, is comfortably within the CFR in the medium term.
The Director of Finance and Resources therefore considers the
estimated levels of gross borrowing as being prudent.

3.5

Table 10 (Appendix 1) shows the estimated financing costs for
capital expenditure as a percentage of the estimated net
revenue stream for the Council, based on the medium financial
plan. These illustrate that in the medium term, capital
financing costs will represent 8.7% of the Council’s net running
costs. On this basis the Director of Finance and Resources is
satisfied that the level of capital expenditure is affordable.

3.6

The Finance Act requires the Council to set an affordable
borrowing limit, relating to gross debt. The Prudential Code
defines the affordable limit as the ‘Authorised Borrowing Limit’
and gross borrowing must not exceed this limit. Table 8
(Appendix 1) sets out the recommended ‘Authorised
Borrowing Limit’ for the Council as being £147m for 2022/23.

3.7

Financial and Resource Implications
As detailed in the report

3.8

Equality or
Assessment

Good

Relations

Implications/Rural

None.”
The Committee adopted the recommendations.
Equality and Good Relations
Minutes of Meeting of Shared City Partnership

B4006

Page 66

Needs

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of the Shared
City Partnership of 7th March, including the recommendations:
PEACE IV
Secretariat


to delegate authority to the Director of Neighbourhood Services, as
the SRO for PEACE IV, and to the Good Relations Manager to
agree the business case/mitigations required for submission to the
SEUPB, with a further report to be submitted to the Partnership
meeting in April 2022.

Children and Young People
CYP3 On the Right Track


to agree, in principle, a contract uplift of up to 10% of the contract
value, estimated at £20,000, subject to confirmation of costs,
availability of funding and SEUPB approval.

Shared Spaces and Services


to accept the recommendations, possible actions and links to
existing supported project work contained within the MDL Dialogue
and Engagement Project Report.

Building Positive Relations
BPR5 – Roma Project


to extend project delivery until September 2022, as within the
current contract specifications for the Roma project and the
Council’s Letter of Offer.

BPR6 - St. Comgall’s


to agree, in principle, the methodology for content gathering, the
style and layout of the templates for the educational resources and
exhibition materials; and



to delegate authority to the Programme Board to agree the content
of the final resource for a full suite of the educational resources and
exhibition materials, which will also be subject to SEUPB approval.

GOOD RELATIONS
Belfast Agenda Refresh and Action Planning

B4007

Page 67

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022


to note that a supporting action plan would be co-designed with the
Shared City Partnership and partners and brought back for
consideration in due course.

Update on Research on the Experiences of
BAME and Traveller Communities


to agree that the Council uses the underspend of £6,000 identified
in the District Council Good Relations programme to widen the
participation of peer researchers from BAME communities in the
research and to provide a programme of skills development to
enhance their capacity.

Anti-Sectarianism and Good Relations


to receive at a future meeting of the Partnership a presentation from
the Executive Office on its current mapping exercise regarding
support for good relations at a future meeting

Presentation from the Belfast Heath and Social Care Trust


to receive at a future meeting of the Partnership a presentation from
the Belfast Health and Social Care Trust on the development of its
Good Relations Strategy.

Equality and Diversity: Equality Screening
and Rural Needs Outcome Report
The Committee noted the contents of a report providing a summary of equality
screenings and rural needs impact assessments for the period from October to December,
2021.
Annual Day of Reflection
The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 18th February, it had agreed
to adopt a motion in relation to the forthcoming 50th Anniversary of ‘Bloody Friday’.
The Committee had agreed also that Party Leaders would discuss the potential for holding
a separate day of reflection to remember all of the victims of the Troubles in Belfast.
The Director of Neighbourhood Services informed the Committee that the Party
Leaders had subsequently agreed that the Council should host an annual day of reflection,
with the preferred date being 21st June. That would allow it to link into a wider day of
reflection which was organised each year by the Healing Through Remembering
organisation. It was proposed that a space be set aside within the City Hall for quiet
reflection and that the overall format should include poetry, music and some form of
physical animation.
She went on to recommend that the City Hall be illuminated in yellow on 21st June
each year, as that was the colour used to mark the wider day of reflection.

B4008

Page 68

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

After discussion, the Committee granted approval for the Council to hold a Day of
Reflection on 21st June each year and for the City Hall to be illuminated in yellow on each
occasion.
Her Majesty The Queen’s Platinum Jubilee
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with an
update on the funding programme for Her Majesty The Queen’s
Platinum Jubilee.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the report.

3.0

Main Report

3.1

Background
Her Majesty The Queen’s Platinum Jubilee weekend will take
place from Thursday 2nd to Sunday 5th June, inclusive.
At the meeting on 18th February, the Committee agreed to
allocate funding of £100,000 for events to take place in local
communities across the city over the Platinum Jubilee
weekend. The Committee also agreed to engage the services
of the Community Foundation Northern Ireland (CFNI) to
administer the fund, which will allocate a maximum of £2,000
for any group / event to take place.
Officers have been engaging with the Community Foundation
over the past few weeks to finalise the details of the
programme to make sure the funding process is
straightforward and open to as many groups as possible.
Members have also been providing feedback on a number of
important points such as non-constituted groups being able to
access the funding.
The programme is now live, with groups able to apply online
and attend information sessions to find out more about how to
apply, please see the following link for further details
https://communityfoundationni.org/grants/her-majesty-thequeens-platinum-jubilee-fund-for-belfast/.
The following
provides an overview of how the programme will be delivered:

B4009

Page 69

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.2

3.3

Application Timeline:
Stage

Timescale

Open Call

23 March 2022

Close of Applications

11 April 2022

Awards made

W/C 2 May 2022

Delivery

2-5 June 2022

Community Engagement
Venue

Time

Duncairn Community Centre

Tuesday 29 March

Upper Mervue St, BT15 2J
Olympia Leisure Centre

1.00 pm
Wednesday, 30 March
10.15 am

Boucher Rd, BT12 6HR
Inverary Community Centre

Tuesday, 29 March
11.30 am

Inverary Ave, BT4 1RN
Spectrum Centre Café, Shankill Road

Wednesday, 30 March

Belfast

6.00 pm

Online via Zoom

Friday 1 April 11:30

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/6086313480 am
Meeting ID: 608 631 3480

The fund has been advertised via Social media channels and
has been published on the Council’s and CFNI websites.
Any groups who require further information on how to apply
can call the CFNI grants team directly on 028 9024 5927.

B4010

Page 70

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.4

Multiple ‘Umbrella’ applications:
Following discussions with CFNI we have agreed that
‘Umbrella’ organisations can support applications from
community groups who do not have a constitution. However,
this will be up to a limit of £6,000 in total applications, with the
minimum award per group £500, maximum award per group
£2,000. An application for each individual community
group must be received.
The governance arrangements of the CFNI does not directly
support the advancement of religion and/or organisations
whose purposes include the advancement of religion.
To assist such groups in accessing this funding, organisations
with purposes to advance religion, can seek an eligible
umbrella organisation who can submit an application for an
eligible project on their behalf. Alternatively, they can work
with an eligible partner organisation who can act as the lead
applicant.
Information sessions as outlined above will provide support to
groups to enable them to apply or signpost them as
appropriate. Council officers will also be supporting
community groups, providing information and supporting the
application process.

3.5

Payment and Verification
As many of the groups who are accessing this funding, will
have limited financial capacity, successful awards will be paid
100% in advance. All successful applicants will have to return
project monitoring information, with a sample of applicants
subject to full verification and will be asked to submit all
relevant receipts of payments made with the funding.

3.6

Financial and Resource Implications
An additional Budget of £110,000, which includes the amount
required to buy in the services of the Community Foundation,
is being allocated from Departmental budgets.

3.7

Equality or
Assessment

Good

Relations

Implications/Rural

Needs

All events will take equality and good relations implications
into account.”
After discussion, the Committee noted the contents of the report.
‘

B4011

Page 71

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Operational Issues
Update on Recovery of Pest Control Service
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues
As requested at the Council meeting on 10th January 2022, this
report provides an update on the recovery of the Pest Control
Service and on the proposed improvements for a full
resumption of services to pre-Covid levels.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:


note the progress made to date on the recovery of the
pest control service and support the proposed
improvements for full resumption of pest control
services across the district; and



agree that an operational service review be progressed
in 2022/23 with the aim of improving the customer
experience, streamlining processes and improving
effectiveness of service delivery, with a report to come
back to the Committee.

3.0

Main Report

3.1

Members will be aware of the impact that the pandemic had on
our pest control service, with several pest control officers
furloughed April-August 2020. During this time, the service
continued to deliver the sewer baiting programme across the
City and residents were offered advice and information by the
Pest Control Manager. The tenants of social housing were
advised to contact their housing provider to obtain pest control
services.

3.2

The Pest Control service was re-introduced in September 2020,
albeit in a limited capacity. Risk assessment were reviewed
and various covid control measures to protect our staff
implemented, this resulted in a significant reduction in home
treatments compared to normal levels that could be carried
out. Visits therefore had to be prioritised and restricted to only
the most vulnerable and where significant public health issues
were identified. The vast majority of visits carried out were
external only, with officers providing advice and information
by phone.

B4012

Page 72

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.3

In June 2021, internal treatments resumed for rats and mice
only, with the support and guidance of Corporate Health and
Safety and the Trade Unions in order to support a phased
and manageable return. The safety measures introduced
impacted on the number of internal treatments that could be
completed in a day thus at that’s time it was agreed to only
carryout treatments in the private rented and owner-occupied
sector initially. We continued to refer the tenants of social
housing to the Housing Executive and Housing Associations
where private contractors facilitated the service. When the
service resumed, waiting times averaged 3-5 weeks during the
period Jun-Oct 2021.

3.4

In September, the Council’s Chief Executive received
correspondence from Minister Hargey, Department for
Communities raising concerns about its restricted Pest
Control services for NI Housing Executive and Housing
Associations. Following an update on Pest control services on
September 7th to Council members, it was agreed that pest
control services would resume to all tenures. It was also
requested by members that officers would investigate the
establishment of a Service Level Agreement (SLA) with both
the NIHE and Housing Associations with a view to the Council
recouping the costs for these services.

3.5

A meeting was arranged with the NI Housing Executive to
explore the option of an SLA and recouping of costs. The NIHE
officers shared their concerns about ensuring equity across all
constituents and tenures allowing access to BCC pest control
services free of charge.

3.6

The officers expressed the need to ensure their tenants should
be entitled to benefit from the Councils free public health pest
control services. In light of discussions with the NIHE and
taking account of issues of equality for all BCC residents, the
issue of cost recovery for the pest control services would need
to be considered across all sectors at a future point if at all.

3.7

From September 2021 to date, all stakeholders have availed of
the restricted service and waiting times for visits have
averaged 4-5 weeks however this peaked at 7-weeks at the
beginning of January due to a number of officers self-isolating
as a result of the new variant and as a result of demand for
services. The current waiting time for an appointment is now 3
weeks. In January, a high-level service review was carried out
which identified that the scheduling system was inefficient and
offered spare capacity for additional appointments.
The scheduling system was amended which resulted in an
immediate 1-week reduction in the waiting time.

B4013

Page 73

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.8

For the past number of months, the Pest Control service has
not had a full complement of staff, however two open
vacancies have now been filled with 1 x officer starting on
21st March and 1 x Operative starting on 1st April. Waiting
times are, therefore, expected to further reduce once the
personnel have been onboarded. It should be noted that the
Pest Control team has remained the same size for several
years and has not grown with the population of the district.

3.9

The safety of our staff is paramount and we are continuing to
operate with the original Covid restrictions in place. Officers
have a list of questions to ask the householder before entering
the property and they are required to change their PPE
between visits. This system required additional time between
each visit compared to the pre-covid levels and this reduces
the overall capacity for appointments by around 25%. This Risk
Assessment is currently being reviewed with staff and the
trade unions with the ambitions of full resumption of pre-covid
operations and reducing waiting times further.

3.10

Whilst we have navigated the service through Covid and made
operational changes the pest control service was last reviewed
in 2005/06 and the operating environment has since changed.
Our priorities going forward as part of commissioning an
operational review are to provide an exceptional service to all
constituents by:






Resumption of all treatments including fleas, flies,
cockroaches.
Review of scheduling system and time slots and the
systems used to support this.
Review of works planning and area / regional approach
which will offer further efficiencies.
Monitor waiting times and aim to reduce.
The synergies with the customer hub

3.11

Longer term, we would be keen to explore the use of mobile
workflow management software which will improve the
customer experience, offer reductions in our no admission
rates, streamline processes and improve efficiencies. A report
will be brought back to committee on the findings of the review.

3.12

Finally, as part of the City Services transformation project,
Ms. Helen Morrissey has been appointed as the City Protection
Manager – Neighbourhood and will oversee the Pest Control
function in the new financial year among other functions.

B4014

Page 74

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

3.13

Financial and Resource Implications
There are no additional financial implications associated with
this report.
With the exception of wasps, the Council continues to provide
the service on a free of charge basis. We will commission a
review during 2022/23 and the costs for this will be met from
the existing City and Neighbourhood Services’ revenue
budget.

3.14

Equality or
Assessment

Good

Relations

Implications/Rural

Needs

There are no implications associated with this report.”
After discussion, the Committee adopted the recommendations.
Minutes of Meeting of Party Group
Leaders' Consultative Forum
The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meetings of the Party
Group Leaders’ Consultative Forum of 16th and 21st March.
Minutes of Meeting of Active Belfast Limited Board
The Committee noted the minutes of the meeting of the Active Belfast Limited
Board of 7th March.
Minutes of Meeting of Social Policy Working Group
The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of the Social
Policy Working Group of 28th February.
Requests for use of the City Hall
and the Provision of Hospitality
The Committee agreed to adopt the recommendations made in respect of those
applications received up to 11th March, as set out below:
NAME OF
ORGANISATION

FUNCTION
DATE

QUB Secure
Connected
Intelligence
Summit

17 May
2022

FUNCTION
CRITERIA
DESCRIPTION
MET
2022 EVENTS
Conference
A &B
Reception and
Dinner for guests
attending the
summit
showcasing
activities around
Global Innovation

B4015

Page 75

ROOM
CHARGE

HOSPITALITY
OFFERED

CIVIC HQ
RECOMMEND

No
(waived as
linked BCC
City Deal)

No hospitality

Approve
No Charge
No hospitality

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Institute (GII) in
connection with
the Belfast
Region City Deal.
Numbers
attending - 60
SMARTS PR
Agency

27 May
2022

BT Staff
Recognition
Reception –
morning
reception as part
of a day long
showcase of
Belfast and local
venues to reward
and recognize
key BT staff.

A &B

Charge
(commercial
company)

No hospitality

Approve
Charge £115
No hospitality

D

No
(Voluntary/
NFP)

No hospitality

Approve
No Charge
No hospitality
1 in 3 rule

B

Charge
£300

No Hospitality

Approve
Charge £300
No hospitality

D

No
(Voluntary/
NFP)

No hospitality

Approve
No Charge
No hospitality
1 in 3 rule

Numbers
attending - 150
Insurance
Institute of
Northern Ireland

27 May
2022

Insurance
Institute of
Northern Ireland
Annual Awards
Ceremony presentation of
awards and
certificates
followed by buffet
reception
Numbers
attending - 150

Northern Ireland
Chamber of
Commerce and
Industry

24 June
2022

Annual
President’s
Lunch – annual
lunch for the NI
Chamber of
Commerce and
Industry to mark
economic
benefits to the
City.
Numbers
attending – 400

Clonduff Football
Club

25 June
2022

End of Season
Awards
Ceremony and
Buffet
Presentation of
trophies to
children

B4016

Page 76

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

recognising and
rewarding their
efforts and
achievements.
Special
recognition
awards to
outstanding
members.
Numbers
attending – 350
Belfast Pride

22nd July
2022

30th Anniversary
Belfast Pride
Launch and
Pride Awards –
LGBT Community
awards
ceremony. Drinks
reception
followed by
Awards
presentation.

A, C & D

No,
(Charity)

Yes,
Wine
Reception as
significant
anniversary

Approve
No charge
Wine
Reception or
£500 given to
their chosen
caterer for
wine on tables

Numbers
attending – 350

Belfast One BID

13 & 14th
August
2022

Belfast One-Way
Edit Fashion
Show
showcasing city
centre retailers

B

Yes £300

No hospitality

Approve
Charge £300
No hospitality

Ulster Obstetrics
and
Gynaecological
Society

7 October
2022

70th Anniversary
Gala Dinner to
celebrate the
BSA promoting
highest standard
of legal practice.

C

No
(Voluntary/
NFP)

Yes,
Wine
Reception as
significant
anniversary

Approve
No charge
Wine
Reception or
£500 given to
their chosen
caterer for
wine on tables

No (charity)

No hospitality
(funding
provided)

Approve
No Charge
No hospitality

Numbers
attending – 150

Holocaust
Memorial Day
Trust

24 January
2023

Northern Ireland
regional
ceremony to
mark Holocaust
Memorial Day
2023 - a time for
all to remember
the millions of
people killed in
the Holocaust
and subsequent

2023
C

B4017

Page 77

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

genocides in
Cambodia,
Rwanda, Bosnia
and Darfur..
The event is the
official Northern
Ireland
commemoration
of the Holocaust.

Association of
Breast Surgery

14 May
2023

Numbers
attending – 400 500
Conference
Welcome
Reception for
guests attending
their 2-day
conference taking
place in ICC
Belfast.

A &B

No
(waived as
linked to
Visit
Belfast)

No hospitality

Approve
No Charge
No hospitality

A &B

No
(waived as
linked to
Visit
Belfast)

No hospitality

Approve
No Charge
No hospitality

A &B

No
(waived as
linked to
Visit
Belfast)

No hospitality

Approve
No Charge
No hospitality

Numbers
attending - 200
AMOSSHE, The
Student Services
Organisation

6 July
2023

AMOSSHE Gala
Reception
guests attending
their flagship
conference taking
place in ICC
Belfast.
Numbers
attending - 250

Stena Line part
of Stena Sphere
group

22
September
2023

Annual
Conference
Reception and
Dinner for global
directors’
attending the 3day conference
taking place in
ICC Belfast.
Numbers
attending - 300

*For all events noted above numbers and room layout will be reviewed and revised in
line with COVID19 social distancing guidelines at the time of each event.

B4018

Page 78

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

Requests for the use of the City Hall Grounds
The Committee approved the following requests for the use of the City Hall
Grounds and noted that each organiser would be required to submit an event
management plan and risk assessment in advance of their event:


25th June - 100th Anniversary Celebration of St John’s Cadets



16th and 17th July - Belfast One Cinema Screenings; and



6th August - The National Youth Junior Choir of Northern Ireland
Performance.

Minutes of Meeting of Audit and Risk Panel
The Committee noted the key issues which had been discussed at the meeting of
the Audit and Risk Panel on 8th March and approved and adopted the minutes of the
meeting.
Minutes of Meeting of City Hall/City Hall
Grounds Installations Working Group
The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of the City
Hall/City Hall Grounds Installations Working Group of 16th February.
Minutes of Language Strategy Working Group
The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of the Language
Strategy Working Group of 15th March.
Minutes of Meeting of Customer Focus
Task and Finish Working Group
The Committee approved and adopted the minutes of the meeting of the Customer
Focus Task and Finish Working Group of 10th March.
Issues Raised in Advance by Members
Illumination of Belfast Castle - The Samaritans
The Committee was reminded that the Standards and Business Committee, at its
meeting on 22nd February, had considered the following motion which had been proposed
by Councillor Kyle and seconded by Councillor Lyons:
“This Council commends and recognises the extraordinary efforts of the
Samaritans during the period of Covid-19 and beyond. The ability of the
volunteers to react quickly and effectively during the pandemic and to
continue to offer support to anyone who needs a listening ear, day or night,
365 days a year, is to be commended.

B4019

Page 79

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee,
Monday, 28th March, 2022

The Council also recognises the mental health challenges facing our
society and agrees to illuminate the Belfast Castle in green (Samaritan
colours) to mark the Longest Night on 21st December, to show people that
the Samaritans are always there for them.”
The Committee had agreed that that element of the motion specifically requesting
the illumination of the Belfast Castle on 21st December be referred to the Strategic Policy
and Resources Committee for consideration.
It was pointed out that the proposer had originally requested that the City Hall be
illuminated on 21st December. However, upon being advised that this was not possible
due to the Christmas lighting, he had agreed to amend his motion to call for Belfast Castle
to be illuminated on that date instead.
The Committee approved the request to illuminate Belfast Castle in green on the
night of 21st December.

Chairperson

B4020

Page 80

Agenda Item 7
People and Communities Committee
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

HYBRID MEETING OF THE
PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

Members present: Councillor Cobain (Chairperson);
Alderman Copeland;
Councillors Baker, Black, Bunting, Michael Collins,
Corr, de Faoite, Flynn, Garrett, M. Kelly, Magee,
McAteer, Newton, Smyth and Verner.
Also attended:

Councillor O’Hara.

In attendance:

Mr. R. Black, Director of Neighbourhood Services;
Mrs. S. Toland, Director of City Services;
Mrs. C. Matthews, Director of Resources and Fleet;
Mrs. L. McLornan, Democratic Services Officer; and
Mrs. S. Steele, Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies
Apologies for inability to attend were recorded on behalf of Alderman McCoubrey and
Councillors McReynolds and Mulholland.
Condolences
The Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, extended his condolences to Councillor
Mulholland on the recent death of her father.
Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of 8th February were taken as read and signed as correct.
It was reported that the minutes had been adopted by the Council at its meeting on
1st March.
Declarations of Interest
Councillor Corr declared an interest in item 2 (c) Belfast Citywide Tribunal Service in
that he was an employee of Falls Community Council who were in receipt of funding.
The following Members declared an interest in item 2 (e) in relation to the Community
Provision Grant Funding Update, as they either worked for or were associated with an
organisation in receipt of funding from the DfC. All Members left the meeting whilst the matter
was being discussed.

C2168

Page 81

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022





Councillor Black, on the basis that she managed the Grosvenor Community
Centre;
Councillor Verner, in that she was an employee of the Greater Shankill
Partnership (Spectrum Centre);
Councillor Corr, in that he was an employee of Falls Community Council;
and
Alderman Copeland as her daughter was chair of the GVRT.

Councillor Smyth declared an interest in item 5 (a) Partners Agreements Update and
Rosario Youth Centre request, in that he was a Member of Ulidia Playing Fields Steering
Committee. As there was no discussion on the report he was not required to leave the
meeting.
Mr. R. Black
The Members were informed that this would be the last meeting of the People and
Communities Committee which would be attended by Mr. Ryan Black, Director of
Neighbourhood Services, as he would be leaving the Council at the end of the week to take
up the post of Strategic Director of Communities and Place with Mid Ulster District Council.
The Chairperson and several other Members thanked the Director for his valuable
contribution during his time with the Council and wished him well in his new role.
The Director thanked the Members for their kind remarks.
Restricted
The information contained in the reports associated with the following 5 items
is restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act
(Northern Ireland) 2014.
Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the Members of the
Press and public from the Committee meeting during discussion on the
following 5 items as, due to their nature, there would be a disclosure of exempt
information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.
Financial Reporting Quarter 3 2021/22
The Committee noted the contents of a report which summarised the Quarter 3
financial position for the People and Communities Committee, which had an under-spend of
£3.26m (5.1%), with the forecast year end position being an under spend of £1.95m (2.3%)
which was within the acceptable variance limit of 3%.
The Committee noted that the main reasons for the quarter 3 Committee under-spend
related to vacant posts across a number of services, the receipt of additional income and the
timing of grants and programmes.
The Committee noted the Quarter 3 financial position and the associated financial
reporting pack.

C2169

Page 82

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

Review of the Bright Lights
Event at Botanic Gardens
The Director of Neighbourhood Services referred the Members to the preliminary
findings of the review of the recent Bright Lights event that had been delivered by Wonderland
Promotions Ltd. during November, December 2021 and January 2022.
The report highlighted that ticket sales had been much lower than predicted and also
referred to a number of complaints that had been received in regard to ticket pricing, the length
of time the park was disrupted and the lack of value for money for the experience. It also
noted that the Council’s Environmental Health Section had dealt with several complaints
around the environmental impact of the event in the area.
The Director advised that the organiser had acknowledged that there were areas that
needed to be improved before the proposed December 2022 event and he drew the Members’
attention to draft proposals that had been submitted by the promoter. He also detailed that
the promoter had indicated that he would be willing to attend a future meeting to address the
issues raised directly.
Discussion ensued regarding the number of complaints received, the lack of
community engagement undertaken by the promoter and the overall environmental impact on
the park.
It was subsequently,
Moved by Councillor Smyth,
Seconded by Councillor Flynn,
“That the Committee agrees to revoke the licence to Wonderland
Promotions Ltd. for all future ‘Bright Light Events’ at Botanic Gardens.”
Amendment
Moved by Councillor Cobain,
Seconded by Councillor Garrett,
“That any decision regarding future events be deferred to enable the
promoter to attend a future meeting of the Committee, where the concerns
highlighted and proposed areas for change to the event scheduled for 2022
could be considered.”
On a vote, fourteen Members voted for the amendment and 2 against, and it was
declared carried. The amendment was put as the substantive motion and passed.
Belfast Citywide Tribunal Service
The Director of Neighbourhood Services took the Committee through the details of a
request received from the Belfast Citywide Tribunal Service (BCTS) seeking financial support
for the 2022/23 financial year at a total cost of £342,278.

C2170

Page 83

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

He provided an overview of the work of the BCTS and reminded the Members that it
also comprised the following 5 area consortia which received financial support from the
Council for the provision of generalist advice services:






North Belfast Advice Consortium;
East Belfast Advice Partnership;
West Belfast Advice Consortium;
South Belfast Independent Advice Group; and
Central Belfast Advice Consortium.

The Committee was reminded that, in the 2021/22 financial year, the Council and the
Department for Communities (DFC) had provided a total amount of £198,900 towards
the costs of delivering the Belfast Citywide Tribunal Service. This funding had been in
response to a total funding request for the service of £257,000 and had included £128,500 of
direct Council funding and £70,400 received from DfC towards Welfare Reform Mitigations Tribunal Representation.
The Director detailed that, in addition to this financial support towards running costs,
the service had also received £15,000 to develop a 3–5-year business plan. He advised that
it was anticipated that this plan would help enable the BCTS to secure sustainable mediumterm funding and to avoid the pattern where the service sought funding from the Council on
an annual short-term basis. The plan was currently still being development in conjunction with
Council officers and he drew the Members’ attention to a draft that had been circulated with
the agenda. Currently there was insufficient information in the draft plan to assess the level of
investment that would bring maximum benefit to the residents of Belfast.
The Director advised that the Council currently had an available 2022/23 budget of
£90,000 which it could contribute towards the running of the Tribunal Service. In addition, the
DfC had confirmed it would be making another allocation, in line with the 2021/22 award,
towards Welfare Reform Mitigations - Tribunal Representation (£70,400). This would
represent a total available budget of £160,400 to support the operation of BCTS in 2022/23.
He continued that use of the total available budget would leave a shortfall of £181,878 to meet
the full BCTS request for support.
The Members noted that a Notice of Motion was due to be considered at the March
meeting of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee that directly related to the funding
of the BCTS in 2022/23.
The Director continued that, to assess other potential sources of funding for the BCTS,
Council officers had contacted the DfC to explore whether it could offer any direct support.
The DfC officers had advised that they did not anticipate that there would be any open funding
streams to which BCTS could apply. In addition, there was no funds over and above what
had been currently allocated (including the 2022/23 welfare reform allocations and
framework). The DfC had scheduled a strategic planning day for regional advice services in
March and had suggested that this would present an opportunity to review and consider any
future advice funding framework.
During discussion the Members noted that any additional allocation would need to be
considered by the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee. It was suggested and

C2171

Page 84

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

unanimously agreed that the £70,400, which was still subject to formal confirmation from the
DfC, would be ringfenced for use by the Service.
Following consideration, the Committee:





agreed to provide an award of £90,000 which was within existing 2022/23
budgets;
noted the intention of the Department for Communities (DfC) to continue to
provide £70,400 towards welfare mitigation – tribunal representation during
2022/23 and agreed that this would be ringfenced for use by the Belfast
Citywide Tribunal Service, subject to formal confirmation of the funding
from the DfC; and
noted the total available budget was £160,400 (subject to confirmation).

Wider University and Lower
Ormeau Intervention
The Director of Neighbourhood Services drew the Members’ attention to a report which
provided an overview of the ongoing societal issues in the Wider University and Lower
Ormeau area, along with the proposed approach to try and address these areas of concern
through a ‘Wider University Intervention Proposal’.
He provided a timeline of the positive suggestions put forward by the various
stakeholder groups, one of which was the creation of a delivery group for the area that would
lead on the development of a long-term vision as well as helping to address the immediate
challenges more efficiently.
The Director referred specifically to the ‘Wider University Intervention Proposal’, that
had been developed in collaboration with government departments, and sought to take on
board learning from previous studies and recommendations. The Members were advised that
the proposal included the provision of a dedicated Intervention Manager, that would be jointly
funded by government departments, and employed via the Council, to co-ordinate a
programme of activities that would be agreed by the Community Planning Partners.
He reported that it was anticipated that recruitment for this position would commence in early
March, subject to funding agreements being secured in advance of formal appointment.
The Members noted that the funding contribution of the Partners was as follows:





DfC - £25,000
DfI - £10,000
PHA - £15,000
DPSCP - £15,000

The Director took the Members through the specific details of the Wider University and
Lower Ormeau proposed Intervention along with the details of both the short- and mediumterm objectives. He advised that it was felt that the proposed area-based approach offered a
real opportunity to make a sustained impact in the Wider University area as it focused on how
agencies and city and community partners could work together to tailor resources, projects
and/or interventions where it was believed that opportunities existed to collaborate and
improve outcomes at a local level. It was anticipated that by adopting this approach
sustainable and positive relationships could be built between community stakeholders and

C2172

Page 85

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

key agencies and that service delivery and provision of resources could be better integrated
and aligned.
He then drew the Members’ attention to responses that had been received from the NI
Executive, QUB and the Ulster University following issues raised by the Council in the
Holylands Tsar Notice of Motion which had been passed at the October 2021 Council meeting.
He advised that it was felt that this role and the entire intervention proposal would achieve the
objectives that had been set out in the Motion.
The Committee noted the update in respect of the Wider University and Lower Ormeau
Intervention, and agreed that the proposal also satisfied the objective of the NOM relating to
the Holyland Tsar, which could now be formally closed.
Community Provision Grant Funding 2022/23
(Mrs. M. Higgins, Lead Officer, attended in connection with this item.)
The Director of Neighbourhood Services advised that, as the Members would be
aware, the Department for Communities (DfC) provided an annual grant to the Councils to
help with the delivery of the Community Support Programme (CSP).
He then specifically referred to a statement by the Minister for Communities in
December 2021, when it had been announced that changes were being introduced for
organisations directly funded by the Department to offer funding at a level that would allow
employer organisations in the Sector to offer ‘fair pay’ and associated conditions.
The Members noted the changes, as follows:





allocations to allow employing organisations to ensure Real Living Wage
(RLW);
a consolidated 2% increase on current level of support provided by the
Department for salaried posts (which had been calculated after ensuring
the level of support to meet RLW rates);
a 7% non-consolidated payment (which had been calculated following
application of steps I. and II above); and
an increase in support to allow for an increase in employer’s pension
contributions from the Governments recommended minimum level of 3%
to 5%.

The Director proceeded to outline the proposed approach for allocation of the uplift
which would be applied to organisations supported under the Community Support Programme
with funded staffing costs during 2021/22. The uplift payment, equal to 9% of the funded
staffing costs, would be issued to these organisations for the 2021/22 financial year.
He advised that the Council would request organisations to ensure that this funding was used
in line with DfC guidance around the use of the ‘Fair Funding’ uplift and offer “fair pay” and
associated conditions for those employed in the Voluntary and Community Sector to enable
those employed in the Voluntary and Community Sector to receive RLW rates.

C2173

Page 86

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

The Director advised that the allocations provided by the DfC provided the total budget
for applying this uplift and there was no need for additional funding from the Council to
implement this change.
Following a query from a Member regarding also applying this uplift to Independently
Managed Community Centres, the Director advised that the uplift could only be applied to
those organisations that had been directly supported under the Community Support
Programme. He undertook to report back outlining which grant programmes staff could apply
for staff costs under and whether the current framework for these could be changed and to
provide clarity if the funding could provide support for increased costs for fuel/utilities.
The Lead Officer advised that a report regarding the Framework for Capacity and
Community Grants was being submitted to the April meeting of the Committee for
consideration.
The DfC had stated that they would apply a 2% uplift to wage costs on an ongoing
basis for directly funded posts, however, there was no indication from the DfC whether it would
make an additional allocation to the CSP to support a similar increase for staff funded through
the CSP. Based on current costs, an increase of 2% would require an additional budget of
approximately £111,000. However, all organisations funded through the BCC Capacity
Building funding had the opportunity to reprofile their budget on an annual basis.
The Director advised that, on that basis, officers were recommending that any
additional ‘Fair funding’ uplift awarded by DfC in 2022/23 should be applied to organisations
based on 2021/22 percentage figures for staffing budget lines.
The Director then drew the Members’ attention to a comprehensive update regarding
issues that had arisen in relation to the Council’s Community Provision Grant Funding
approach for 2022/23 and the proposed approach, as follows:








2022/23 Community Support Programme - no Letter of Offer had been
received from the DfC for 2022/23 and there had been no indications from
DfC officials whether the same core level of funding would be made
available;
Community Capacity and Community Buildings Revenue Grants proposed that 6 month Letters of Offer for 2022/23 be issued to all
existing recipients of Council’s Community Capacity and Community
Buildings Revenue Grants at an approximate value of 50% of their
2021/22 grant allocation. The Letters of Offer to make clear that the
Council could not guarantee the exact amount to be provided in the
second half of the 2022/23 financial year until the DfC Letter of Offer had
been received and considered by the Council;
Advice Grants – proposed that 6 month Letters of Offer for 2022/23 be
issued to each of the five Advice Consortia at an approximate value of
50% of the 2021/22 grant allocation. The Letters of Offer to make clear
that the Council could not guarantee the exact amount to be provided in
the second half of the 2022/23 financial year until the DfC Letter of Offer
had been received and considered by the Council;
Independently Managed Community Centre and Services Level
Agreements - As the DfC Letter of Offer had not yet been received, it was

C2174

Page 87

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

proposed that the 6 month Letters of Offer for 2022/23 be issued to each
of the Independently Managed Centres and SLA’s at an approximate
value of 50% of the 2021/22 grant allocation. The Letters of Offer to
stipulate that the Council could not guarantee the exact amount to be
provided in the second half of the 2022/23 financial year until the DfC
Letter of Offer had been received and considered by the Council; and
The Committee granted approval for:








the outlined approach for implementing the ‘Fair Funding’ uplift which had
been provided through the Community Support Programme and agreed
that a report on whether this measure could be extended to
Independently Managed Centres would be submitted to a future meeting;
a 6-month Letter of Offer for 2022/23 to be issued to all existing recipients
of the Council’s Community Capacity and Community Buildings Revenue
Grants at an approximate value of 50% of the 2021/22 grant allocation;
a 6-month Letter of Offer for 2022/23 to be issued to each of the five
Advice Consortia at an approximate value of 50% of the 2021/22 grant
allocation; and
a 6-month Letter of Offer for 2022/23 to be issued to each of the
Independently Managed Centres and SLA’s at an approximate value of
50% of the 2022/23 grant allocation.

In terms of Project/Activity Grants, the Members noted the resources that were being
made available to support activity across the city until 31st March 2023 and the details of the
grants that were currently open for application until 12 noon on Monday, 4th April 2022, further
information available here
Matters referred back from the Council/Motions
Motion - Energy Price Crises
The Director of Neighbourhood Services informed the Members that the Standards
and Business Committee, at its meeting on 22nd February, had referred the following motion,
which had been proposed by Councillor Smyth and seconded by Councillor O’Hara, to the
People and Communities Committee for consideration:
“This Council notes the spiralling cost of energy bills and the increased
pressure on households across the City particularly the most vulnerable. In
order to provide long-term solutions to escalating energy prices this Council
will:


Commit to civic leadership on the development of community energy
projects across the City. These projects will focus on developing
renewable energy in partnership with communities and expert
organisations, including the provision of electric vehicle charging
infrastructure and sourcing financing for these community energy
projects;

C2175

Page 88

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022


Engage with the Department for the Economy for support in
developing community energy schemes; and



Write to the UK Government Treasury stating our support for a
Windfall Tax on the Energy Companies who have recorded record
profits.

For the purpose of this motion, the use of the term ‘community energy’ to mean
community projects or initiatives focused on the four strands of reducing
energy use, managing energy better, generating energy or purchasing energy.
This included communities of place and communities of interest. These
projects or initiatives share an emphasis on community ownership, leadership
or control where the community benefits”.
The proposer of the motion, Councillor Smyth, addressed the Committee and
suggested that, having discussed this with the Director of Neighbourhood Services, that the
motion be referred to the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee as it was not felt that it
fell within the remit of the People and Communities Committee.
The Committee agreed to refer the motion on the Energy Price Crises to the Strategic
Policy and Resources Committee.
Motion - Street Tree Planting –
Ministerial Responses
The Director of Neighbourhood Services reported that responses had been received
on behalf of the Minister for Infrastructure from her Private Secretary and from the Minister for
Communities available here in response to the Motion – Street Tree Planting, which had been
proposed by Councillor McMullan and seconded by Councillor Long and subsequently passed
by the Committee at its meeting on 7th December.
The Committee noted the responses and agreed to the closure of the motion.
Motion - End of Hunting of Mammals
with Dogs - Ministerial Responses
The Director of Neighbourhood Services reported that responses had been received
from the Minister of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs and the Committee responsible
for Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs in Northern Ireland Assembly available here in
response to the Motion – End of Hunting of Mammals with Dogs, which had been proposed
by Councillor McReynolds and seconded by Councillor McAllister and subsequently passed
by the Council at its meeting on 10th January.
The Committee noted the responses and agreed to the closure of the motion.

C2176

Page 89

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

Avian Influenza Waterworks Park –
Ministerial Response
The Director of Neighbourhood Services drew the Members’ attention to a response
that had been received from the Minister of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs
available here in response to correspondence that had been issued by the Committee
following its meeting on 8th February.
The Committee noted the Minister’s response.
Committee/Strategic Issues
Belfast Boxing Strategy Quarterly Update and
2022/2023 Action Plan
The Committee considered the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

This report is to provide an update on progress on implementation
of Belfast Boxing Strategy for October to December 2021 (Quarter
3).

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:



3.0

Note the Quarter 3 progress report and the impacts of
Covid-19 restrictions on agreed KPIs
Approve the 2022-2023 action plan and budget

Main report
Background

3.1

Council agreed, through the January 2018 Strategic Policy and
Resources Committee, to provide £200,000 to the Irish Athletic
Boxing Association Ulster Branch (IABA) for delivery of an agreed
annual action plan supporting the Belfast Boxing Strategy.

3.2

The IABA provided SP&R with a detailed breakdown of
programmes to be delivered under six main areas. Salary –
Development Officer and Coaches, Pathways, Events, Coach
Education, Club Support, Governance.

3.3

Following this decision the Belfast Boxing Strategy Steering
Group has met quarterly, with the most recent meetings held
online due to Covid-19 and associated regulations. This Steering
Group is chaired by the Director of Neighbourhood Services with

C2177

Page 90

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

Council Officers, IABA Officers and Officials and Co. Antrim Board
Officials attending. Small variations to the budget across the six
areas have been agreed to assist prioritisation in line with the
agreed annual action plan.
Monitoring
3.4

The Leisure Development Unit works directly with IABA officials to
verify reporting on performance and finance and provides detailed
reports for discussion at the Steering Group.
Performance

3.5

Council agreed a total of 37 Indicators with IABA to monitor
delivery of the programmes. IABA have complied with reporting
requirements and their performance report for 20/21 Quarter 3 is at
Appendix 1. As can be noted, achievement of targets in-year to
date have continued to be significantly impacted by Covid-19
regulations and restrictions as imposed by NI Executive. However
as Covid Restrictions have been eased many previously deferred
programmes will now take place within Quarter 4. IABA have
provided narrative against each of the KPIs to describe progress
against each indicator and have advised that Covid restrictions to
date will prevent some of the targets from being achieved at year
end.

3.6

Much of the focus in terms of method of delivery has changed and
a large number of participants have been able to avail of online
training and workshops for both committee members and
coaches, as well as delivering online workout sessions,
supporting clubs with accreditation or reaccreditation, as well as
with funding applications and providing ongoing advice and
support.
22/23 Action Plan

3.7

In line with normal process the IABA have developed their
programme action plan relating to 22/23 (copy attached at
Appendix 2 which outlines the key programmes, initiatives and
planned targets for the next year.
Financial & Resource Implications

3.8

A total of £200,000 is available within the current financial year to
support the Action Plan. It is likely that the full budget will be
expended for 2021 – 2022 . For the 2022 – 2023 action plan, an
amount of £200,000 is allocated within existing estimates

C2178

Page 91

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Implications
The strategy was equality screened in line with the Council’s
equality process. The screening showed that there were potential
adverse impacts on a number of groups including females and
people with a disability and mitigating actions were added to the
strategy. Members agreed that an equality screening be
undertaken prior to a decision being made in relation to funding
for 19/20. Officers have finalised this screening and the initial
findings show that progress has been made in increasing the
participation of underrepresented groups and this has been
reported separately through the Strategic Policy and Resources
Committee. The IABA continue to target underrepresented groups
in its delivery of the 21/22 programme and the proposed 22/23 with
particular focus on the events, online activities and non-contact
programme.”

3.9

The Committee:


noted the Quarter 3 progress report and the impact of the Covid-19
restrictions on the agreed KPIs; and



approved the 2022-2023 action plan and budget.

Stadia Community Benefits Initiative
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

To advise Committee of progress with the Stadia Community
Benefits Initiative (SCBI) and update on the action plan.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to


Note progress to date.

3.0

Main report

3.1

The Council has been undertaking the Leisure Transformation
Programme to renew its Leisure facilities across the City.
This Programme has been influenced by the Partnership
opportunities presented by the NI Executive Stadia Programme.

3.2

The Council, Department for Communities (DfC) and the Irish
Football Association (IFA) have recognised the opportunities
presented by the Stadia Programme, have committed to work

C2179

Page 92

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

together to maximise these benefits, and have agreed to establish
a Stadium Community Benefits Initiative as part of the Belfast
Community Benefits Initiative to implement and deliver agreed
objectives including promoting equality, tackling poverty, and
tackling social exclusion within the Belfast area.
3.3

In March 2016 the Council, DfC and IFA signed an agreement which
sets out their respective commitments to the project. As other
major stadia are developed in Belfast it is anticipated that other
sports governing bodies shall become parties to the agreement. At
its April 2018 meeting People and Communities committee agreed
that Council would work with the Gaelic Athletic Association (GAA)
within the Stadia Community Benefits Initiative and recognised
their significant planned investment in Gaelic Games in the city to
support their Gaelfast strategy. GAA activities became fully
incorporated into the action plan at the start of financial year 20192020, with Gaelfast staff imbedded into the governance structure
at Communications Board, Delivery Board, Policy and
Performance Board.

3.4

The agreement is for a period of ten years with financial
commitment from Council and IFA in place to the end of March
2026. Delivery is managed through monthly meetings of the
Delivery Board, which reports quarterly to the Policy and
Performance Board. Financial and performance reports will be
presented to Council and other partners’ Boards as necessary.
Formal review of the agreement will be carried out in this financial
year in accordance with the requirements to review at years 5
and 10.

3.5

The Policy & Performance Group is responsible for agreeing the
Benefits Realisation Plan and associated annual targets. Work was
undertaken to ensure the end benefits/outcomes are aligned to
partners’ strategies. To measure the progress of this the Council
and the IFA have developed a range of indicators/intermediate
benefits which are monitored through programme delivery:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Number of coaching sessions provided
Number of coaches engaged in delivering coaching
Number of sessions improving club governance
Number of volunteering opportunities
Participation opportunities for under 16s
Female participation rates
Number of people completing skills development
programme
h. Number of sessions for under-represented groups
i. Number of sessions for school and youth groups
j. Community group usage of stadia
k. Number of clubs attaining club-mark
l. Educational opportunities

C2180

Page 93

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

m.
n.
o.
p.
3.6

Number of programmes targeting ASB
Improved collaborative working
Number of disabled participants
Number of older people participating

Following the completion of a baseline assessment in early 2017,
annual work-plans are developed each year. The 2021 – 2022
action plan was developed with a view to delivering a majority of
activities using online methods in Q1 and Q2 with some wider faceto-face engagement if possible commencing in Q3 and Q4. The
action plan for 2021 – 2022 includes a mixture of sports specific
programmes (e.g. National Governing Body specific coach
education) and some joint collaborative initiatives delivered by
both sporting codes.
Performance

3.7

Programme delivery to date in year 5 (financial year 2021/2022)
despite challenges due to Covid restrictions has been successful.
Effective advance planning has mitigated covid restrictions and no
planned initiatives were postponed during Q1 & Q2. Details of the
IFA and GAA specific activities alongside Joint projects are
included at appendix 1 and appendix 2 Relaxations in the Covid
restrictions has enabled broader engagement in Q3 and a range of
activities have recommenced such as collaborative engagement in
schools alongside online learning including a sports nutritional
workshop. Further joint and sports specific initiatives are planned
for Q4 including workshops looking at club funding, female
coaching, club ethos, mental health first aid alongside other
scheduled engagement programmes.
Financial Implications

3.8

In accordance with the Council’s obligations under its DfC Funding
Agreement for the Olympia Regeneration Project, the Council has
committed a sum of £100,000 per annum for a minimum of ten
years, so that a minimum of £1,000,000 is contributed in total to
the Project. In relation to current year spend partners have
projected full utilisation of the budget across both joint and
individual work programmes. Q3 and Q4 spending will utilise Q1
and Q2 reprofiled funds carried over owing to inability to deliver
some projects owing to Covid-19.
Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Implications

3.9

There are no additional impacts related to this report.”

The Committee noted the update.

C2181

Page 94

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

Physical Programme and Asset Management
Partner Agreements Quarter 3 Update and
Rosario Youth Centre request
The Committee noted the quarterly progress report in relation to Partner Agreements
at seven sites and that all Partners had been compliant on reporting matters and financial
checks for October – December 2021.
The Director of Neighbourhood Services then referred to a request from Rosario YC
seeking an extension of the existing management arrangements for Ulidia Playing Fields that
had been previously agreed in January 2019. At that time, the Committee had agreed to
provide an additional monthly amount of £2,000 to support Rosario in creating part-time posts
to operate the site to the Council’s standards to be effective until the end of March 2020.
He reported that subsequent requests had been approved by the Committee to extend this
arrangement until 31st March 2022.
Subsequently, a request had been received in January 2022 advising that the
Community Assets Transfer process had commenced and requesting that the £2,000 per
month payment be continued until the process had been completed.
The Committee noted the progress to date at the Partner Agreement sites and agreed
to continue to provide a maximum financial payment of up to £2,000 per month up to a
maximum of £24,000 for staff costs, subject to the vouching of fully evidenced expenditure.
Naming of New Park and
Sportszone at Divis Back Path
The Committee was reminded that, at its meeting on 7th December 2021, it had agreed
to consult on two options for the name of the new park and sports zone at the Divis Back Path.
The Members were advised that a full public consultation had been undertaken using
the Council’s Your Say webpage between 11th January and 15th February 2022. A total of
495 responses had been received, with the breakdown as follows:
- Divis Back Path Park: 80 in favour (16%)
- Páirc an Lonnáin: 415 in favour (84%)
The Committee approved the name, Páirc an Lonnáin for the new park and sports
zone at the Divis Back Path.
Operational Issues
Proposal for naming new streets
(Mr. I. Harper, Building Control Manager, attended in connection with this item.)
The Committee approved the application for naming a new street in the City as set
out below:

C2182

Page 95

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

Proposed Name

Location

Applicant

Kings Hall Lane

Off Balmoral Avenue,
BT9

Todd Architects

Service Level Agreement between the Drinking Water
Inspectorate and Belfast City Council with regard to
Private Water Supplies
The Committee considered the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

All Councils act as agents for the Drinking Water Inspectorate for
Northern Ireland (DWI) by undertaking a monitoring and sampling
regime of private water supplies under The Private Water Supplies
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2009 (as amended). The purpose of
this report is to ask the Committee to note the updated SLA to
enable Councils to provide its services in respect of private
drinking water regime.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is invited to:


Consider and endorse the updated draft Service Level
Agreement and authorise the Director of City and
Neighbourhood Services to sign the agreement on the
Council’s behalf.

3.0

Main report

3.1

The Drinking Water Inspectorate for Northern Ireland (DWI) have
reviewed and updated the current service level agreement. This
agreement outlines the arrangement between the Drinking Water
Inspectorate for Northern Ireland (DWI) and the City and
Neighbourhood Service Department of Belfast City Council (CNS),
appointed as a competent person, for the purposes of undertaking
on behalf of the DWI risk assessments and sampling of private
water supplies under The Private Water Supplies Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2009 (as amended).

3.2

The objectives of the Agreement are to continue the administrative
provision under which the Council provides the professional
services of council staff in roles where they are acting as agents
of the DWI. This arrangement has been in place since 2015 and it
enables the Council to provide sampling, risk assessment, and
investigatory services, including staff and resources to DWI and to
define each party’s role, responsibilities and obligations. It also
enables the DWI to individually authorise the Council to carry out

C2183

Page 96

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

duties on their behalf. The agreement will be in place for 2 years
and then bi-annually subject to a review process.
3.3

The DWI expect each of the 11 district Councils to have a service
level agreement in place to provide this service on their behalf.

3.4

The updated service level agreement sets out the contractual
arrangements for the delivery of this activity includes a new data
processing contract between the Council and the Drinking Water
Inspectorate (DWI) and the Northern Ireland Environment Agency
(NIEA).

3.5

Belfast City Council staff currently sample and risk assess
11 private water supplies in Belfast on the DWI’s behalf. An annual
programme of sampling is issued by 31 December each year and
the sampling programme frequency is determined risk
assessment process.
Financial & Resource Implications

3.7

The DWI have set the following fees for all District Councils:
Schedule of fees
Activity

Unit Cost

Scheduled Sample

£75/sample

Collection
Resample Collection

£75/sample

(Investigation)
Completion of Full Risk

£450/risk assessment

Assessment
Review of Risk Assessment

£200/risk assessment review

(with site visit)
Review of Risk Assessment

£100/risk assessment review

(without site visit)
Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Implications
3.8

There are no relevant equality considerations associated with the
delivery of the service level agreement.”

Following a query from Councillor Smyth in regard to water quality monitoring and
sampling and the sharing of information the Director of City Services undertook to liaise
directly with the Member in regard to his queries.

C2184

Page 97

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

The Committee endorsed the updated draft Service Level Agreement and granted
authority to the Director of City and Neighbourhood Services to sign the agreement on the
Council’s behalf.
Appointment of Public Analysts
The Committee approved the appointment of the following suitably qualified persons
as Public Analyst to the Council under Article 27(1) of the food Safety Order (Northern Ireland)
Order 1991:







Duncan Kenelm Arthur BSc, MChemA, CChem, MRSC
Nigel Kenneth Payne MSc, MChemA, CChem, MRSC
Lilian Emma Jane Downie MChem, MChemA, CChem, MRSC
Michelle Evans BSc, MChemA, CChem, MRSC
Donna Hanks BSc, MChemA, MRSC
Mary Butts MSc, MChemA, MRSC

Collaborative working between the Health and Safety
Executive for Northern Ireland and District Councils
and continuation of funding for a joint Post
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

That the Committee confirm support for a 2-year extension to the
current contract for the partnership liaison officer (PLO) post until
the end of the 2023/2024 financial year to enhance collaborative
working between the Health and Safety Executive for Northern
Ireland and district councils.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:


Approve the continued funding for the H&S PLO post until
the end of the 2023/2024 financial year.

3.0

Main report

3.1

The Committee will be aware that the post of Partnership Liaison
Officer (PLO) is a joint resource created to ensure the effective
partnership working relationships and operational delivery of the
joint Health and Safety strategy between the local authorities
across Northern Ireland and the HSENI. Please see Appendix 1 for
H&ES Committee minutes of 3rd March 2010 providing
background to necessity for the post.

C2185

Page 98

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

3.2

A letter has been received from Lisburn & Castlereagh City Council
seeking support from Belfast City Council to continue funding the
post (Appendix 2).
Key Issues

3.3

The post has been of significant benefit to Councils by providing
a point of contact between The Executive Office and other
statutory agencies dealing with the global pandemic. It has
afforded Officers from the 11 Councils to filter information, coordinate advice in relation to the Covid regulations, share data,
best practice and statistics. This post provided a role in terms of
influencing the content of the regulations on behalf of Councils
with the Executive Office which eased the burden for Councils as
the Covid regulations were changing at pace bringing new
challenges with each update in terms of interpretation and
enforcement.

3.4

Now that the Covid restrictions are easing, the PLO will continue
to build on the partnerships between HSENI and Councils to
deliver the required Health and Safety needs across the Province
in a co-ordinated manner.

3.5

The main purpose of the Partnership Liaison Officer is to:










3.6

Assist in the continuing development and implementation
of the Strategic Framework for Partnership Working by
building effective working relationships and processes.
Co-ordinate the delivery of specific aspects of partnership
arrangements such as joint planning, joint enforcement
initiatives and campaigns, joint training and innovative
ways of targeting resources more effectively.
Monitor the output of these defined areas of joint work.
Liaise with district councils and their representative bodies
and partners on issues relating to workplace health and
safety and provide a district council perspective on the
Partnership Team.
Support district councils in meeting their partnership
commitments, particularly when developing business plans
etc.
Act as an effective communication channel between District
Councils and HSENI.
Ensure that district council interests are fed into the joint
planning processes.

All 12 partners (11 Councils and HSENI) are committed to the post;

C2186

Page 99

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022






Costs associated with the post must be divided equally
amongst the 12 partners.
HSENI will continue to host the PLO in Ladas Drive and give
day-to-day management support.
Lisburn & Castlereagh City Council will continue to be the
employing authority and recover costs as before.
A review of the effectiveness of the PLO will be conducted
in the second year to inform whether the post should
continue and if so in what form.

Financial and Resource Implications
3.7

Belfast City Council’s contribution to the funding of this post will
be £4000 per annum which is included within existing budget.
There are no human resource implications as Lisburn &
Castlereagh City Council will continue to be the employing
authority and recover costs from the 10 partner Councils.
Asset and Other Implications

3.8

None
Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Assessment

3.9

None.”

The Committee approved the continued funding for the Health and Safety Executive
Joint Partnership Liaison Officer post until the end of the 2023/2024 financial year.
Lady Mary Peters 50th Anniversary Event
The Committee considered a report seeking financial assistance towards a year-long
series of events to mark the 50th Anniversary of Mary Peters winning Olympic Gold and
breaking the World Record in the Pentathlon at the Munich Olympics in 1972.
The Members noted that Athletics Northern Ireland and the Mary Peters Track were
joining forces to promote and enhance the Annual Belfast Athletics International Meeting,
renaming it the Mary Peters 50th Gold Medal Anniversary Games.
Following a query, the Committee was advised that, in normal circumstances, Athletics
NI would have been directed to apply to the Support for Sport Fund or the Sport Events Grant.
However, given the timing of the grant application release and its subsequent assessment,
the application would not be considered in time to support this one-off event.
The Committee agreed a funding contribution of £3,000 to Athletics NI to assist with
the event running costs for the 50th Anniversary Lady Mary Peters Gold Medal Games.

C2187

Page 100

People and Communities Committee,
Tuesday, 8th March, 2022

Issues Raised in Advance by Members
Request to Present – Councillor M. Kelly
Federation of City Farms and Community Gardens
The Committee agreed that representatives from the Federation of City Farms and
Community Gardens be invited to present to a future meeting of the Committee.

Chairperson

C2188

Page 101

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
City Growth and Regeneration Committee
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

HYBRID MEETING OF THE CITY
GROWTH AND REGENERATION COMMITTEE

Members present: Councillor Murphy (Chairperson);
Aldermen Dorrian and Kingston; and
Councillors, Beattie, Brooks, Donnelly, Ferguson,
Gormley, Hanvey, Heading, Howard, Hussey, T. Kelly, Long,
Lyons, Maskey, McLaughlin, McMullan, O’Hara and Whyte.
In attendance:

Mr. A. Reid, Strategic Director of Place and Economy;
Mr. J. Greer, Director of Economic Development;
Mrs. C. Reynolds, Director of City Regeneration
and Development;
Ms. E. Henry, Senior Manager - Culture and Tourism;
and
Ms. C. Donnelly, Democratic Services Officer.
Apologies

No apologies for inability to attend were reported.
Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of the Committee of 9th February were taken as read
and signed as correct. It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the
Council at its meeting on 1st March.
Declarations of Interest
No declarations of interest were reported.
Presentation
Visit Belfast - Annual Business Plan 2022/23
The Chairperson introduced Ms. K. Thomson, Chief Executive, National
Museums NI and Mr. G. Lennon, Chief Executive, Visit Belfast, to the Committee and
they were admitted to the meeting.
Ms. Thomson outlined how the tourism sector had been profoundly affected by
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic over the previous two years and how it was a key
sector that would contribute to the rebuilding of the city’s economy. She stated that Visit
Belfast had been developed through consultation with Council officers, to be fully aligned
to the Council’s key strategic priorities and to act as a key vehicle in rolling out the ten
year tourism strategy, Make Yourself at Home.

D2299

Page 103

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

Mr. Lennon provided a presentation on Visit Belfast’s Rebuilding City Tourism
Plan which focused on supporting tourism recovery. He outlined how a new regenerative
model for tourism would contribute towards building a resilient economy, delivering
inclusive growth and protecting the environment.
He highlighted that tourism was key to the city’s wellbeing and that it had
generated £417million in tourism spend in 2019 and had accounted for 21,863 tourism
related jobs. He pointed out that tourism had been a catalyst for community and societal
regeneration, and referred to examples, such as the Cathedral Quarter and the Crumlin
Road Gaol.
He reported that Visit Belfast had put in place a number of key initiatives, policies
and themes to create robust framework to rebuild city tourism over the subsequent three
years.
He outlined the progress to date in 2021/22 and informed the Committee that the
progress now placed Belfast as the fifth most transformed destination in 2021 and was
nineteenth out of seventy-three destinations from around the world, on the Global
Destination Sustainability Index. He stated that the outlook for 2022 was positive, due to
conference bookings, cruise calls, cultural events and milestones, and Belfast’s
designation as a UNESCO City of Music.
Mr. Lennon summarised Visit Belfast’s policy framework, key themes and
sustainability and impact action plan and he outlined the marketing focus and framework.
He informed the Committee that, with regard to business tourism, Visit Belfast’s
objective was to secure enough conferences to bring £40million to the local economy and
82,000 bed nights. He reported that a campaign was to be developed to target business
visitors to encourage them to extend their stay or return in the future for a leisure visit.
He referred to visitor servicing and destination management and outlined a model
that would be used to enhance the visitor experience and spread the benefit of tourism.
He pointed out that there were 144 cruise calls expected in 2022/23, generating
£11million economic spend from around 300,000 cruise passengers. He reported that
Visit Belfast had been working with Belfast Harbour to develop a cruise sustainability
plan.
During discussion, the representative’s answered a range of questions in relation
to targeting tourists who arrive in Dublin, the environmental impact of cruise liners,
tourism levies and accessibility.
In response to a query from a Member, the Director of Economic Development
stated that a report on the Council’s 10-year tourism strategy would be submitted to
Committee, following a consultation, which had been approved by the Committee in
February and that it would include an update on neighbourhood tourism.
The Chairperson thanked the representatives for their informative presentation,
and they retired from the meeting.

D2300

Page 104

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

The Chairperson drew the Members’ attention to the report which had been
published alongside the presentation which outlined the request for funding from Visit
Belfast for the 2022/23 financial year and set out the organisation’s strategic plan, which
focused on supporting tourism recovery.
The Committee:


Noted the draft Visit Belfast business plan 2022/23 and that the overall
funding requirement for Visit Belfast in the coming financial year had
been taken account of in the revenue estimates that had already been
approved by the Council;



Approved a multi-annual funding agreement for 2022-25 and agreed a
funding allocation of £1,997,465 for 2022/23, subject to the
development of a funding agreement that would confirm priority areas
of activity and agreed targets;



Approved an inflationary increase of 2% in year 2 and year 3 of the
funding agreement, subject to satisfactory progress against targets and
budget setting; and



Approved the renewal of Visit Belfast’s Management Agreement with
the Council to operate Leisure Marketing, Business Tourism and Visitor
Servicing in Belfast, including the operation of Welcome Centre at 8-9
Donegall Square North.

The Chairperson thanked the representatives for their informative presentation
and they retired from the meeting.
Restricted Items
The information contained in the report associated with the following two
items was restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.
Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of the
press and public from the meeting during discussion of the following two
items as, due to the nature of the items, there would be a disclosure of
exempt information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the
Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.
A Bolder Vision
The Director of City Regeneration and Development provided the Committee with
an update on the Bolder Vision consultation and key moves and the ongoing engagement
with the Ministers for Communities and Infrastructure.

D2301

Page 105

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

She outlined the emerging governance proposals and referred the Members to a
Memorandum of Understanding that would form the basis of a framework for collaborative
partnership working under the Bolder Vision.
The Committee:


Noted the findings from the Bolder Vision consultation and Key Moves
Update Report and agreed to re-affirm the Council’s position in relation
to the Key Moves to ensure embedment of those principles within the
final Bolder Vision Strategy and the emerging Catalyst Opportunities
Plan;



Noted the ongoing engagement with the DfC and DfI Ministers and
other partners, including workshops with Translink, DfI Section Office
and the Capital Projects, Policy and Public Transportation Directorates;



Agreed to the proposed BCC/DfI/DfC partnership and Memorandum of
Understanding approach, subject to agreement from DfI/DfC;



Agreed to delegate authority to the City Solicitor to finalise and agree
the Memorandum of Understanding document with DfI and DfC, with
the finalised document to be brought back to the Committee at the
appropriate time; and



Noted the planned BCC/DfI/DfC statement that would follow the
Ministerial meetings and the next steps to bring forward the Bolder
Vision Strategy and Catalyst Opportunities Plan.

Financial Reporting - Quarter 3 2021/22
The Strategic Director of Place and Economy provided an overview of the Quarter
3 finance report.
The Committee noted the report and the associated financial reporting pack.
Regenerating Places & Improving Infrastructure
High Street Taskforce Update
The Director of City Regeneration and Development reported that the High Street
Task Force had been finalising the recommendations report following the recent call for
evidence which would represent a collaboration across various sectors, .That would
include central and local government, business, academia and the third sector, and would
summarise the findings, advice and recommendations of the High Street Task Force.
She pointed out that the work of the High Street Task Force had been aligned to
the focus of the Committee’s priorities and Committee Plan as well as to other Council
led programmes and priorities and that the launch of the High Street Task Force report

D2302

Page 106

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

and recommendations had been proposed for 21st March and would, in due course, be
presented to the Executive for its consideration.
She informed the Members that the Living High Street Craft Kit, which had been
developed through a cross-sectoral co-design of high streets and town centres led by the
Ministerial Advisory Group on Architecture and the Built Environment, had been due to
be published in the coming months and would provide an innovative way of considering
how high streets could be redesigned by communities and combine social, environmental
and economic insights.
The Committee:


Noted the update in relation to the work of the High Street Task Force
and the intention to launch a High Street Task Force report and
recommendations following the recent call for evidence process;



Noted the alignment of the High Street Task Force work to the strategic
priorities of Council and of the Committee; and



Noted the imminent publication of the Ministerial Advisory Group ‘Living
High Streets Craft Kit’ and the opportunity to use the approach of codesign, particularly in neighbourhood centres and on arterial routes.

Blue and Green Infrastructure Funding
The Director of City Regeneration and Development provided the Committee with
an overview of the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

To update the Committee on DfI’s Blue Green Infrastructure
Funding relating to Active Travel Projects

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Members of the Committee are asked to




Note the Letter of Offer from DfI for capital funding to
deliver Active Travel Enabling projects and that
officers are currently in ongoing discussions with the
Department on funding draw down and around
the conditions of the LoO in particular the tight
timeframes and risk in terms of delivery of the projects
as outlined within this paper. A verbal update on the
outcome of these discussions will be provided to
Committee.
Dependant on the outcome of the ongoing discussions
with DfI (with verbal update to be provided to
Committee) to agree to recommend to the SP&R

D2303

Page 107

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022





Committee advanced procurement of the covered cycle
stands and cycle repair stands with further details on
locations to be brought back to this Committee. Whilst
the LoO is very welcome and is aligned to Council
priorities officers would however highlight that any
recommendation to accept this will need to consider
any risk to delivery and potential financial implications
in terms of clawback etc.
Dependant on the outcome of the ongoing discussions
with DfI, to agree to the delivery of secured cycle units
through an Expression of Interest approach to identify
suitable delivery partners, with the outcome on the EoI
including specification requirements to be brought
back to a future meeting of the Committee;
Note the proposal to develop the designs for the
Greater Clarendon North South Spine, and agree that
Officers work with DfI and others to secure funding and
to bring the designs through to RIBA Stage 3

3.0

Main report

3.1

Background
The CG&R Committee received an update, and provided
approvals, in September and October 2021 on the Active
Travel Enabling projects under delivery through the DfC
Covid-19 Revitalisation Programme, including a new
temporary Active Travel Hub in Cathedral Gardens, expansion
of the Belfast Bike scheme and replacement of the fleet, the
establishment of an e-cargo bike pilot scheme and 10 new
covered cycle parking locations located on Council assets
across the city. The Committee were also informed that there
was potential to seek additional funding through the DfI Blue
Green Infrastructure Fund to deliver additional covered cycle
stand locations as well secure cycle parking that could be
delivered in partnership with, for example Translink or MultiStory Car Park suppliers that can provide publicly accessible
locations within a managed and serviced area.

3.2

Report
As reported to the SP&R Committee in January 2022 Council
submitted proposals to DfI for greenway and active travel
projects that could potentially receive capital funding this
financial year. These proposals were put forward based on
receiving funding by October/November 2021 to facilitate
completion by the end of the financial year. The submitted
proposals had a focus on enhancements to live projects that
have the best chance of delivery within the financial year.

D2304

Page 108

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

On this basis a business case was submitted to the
Department seeking funding to deliver a further roll out of citywide covered cycle stands, secure parking units to be
delivered with partner organisations and the introduction and
installation of bicycle repair stations along the active travel
network. This application was submitted in recognition that
Active Travel and connectivity are strategic priorities for
Belfast, identified within the PfG, Belfast Agenda and
underpinned within A Bolder Vision for Belfast. Through the
Community Planning Partnership – City Development Board it
was also agreed across the Partners that connectivity and
sustainable and active travel should be a priority for the city,
both in terms of meeting our sustainable objectives but also
in terms of making the city a more accessible, attractive and
liveable city. While the CG&R Committee received a report
from DfI in December 2021 on the Belfast Cycle Network
outlining the timeframe for developing up and delivering the
much-needed expansion of the capital infrastructure it is
recognised that an opportunity exists now to deliver Active
Travel enabling projects in advance of these capital works,
and to further compliment the schemes and projects delivered
through the DfC Covid-19 Revitalisation Programme.
3.3

The SP&R Committee were informed in January 2022 that
although funding had not been confirmed, DfI had publicly
announced their intended support for four capital proposals –
enhancements to the Forth Meadow Greenway Project at
Sections 1 & 3, enhanced Connectivity between City Quays,
Greater Clarendon and City Centre, and Active Travel
Enablers such as cycle parking and bike repair stands.
The SP&R Committee were informed that no formal offer of
funding had been made, and that further work was required to
establish the timeframes constraints given global supply
chain issues and the need to mitigate against these issues, as
well as constraints put forward in relation to match-funding
requirements, and the Committee noted these risks to
delivery.

3.4

On the 2nd February 2022 Council received a Letter of Offer
from DfI to provide capital funding to support Active Travel
Enabling Projects in line with the Business Case submitted to
the Department. The Letter of Offer for £207,500 of capital
funding includes cycle parking, secure cycle parking and
cycle repair stands. It should be noted that the LoO commits
Council to in year spend but given that we are now in March,
this is the focus of ongoing discussions between officers and
DfI, and a verbal update will be provided to Committee on the
outcome of these. Officers are working to ensure that funding
could be drawn down in a manner which would ensure

D2305

Page 109

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

deliverability and protects the interests of the Council and
provide a level of comfort to Council in terms of advance
procuring where possible, as well as allowing adequate
planning, further procurement and installation of the capital
schemes. The approval of the procurement and delivery of
these schemes will also be subject to approval at the SP&R
Committee. Whilst the LoO is very welcome and is aligned to
Council priorities officers would highlight that a
recommendation to accept this cannot be made if there is a
risk to delivery and any potential financial implications in
terms of clawback etc.
3.5

Under the DfC Covid-19 Revitalisation Programme Officers
had engaged Sustrans to identify a list of locations for
covered cycle stands that can be further developed to bring
forward the additional units under this funding stream.
Officers from CRD, PP and CNS are currently working through
this list and identifying potential for use of Council lands and
3rd Party landowners and any required permissions prior to
bringing a final list of locations to Committee. Given the timing
of the Letter of Offer, and pending Committee approval it is
proposed to advance procure the covered cycle units with a
list of locations to brought back to this Committee for
agreement prior to installation. This is subject to the outcome
to ongoing discussions with the Department in relation to the
draw down of funding and conditions within the LoO.

3.6

With regard to the secure cycle units these are more complex
in in terms of the need for physical assets /infrastructure,
different operational models, staff resourcing, revenue tails
etc. Officers have held a number of discussions with potential
delivery partners including, Translink and Multi-Story Car
Park Operators, that can utilise existing physical assets and
provide strategically located, publicly accessible, and
maintained and operated locations that could deliver out
additional secure cycle parking as pilot projects for this type
of provision. Subject to the outcome of discussions with the
Department in relation to the Loo and pending Committee
approval, it is proposed to engage the wider market through
an Expression of Interest, with a potential to provide capital
grant funding to delivery partners to install and operate secure
parking infrastructure within their existing assets and to
provide regular monitoring and reporting on the usage and
uptake of the scheme to further inform potential future
projects. It is proposed to run the EoI from the end of March
of a period of 3 weeks followed by application and capital
grant award process. Delivery partners will be assessed on
their location in relation to key trip attractors and the Belfast
Cycle Network, as well as their operating model and ability to

D2306

Page 110

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

adequately deliver a publicly accessible model. It is proposed
that the results of this EOI is brought back to Committee at the
earliest opportunity, and prior to awarding funding to deliver
the secure cycle units. This is subject to the outcome to
ongoing discussions with the Department in relation to the
draw down of funding and conditions within the LoO.
3.7

Officers are also working on a list of locations for the cycle
repair stations, aligned to the existing cycle network and
Council assets. Subject also to the outcome of discussions
with the Department it is proposed to advance procure these
units to meet the funding timeframes with further detail on
locations to be brought back to this Committee at a future
date.

3.8

Enhanced Connectivity between Greater Clarendon, City
Quays and the City Centre.
There have been ongoing discussions between DfI and
Council in relation to the enhancement to the connecting
routes to and from the city centre and the greater Clarendon
area. This will better link communities from the Greater
Clarendon / Sailortown area to and from the city centre. Given
issues of severance with the city centre this was identified as
a priority connectivity project in the Greater Clarendon and
Sailortown Masterplan / Accessibility Guide progressed by DfI
in conjunction with BCC, DfI and other partners including local
communities. Building on these discussions and the proposal
within the Masterplan /Accessibility Guide an application was
submitted to DfI to develop up the designs for the Greater
Clarendon North South Spine to RIBA Stage 3, under a project
entitled ‘Enhanced Connectivity between Greater Clarendon,
City Quays and the City Centre’.

3.9

This project relates to the development of design proposals to
enhance the urban environment and connectivity between the
city centre and the Greater Clarendon area through the design
of public realm/open space and active travel infrastructure
improvements within the project area, known as the ‘NorthSouth Spine’.

3.10

As above the ‘North-South Spine’ concept was developed as
part of the Greater Clarendon & Sailortown Masterplan and
subsequent Public Realm & Accessibility Design Guide, which
noted the importance of improved north-south pedestrian and
cycle links (and east-west links) in terms of integrating Greater
Clarendon and Sailortown into the city centre, enhancing local
links to the Cathedral Quarter and City Quays, and linking the

D2307

Page 111

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

two new proposed city parks at Cathedral Gardens and City
Quays.
3.11

Alongside the emerging plans for ‘City Quays Gardens’, it is
proposed to develop similarly ambitious streetscape and
open space design proposals for adjacent connecting streets.
The proposed area takes in Tomb St, Corporation St and Little
Patrick St/Great Patrick St, and design development would
focus on enhancing local public realm and ease of movement,
while contributing to wider city connectivity, including
pedestrian and cycle links between City Quays and Custom
House Square, the Cathedral Quarter and UU campus and
accommodation. It is proposed that the appointed team would
develop design information to RIBA Stage 3 for environmental
and connectivity improvements for streets and spaces within
the project area. Proposed interventions may include, but
would not be limited to, enhanced pedestrian crossings,
dedicated cycle lanes, soft landscaping, lighting, resurfacing,
open space, street furniture. This is subject to the outcome of
ongoing discussions with the Department in relation to the
draw down of funding and any conditions which may be
contained within a future LoO.

3.12

In line with the RIBA Plan of Work, preparation of design
information to Stage 3 would include site appraisal, concept
development, options appraisal, business case development,
feasibility studies, development of project brief / budget /
programme and stakeholder engagement. Specific outputs
from the currently proposed design development work would
include:





RIBA Stage 3 Report
Outline Specification
Cost Plan
Planning application submitted

3.13

On completion of RIBA Stage 3, funding options to support
capital delivery would be further explored with delivery
partners, including DfI, as a ‘shovel-ready project’, in order to
progress to delivery/construction. It should also be noted that
a number of developer contributions have been agreed in
principle for public realm provision, but not yet secured within
this area,

3.14

A business case has been submitted to DfI and the indication
from DfI is that an offer of circa 50% funding may be made by
the Department. Officers are currently exploring opportunities
for match-funding to meet the remaining funding

D2308

Page 112

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

requirements. Further updates will be brought to this
Committee at a future date.
3.15

Finance and Resource Implications
The capital costs associated with the Active Travel Enabler
projects referenced in this report are to be covered from the
DfI Blue & Green Infrastructure Fund (subject to the verbal
update at Committee in relation to conditions of funding).
In relation to the ‘Enhanced Connectivity between Greater
Clarendon, City Quays and the City Centre’ design work, a
LoO has not yet been received although DfI has indicated it
may be forthcoming based on circa 50% of the cost. There are
ongoing discussions in relation to further third-party funding
for the remaining cost and an update will be brought back to
Committee.
All proposals will be subject to the Council’s Capital
Governance Process. A verbal update will be provided to
Committee on the outcome of ongoing discussions with DfI in
relation to the drawdown of funding.

3.16

Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Assessment
Equality of opportunity and good relations, and disability
duties screening will be carried out on the schemes prior to
implementation.”

The Committee:


Noted the Letter of Offer from DfI for capital funding to deliver Active
Travel Enabling projects and that officers had been engaging in
ongoing discussions with the Department on funding draw down and
the conditions of the LoO, in particular the tight timeframes and risk in
terms of delivery of the projects;



Agreed to recommend to the Strategic Policy and Resources
Committee, dependent upon the outcome of discussion, advanced
procurement of the covered cycle stands and cycle repair stands with
further details on locations to be brought back to this Committee;



Agreed to the delivery of secured cycle units through an Expression of
Interest approach to identify suitable delivery partners, with the
outcome on the EoI, including specification requirements to be brought
back to a future meeting of the Committee, subject to the outcome of
ongoing discussions with DfI; and

D2309

Page 113

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022



Noted the proposal to develop the designs for the Greater Clarendon
North South Spine and agreed that Officers would work with DfI, and
others, to secure funding and to bring the designs through to RIBA
Stage 3.

Academy of Urbanism Congress
The Committee considered the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

To make Members aware of the upcoming Academy of
Urbanism Congress that is planned to be held in Belfast, 8-10
June 2022.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Members are asked:




To note the proposal to host the annual Academy of
Urbanism Congress in Belfast on 8th June 2022 and the
opportunity for Council and its partners to shape and
participate in the programme.
To note the emerging key themes that will shape the
agenda and potential venues and agree to a Council
contribution of £10,000 to be met from existing
budgets.

3.0

Main report

3.1

Background: The Academy of Urbanism
The Academy of Urbanism (AoU) is, a not-for-profit, politically
independent network of people and organisations devoted to
creating and sustaining great places. Its mission is
to understand, promote and celebrate what makes great
places and practically apply these lessons to improve towns
and cities across Europe and beyond.

3.2

Membership to AoU is open to everyone involved in the
design, development and management of great places, with
specific membership opportunities for young urbanists,
professional academicians and community leaders. Members
span city management and policymaking, community
leadership, town planning and urban design, academic
research and teaching, arts and cultural development,
infrastructure and engineering, property management,
politics and media. The Academy supports the Urbanism
Awards that celebrate excellent practical delivery and

D2310

Page 114

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

generate a continuing resource of best practice guidance.
By way of local example, recently the Connswater Community
Greenway was voted as the best place in the UK and Ireland
at the 2020 Urbanism Awards. Additionally, there are specific
knowledge-sharing programmes such as Place Diagnostics,
which can help places to engage people in challenging urban
issues and they also publish a monthly journal, ‘Here and
Now’.
3.3

AoU Annual Congress, 8-10 June Belfast 2022
As part of the AoU delivery of programmes and events that
support places and people to explore and share good
placemaking practice, its major flagship event includes an
annual Congress, showcasing a different European city each
summer. The AoU are proposing to hold their 2022 AoU
Congress in Belfast. Past host cities include Eindhoven, Cork,
Copenhagen, Rotterdam, Dublin, Aarhus, Glasgow, and
Bristol. The Annual Congress is an inspiring, thoughtprovoking and entertaining opportunity to exchange ideas
and hear leading-edge thinking from urbanists around the
globe. It is an opportunity to embed the Academy within a city
and use the assembled expertise of attendees to tackle live
local issues alongside local partners through hands-on
workshops, walking tours, and discussions.

3.4

The AoU are very much of the view that a successful Congress
owes as much to the passions of local community participants
as to the insights and inspiration of invited presenters. Based
on previous years, there are usually 100-120 participants that
attend Congress. It is anticipated that a number of these are
drawn from the local area, but others will be visitors to Belfast
and will have a chance to explore the city and hear how
projects in Belfast are responding to our challenges as well as
creating their own best practice.

3.5

There has been recent engagement by AoU with Council, DfC
and DfI in relation to the proposed Congress. It is recognised
that cities across the world are facing many challenges.
This is particularly so given rapid responses necessitated by
COVID and the increasingly immediate impacts of a climate in
crisis which are testing our urban centres like never before.
These, and the acceleration of changed practices such as
home working, online shopping, and the future of tourism, are
issues facing cities around the globe. Combined with the
ongoing work already underway across the Council with
central government agencies, communities and private
sector, our opportunity is to use the MoU to help guide the

D2311

Page 115

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

long term, sustainable change needed in how our cities
function, look, and feel for people.
3.6

Belfast has a history of resilience and overcoming challenges
and this year the proposed title of the Congress is Belfast:
Cities Overcoming Challenges. Change and challenges can
inform cities in unexpected ways. As new energies combine
in ways not seen in the city before there is an opportunity for
Belfast to learn from others and build on their existing
priorities and plans and reflect on what more needs to do to
make the next three decades a success.

3.7

The AoU Congress in Belfast is an opportunity to explore
current strategic issues such as A Bolder Vision, the work of
the High Streets Task Force, climate and resilience priorities,
citywide regeneration and significant place-focused cultural
initiatives, including the UNESCO City of Music and the
forthcoming Year of Culture to explore how Belfast can better
engage people and communities in the city’s authentic
placemaking. It is an opportunity to explore and highlight
Belfast projects and practice alongside international
examples of urbanism.

3.8

A key strand for example will include showcasing some of
Belfast’s cultural, urban and community professionals to an
international audience and embed cultural practice in the
city’s regeneration to emphasise the importance of place
character to the Year of Culture. It offers both local
participants and visitors a chance learn more about the
themes from a Belfast perspective and draw upon local case
studies that link local to wider global issues facing cities.
The agenda is currently being developed but potential local
case study projects could include Culture Night, housing-led
regeneration, StreetSpace, Sailortown, Belfast Opera,
Portview, community and resilience projects.
There is
growing interest in the conference locally and the AoU have
already been contacted by local stakeholders who are seeking
to highlight their projects.

3.9

Supporting these thematic sessions, the AoU Congress also
provides that chance to host sessions in venues across the
city that will show off the diverse and rich range of facilities.
Discussions are underway with potential host organisations
such as 2 Royal Avenue, St Mary’s University College, Carlisle
Methodist Church, Banana Block and Ulster Museum.
In addition, there are a number of site visits proposed that will
enable Congress delegates and communities to work together
and explore issues around good urbanism through specific
site visits and workshops. It is intended that these support

D2312

Page 116

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

local people to build confidence in city development issues
and connect with local and international practitioners.
Discussions are currently underway in relation to this and
potential site visits may include Cathedral Quarter, Colin
Neighbourhood Partnership, Eastside, Forward South and the
Weaver’s Cross/Belfast Transport Hub.
It is proposed that there will be an opening evening session in
the City Hall on 8th June 2022.
3.10

Engagement to date
To date meetings have been held with BCC, DfI and DfC and
the Chair and Board members of AoU to discuss the theme,
format and potential sponsorship. It is also proposed to
engage with the Community Planning Partnership City
Development Board in order to link in with key city
stakeholders including partnership bodies, private sector and
public sector agencies. These discussions are ongoing
and will shape the agenda, venues and keynote speakers.

3.11

Financial and Resource Implications
The estimated cost of Congress is approximately £50,000 and
the AoU is seeking a £10,000 contribution from Council, which
can be met from existing CRD budget. AoU is in discussions
with DfC, DfI, SIB and Arts and Business for additional
financial support.

3.12

Equality or Good Relations Implications /
Rural Needs Assessment
None associated with this report.”

The Committee:


Noted the proposal to host the annual Academy of Urbanism Congress
in Belfast on 8th June 2022 and the opportunity for Council and its
partners to shape and participate in the programme;



Noted the emerging key themes that would shape the agenda and
potential venues; and



Agreed to a Council contribution of £10,000 to be met from existing
budgets.

D2313

Page 117

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

Public Consultation on Sydenham to Holywood
Walking, Wheeling and Cycling Routes
The Committee considered the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

To update Members that the Department for Infrastructure is
running a public consultation on the Sydenham to Holywood
Walking, Wheeling and Cycling routes from 11 February –
1 April 2022 by way of a short questionnaire.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Members are asked to:




Note that the Department for Infrastructure is
undertaking a public consultation, by way of a short
questionnaire (link in report below) on the Sydenham
to Holywood Walking, Wheeling and Cycling routes.
Note that there has been ongoing engagement by DfI
with the East Area Working Group and Council officers
in relation to the future delivery of the routes and that
this is likely to continue to be an appropriate
mechanism for future discussions. Members may
however wish to respond directly to the current
questionnaire and reports can be brought back to the
relevant Committees as appropriate if these proposals
progress further.

3.0

Main report

3.1

On 3 June 2021, the Minister for Infrastructure published
‘Planning for the Future of Transport – Time for Change’. This
document articulates the Minister’s vision that active travel
becomes a pillar of change within towns and cities to cut
emissions, to improve health and wellbeing, and to better
connect families and communities. It commits to the adoption
of the sustainable transport hierarchy where prioritisation is
given to sustainable travel by providing for walking and
wheeling, then cycling, then public transport ahead of private
vehicle use.

3.2

The Minister followed this by publishing ‘Making Belfast an
Active City – Belfast Cycling Network 2021’ on 4 June 2021.
This document set out her ambition to make Belfast a more
cycle-friendly city and provides a blueprint for the
development and operation of the cycling infrastructure in the
city for the next ten years. The Belfast Cycling Network

D2314

Page 118

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

proposes a number of routes between Belfast and North
Down:



3.3

a greenway type route alongside the Belfast to Bangor
railway line; and
a walking and cycling path alongside Holywood Road
and the A2 north of Tillysburn.

In February 2022 DfI opened a consultation on the Sydenham
to Holywood link and are seeking views as to whether priority
should be given to developing one of three routes and noted
that the first two routes are already within the Belfast Cycling
Network, but the third route is not a part of the Network:
a) a path along the railway from Sydenham through
Holywood Exchange (red)
b) a path along Holywood Road through Holywood
Exchange (green)
c) upgrade the cycling route alongside the Sydenham
ByPass (blue)

3.4

Each of the proposed routes is between 4.0 and 4.8km long
and all of them start at the underpass vehicular entrance to
Victoria Park and terminate near Kinnegar, Holywood.
The routes would also provide a link between the existing
Comber and Connswater Greenways and Holywood Exchange
and the North Down Coastal Path. The preferred route will
determine which scheme will be included in the Belfast
Cycling Network delivery plan for construction in the short
term and which scheme(s) will be included in the longer term.

3.5

The link to the questionnaire is here Sydenham to Holywood
Walking, Wheeling and Cycling Routes - NI Direct - Citizen
Space and Members may wish to respond directly to this

3.6

Over the past couple of years, and in advance of the recent
public consultation, there has been ongoing engagement with
the DfI, the East Area Working Group and Officers on cycle
routes and greenways. DfI presented the proposed Sydenham
to Holywood consultation routes at the AWG meeting on
3 February 2022 where it was agreed that after the completion
of the public consultation, DfI would return to the AWG to
present the consultation findings.
Given the previous
feedback and engagement with DfI, it is likely that the AWG
will continue to be an appropriate mechanism for DfI,
Members and officers across Physical Programmes, City &
Neighbourhood Services and City Regeneration &
Development to enable further discussions to progress to the
next stage. DfI has noted that there is currently no budget to

D2315

Page 119

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

deliver the scheme at this time but would like to continue
engaging with Council to work up options for delivery and
once the routes have been agreed.
4.0

Financial and Resource Implications
None associated with this report.

5.0

Equality or Good Relations Implications /
Rural Needs Assessment
None associated with this report.”

In response to a number of comments from Members around the infrastructure at
the entrance of Victoria Park and preference towards greenway route options, the
Director of City Regeneration and Development informed the Committee that she would
pass the comments to the Department of Infrastructure.
The Committee:


Noted that the Department for Infrastructure was undertaking a public
consultation, by way of a short questionnaire, on the Sydenham to
Holywood Walking, Wheeling and Cycling routes;



Noted that there has been ongoing engagement by DfI with the East
Area Working Group and Council officers, in relation to the future
delivery of the routes, likely to continue to be an appropriate mechanism
for future discussions; and



Noted that Members might wish to respond directly to the questionnaire
and that reports could be brought back to the relevant Committees as
appropriate, should the proposals progress further.
Positioning Belfast to Compete

Culture Work Programme 2022/23
The Director of Economic Development and the Senior Manager, Culture and
Tourism, provided the Committee with an overview of the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update Members on the
current status of the ten-year cultural strategy, A City
Imagining and seek approval for key actions in 2022/23
aligned to the implementation of year 3 of the strategy.

D2316

Page 120

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to:



Note the contents of this report and progress against
the delivery of the cultural strategy priorities.
Agree the actions for 2022/23 including the budget
implications at 3.16 to be met from existing
departmental budgets.

3.0

Main report

3.1

Members will be aware that at a meeting of City Growth and
Regeneration Committee in August 2019 the final ten-year
cultural strategy for Belfast A City Imagining was agreed. This
included draft implementation plans for a three-year period to
be reviewed and finalised on an annual basis.

3.2

Despite the challenges of Covid-19 significant progress has
been made in delivery against strategic targets in year one and
year two of the strategy. The strategy made a commitment to
publishing an annual report in order to demonstrate the
impact of cultural development on the city’s wider agenda.
Due to the pandemic this was not completed in 2021 however
a report will be presented to Committee in quarter one of the
new financial year that summarises 2020/1 and 2021/2 with a
view to it being circulated to key city stakeholders.

3.3

In 2021/22 this work included:






£3.08m funding through 117 awards via the following
schemes: Cultural multi-annual funding including
support for Arts/ Heritage organisations and
Festivals/Events – 51 organisations supported;
Transition funding for 11 organisations that had
previously been in receipt of multi-annual funding; four
Pathfinder awards for organisations not in receipt of
core public sector support; Creative Bursaries for 10
individuals; 14 A City Imagining targeted cultural
leadership grants; five Access and Inclusion grants in
partnership with DfC; 20 Community Festivals Fund
in partnership with DfC and four Creative Development
Awards.
Additional investment was also made through the
Creative Communities programme as part of Peace IV.
Completion of cultural mapping of the city including
infrastructure audit.
Development of Co-design Framework for culture, arts
and heritage.

D2317

Page 121

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022





Strategic Delivery Body for Festival 2022 including
commissioning of Our Place in Space and support for
four additional projects.
Securing UNESCO City of Music Designation and
developing of music strategy.
Delivery of meanwhile use at 2 Royal Avenue.

3.4

As the city hopes to emerge from the pandemic, year 3 of the
strategy will seek to combine cultural recovery with renewal
in line with the commitments and priorities set out in A City
Imagining.

3.5

Investing in the cultural sector
At a meeting of City Growth and Regeneration in February
2022 recommendations for core-multi annual funding were
agreed providing support to 42 organisations for two years as
well as continuation of four-year scheme that supports a
further 13 organisations. This funding amounts to £2,430,010.

3.6

A further £79,768 was agreed in relation to Pathfinder
development funding for four organisations. Approval was
also granted to re-opened small grants (project funding) that
had been suspended during the pandemic.

3.7

In addition to these established funding schemes, the cultural
strategy committed to a broader investment model that
considered the diversity of the city’s cultural landscape.
In response to detailed consultation with the sector and
further evidenced by the impact of COVID-19, Committee
agreed in February 2022 to bring forward a specific funding
programme for studios and artist-led organisations.

3.8

Sectoral Development
In addition to funding, Belfast City Council fulfils an important
role in leading and supporting sectoral development
initiatives. In 2022/23 it is proposed that these will continue to
build on work undertaken to date as part of the
implementation of the cultural strategy as outlined below.
These include bespoke programmes designed in partnership
with sectoral organisations to specifically meet the priorities
of the cultural strategy including:




Belfast Audience Panel
Heritage Action Plan
Disability Action Plan

D2318

Page 122

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

3.9

Council also operates a number of sectoral Forums: Belfast
Festivals Forum and Belfast Visual Arts Forum.
To complement this work, new partnerships with Theatre and
Dance NI and Craft NI are proposed.

3.10

Members will be aware the Council has commissioned a report
LGBTQIA+ visibility and representation in Belfast’s Culture,
Arts and Heritage. Recommendations will be brought back to
Committee and developed into an action plan. A similar report
is due to be commissioned on minority ethnic representation.

3.11

As well as these Belfast focussed sectoral and participation
programmes, Council also provides partnership funding to
larger strategic programmes such as Blueprint for the future
– a capacity and financial growth programme for the arts.
Blueprint is a bespoke programme designed to meet the
unique needs of arts organisations and is based on a four-year
programme of research led by Arts & Business NI and
delivered by Small Change NI. Belfast City Council has
engaged with partners throughout this development phase.
It is designed to support small to mid-scale arts and cultural
companies from across Northern Ireland. It will support and
develop a cluster of organisations, investing in them over a
five-year period to strengthen long term financial
sustainability. Council’s invested in year one ensured that the
diversity and breadth of Belfast’s sector was recognised in the
programme. Council support is £30,000 per year amounting to
10% of total project costs and it is recommended that this level
of funding is maintained in year two of the programme.

3.12

Further wraparound support programmes
In addition to these bespoke programmes, Council officers
will continue to engage with the sector and respond to
challenges and opportunities throughout the year.
This wraparound support will be provided to all organisations
in receipt of funding. In addition, leadership mentoring will be
offered working with external specialists. Advice, training and
capacity building will also be provided to organisations who
have been unsuccessful in securing Council funding.

3.13

Cultural Participation and Engagement
As well as sectoral support for culture, arts, heritage and
events, Council also delivers initiatives designed to increase
accessibility and cultural participation. Research and
development projects were completed in 2021/22 and this will
be further developed into targeted initiatives in 2021/22.
Included below is an outline of this workstream.

D2319

Page 123

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022









3.14

Opportunities to engage with heritage and arts with
specific focus on support for telling Belfast Stories
through skills development programme.
In 2021 toolkits were developed to support the
activation of public space through community and
cultural led programming. As part of ongoing city
recovery, it is proposed that additional support is
offered to organisations seeking to use these spaces
across the city.
Designing capacity building programmes to improve
accessibility of cultural initiatives in the city through
initiatives such as Gig Buddies and how this can be
expanded to venues and events across the city.
Promoting cultural diversity in Council led events
through new programming approach in partnership
with the cultural sector.
In addition to local engagement the cultural strategy
also recognised the importance of supporting the
cultural sector and practitioners to engage and
connect globally ensuring opportunities for Belfast to
participate in international networks.

Strategic Initiatives
2024: Designated Year of Culture
2024 marks the beginning of the second implementation
phase of A City Imagining, a ten-year strategy. It is also the
year that has been earmarked as potential for strategic
cultural and tourism programmes that will specifically support
recovery of the international market. The cultural strategy
committed to a year of culture to ensure that the energy,
creativity, ambition and potential that had been harnessed as
part of this European Capital of Culture process could be
followed through on, to the benefit of the people of the city
and region. This is envisioned as a yearlong programme of
home-grown authentic cultural products with significant
international appeal. It will demonstrate how A City Imagining
is delivering against the five outcomes for the city as identified
in the Belfast Agenda.

3.15

Added to the established strategic context, there is now an
opportunity to pivot these plans in the context of city recovery
from Covid-19 in terms of both social cohesion but also in
terms of the repositioning of Belfast internationally. As part of
recovery plans it is proposed that the 2024 programme is
launched in 2022. It had been planned to launch the initiative
in 2021 however this was delayed due to the pandemic.

D2320

Page 124

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022

This will require programme development building on work
already underway such as the development of Urban Forest in
partnership with the Eden project. Ongoing engagement will
be required with the cultural sector to bring forward a codesigned commissioning approach. Further detail will be
presented to Committee throughout 2022 as emerging plans
develop.
3.16

Financial and Resource Implications
There are no new financial implications. The activities outlined
in this report will be resourced from the 2022/23 budget for the
Culture and Tourism section of the Economic Development
division of the Place and Economy Departmental budget in
line with existing approvals.

3.17

Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Assessment
The cultural strategy, A City Imagining has been subject to an
Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) and a Rural Needs
Assessment (RNA). Specific initiatives as required will be
subject to a further equality screening.”

The Committee:


Noted the content of the report and the progress against the delivery of
the cultural strategy priorities; and



Agreed to the proposed actions for 2022/23, which included the budget
implications, which would be met from existing departmental budgets.

Draft Music Strategy
The Director of Economic Development reported that, following on from Belfast
having been designated as a UNESCO City of Music in November, 2021, it had been
recognised that Council would need to reinforce the strategic ambitions around music
development in the city, in order to complete the necessary requirements for the
UNESCO designation.
He outlined the statistics, which had been gathered through an economic
appraisal, undertaken by Sound Diplomacy, which included:


In 2019, the Belfast music ecosystem had delivered a total economic
impact of 3131 jobs, which represented 2.05% of the city’s
employment; and

D2321

Page 125

City Growth and Regeneration Committee,
Wednesday, 9th March, 2022



The direct employment generated in 2019 (1781 jobs), represented
1.16% of the workforce in Belfast, which had been a larger contribution
than other sectors, such as construction of buildings.

He referred to engagement, which had taken place and stated that robust
consultation and partnership building, through continued work with the City of Music
Steering Group, since 2019.
He pointed out that the draft music strategy had four strategic themes and that
each had four strategic priorities.
He stated that the strategy put forward
recommendations for the following areas:





Leading the Way – The Belfast Music Governance Model, including
recommendations on a dedicated music officer/office working on
strategic delivery;
Take Back the City – The Belfast Music Leadership Model, including
the recruitment of a new Belfast Music Board to oversee the strategic
delivery;
Friends of Belfast Music – Partners and Allies, including developing
partnerships with Arts Council Ni, Tourism NI and BBC to deliver on
shared ambitions; and
Something to Sing About – Belfast Music Branding and
Communications Strategy, including promotion of our UNESCO City of
Music status locally and internationally.

He outlined to the Committee the next steps required in order to implement the
strategy from September, 2022.
The Committee:


Noted the content of the report;



Approved the draft music strategy to commence a 12-week public
consultation in April 2022; and



Agreed to receive a presentation of the final strategy, for consideration,
following completion of the consultation.

Chairperson

D2322

Page 126

Agenda Item 9
Licensing Committee
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022
MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE
HELD REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS
Members present:

In attendance:

Councillor Donnelly (Chairperson);
Aldermen Rodgers and Sandford; and
Councillors Bunting, Howard,
Hutchinson, M. Kelly, T. Kelly, Magee,
McAteer, McCabe, McCann, McCullough and McKeown.
.
Ms. K. Bentley, Director of Planning and Building Control;
Mr. S. Hewitt, Building Control Manager;
Mr. K. Bloomfield, HMO Unit Manager;
Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor; and
Ms. C. Donnelly, Democratic Services Officer.
Apologies

Apologies for inability to attend were reported for Councillors Bradley, Michael
Collins and Smyth.
Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of 16th February were taken as read and signed as
correct. It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its meeting
on 1st March, subject to the omission of those matters in respect of which the Council
had delegated its powers to the Committee.
Declarations of Interest
No declarations of interest were reported.
Delegated Matters
THE COMMITTEE DEALT WITH THE FOLLOWING ITEMS IN PURSUANCE
OF THE POWERS DELEGATED TO IT UNDER STANDING ORDER 37(d)
Licences Issued Under Delegated Authority
The Committee noted a list of applications for licences and Road Closure Orders
which had, since its last meeting, been approved under the Council’s Scheme of
Delegation.

E991

Page 127

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

Objections received outside the 28-day statutory
period to an application for the Renewal of a 14-Day
Occasional Outdoor Entertainments Licence
The Building Control Manager informed the Committee that an objection had been
received, outside the 28-day statutory period, to an application for the renewal of a 14day Occasional Outdoor Entertainments Licence for Boucher Road Playing Fields.
He pointed out that the applicant was the Director of Neighbourhood services, who
had applied on behalf of the Council, on 10th August, 2021 and that no objections had
been received within the statutory period. He advised the Committee that the objection
related to noise nuisance caused by outdoor concerts at the venue.
He informed the Committee that, upon receipt of the objection, a letter had been
issued to the objector to request him to outline the reasons why the objection had been
received outside the 28-day statutory period. The objector had responded stating that it
had been because he was busy and had professional commitments.
The Committee agreed to exercise its discretion and determined that the objection
against the application for the renewal of a licence for Boucher Road Playing Fields, which
had been received outside the 28-day statutory period, would be considered.
Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMO) Licences
issued under Delegated Authority
The Committee noted a list of licences for Houses in Multiple Occupation which
had, since its last meeting, been issued under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.
Application for a Renewal Licence to operate a
House of Multiple Occupation for 179 Stranmillis Road
The HMO Unit Manager provided the Committee with an overview of the
undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

To consider an application for a Licence permitting the use of
premises as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO).
Premises
179 Stranmillis
Road
Belfast
BT9 5AJ

1.2

Application
No.
8937

Applicant(s)
Mrs Maeve Fee

Managing
Agents
Fetherston
Clements
Estate Agents

Members are reminded that licences are issued for a 5-year
period with standard conditions. Where it is considered
necessary to do so, the Committee can also impose special
conditions.

B992

Page 128

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

Background
1.3

The property had the benefit of an HMO licence which expired
on the 07 December 2021.

1.4

An application for the renewal of the HMO licence was
received from the applicant on 06 December 2021.

1.5

Following the publication of this application, an objection was
received in relation to the application. This objection raises
the following concerns: 










Neglect of the property and environs
Invasion of privacy
Personal abuse / low level intimidation ASB
Inconsiderate and unreasonable behaviour
Parties at night with large gatherings and loud music
Leaving property unsecured
Leaving floodlights on all night which disturbs other
neighbours
Devaluation of property due to designation and
neglect
Parking across driveway
Overgrown leylandii trees to the front of the property

1.6

As a valid objection has been received, the application must
be considered by Committee which must, after hearing from
the objector and the applicant, decide whether to grant the
renewal application.

1.0

Recommendations

2.1

Taking into account the information presented Committee is
asked to hear from the Applicant and make a decision to
either:

(i)
(ii)
2.2

Grant the renewal application, with or without
any special conditions; or
Refuse the application.

If the application is refused, the Applicants have a right of
appeal to the County Court. Such an appeal must be lodged
within 28 days of formal notification of the decision.

B993

Page 129

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

3.0

Main Report
Key Issues

3.1

Pursuant to the Houses in Multiple Occupation Act (Northern
Ireland) 2016 (“the 2016 Act”), the Council may only grant a
licence if it is satisfied that:
a)

the occupation of the living accommodation as an
HMO would not constitute a breach of planning
control;

b)

the owner, and any managing agent of it, are fit and
proper persons;

c)

the proposed
satisfactory);

d)

the granting of the licence will not result in
overprovision of HMOs in the locality;

e)

the living accommodation is fit for human habitation
and—

management

arrangements

are

(i) is suitable for occupation as an HMO by
the number of persons to be specified in
the licence, or
(ii) can be made so suitable by including
conditions in the licence.
3.2

Section 20 of the 2016 Act states where the holder of an HMO
licence makes an application for renewal, the council must
apply the above provisions except for (a) and (d); namely
whether the use is a breach of planning control or would
result in overprovision.
Fitness

3.3

When considering the fitness of an applicant the Council
must have regard to any offences concerning fraud/
dishonesty, violence, drugs, human trafficking, firearms,
sexual offences, unlawful discrimination in, or in connection
with, the carrying on of any business; or any provision of the
law relating to housing or of landlord and tenant law. It also
permits the Council to take into account any other matter
which the council considers to be relevant.

3.4

The NIHMO Unit has consulted with the following units within
the Council’s City and Neighbourhood Services Department –

B994

Page 130

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

(a) Environmental Protection Unit (“EPU”) - who have
confirmed that in relation to night-time noise there
has been no relevant enforcement action required in
respect of the HMO in the last 5 years,
(b) Environmental Protection Unit (“EPU”) - who have
confirmed that in relation to day-time noise there has
been no relevant enforcement action required in
respect of the HMO in the last 5 years,
(c) Public Health and Housing Unit (“PHHU”) - who have
confirmed
that
in
relation
to
rubbish
accumulation/filthy premises, there has been no
relevant enforcement action required in respect of the
HMO in the last 5 years,
(d) Enforcement Unit (“EU”) - who have confirmed that in
relation to litter and waste, there has been no relevant
enforcement action required in respect of the HMO in
the last 5 years.
3.5

The Applicant and Managing Agent have confirmed that they
have not been convicted of any relevant offences as set out
at paragraph 3.3 of this report.

3.6

The Applicant or Managing Agent have not been convicted of
any HMO related offences by the Council. The EPU, PHHU and
EU, solely in respect of their statutory functions, have
confirmed that there are no relevant, previous convictions in
respect of the Applicant, Managing Agent or occupants. Due
to data protection issues which have arisen, PSNI have not
been accepting or responding to notification of these
applications.

3.7

The NIHMO Unit received 5 complaints regarding the subject
premises, details of those complaints and the action
undertaken by officers in response are included in Appendix
2.

3.8

Officers are not aware of any other issues relevant to the
Applicant’s fitness.
Representations

3.9

In accordance with paragraph 4 of schedule 2 of the 2016 Act,
a representation is only valid if it –
(a)
(b)

is made in writing,
sets out the name and address of the person making
the representation, and

B995

Page 131

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

(c)

3.10

is made on or before the deadline for making written
representations.

Following the publication of the notice of the application, a
valid representation was received in relation to the renewal
application. A copy of the representation and associated
document bundle is appended to this report at Appendix 3.
Attendance

3.11

The applicant and/or their representatives will be available to
discuss any matters relating to the licence application should
they arise during your meeting. The objector will also be in
attendance if members wish to hear from her.
Suitability of the premises

3.12

The accommodation was certified as complying with the
physical standards for an HMO by a technical officer from the
NIHMO service on the 07 February 2022.
Notice of proposed decision

3.13

On the 23 February 2022, pursuant to Paragraph 9 of Schedule
2 of the 2016 Act, Officers issued a Notice of Proposed
Decision to the Applicant setting out the terms of the
proposed licence. Appendix 4.

3.14

The Notice of Proposed Decision stated that the council
proposed to grant the licence in the terms applied for.
Applicant’s response to the notice of proposed decision

3.15

On the 9 March 2022 the applicant submitted a written
response to the notice of proposed decision Appendix 5. The
response deals with the representations and objections set
out by the objector and provides commentary on each of main
areas of concern.
Financial and Resource Implications

3.16

None. The cost of assessing the application and officer
inspections are provided for within existing budgets.
Equality and Good Relations Implications

3.17

There are no equality or good relations issues associated with
this report.”

B996

Page 132

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

The Chairperson welcomed the objector to the application, to the meeting, and
invited them to outline her reasons for objecting to the renewal of the licence.
She informed the Committee that the current management arrangements for the
property were not satisfactory and that, over the previous five years, she had suffered
continuous disruption to family life, and despite continuous complaints to the landlord,
managing agent and numerous tenants, the problems remained ongoing.
She outlined situations, such as late-night parties, loud music, numerous
individuals coming and going, disarray in the surrounds of the house and confrontations
with various tenants. She described how living next door to the property had negatively
impacted on her and her family’s lives.
The Chairperson welcomed Ms. C. Greene, of Fetherson Clemments Estate
Agents, the Property Agent for the Applicant, and Ms. M. Fee, the Owner and Applicant,
to the meeting.
Ms. Greene explained that as the Property Management Agent for the property,
she has had a good relationship with the owner and has always made time to discuss
property matters and undertake required works for the maintenance of the property. She
informed the Members that she felt the applicant surpassed the requirements to be
classified as a fit and proper person.
She reported that the applicant had made significant and continual investment in
the property and had worked with the Council to ensure that the property would meet the
HMO requirements and that officers had been satisfied following their last inspection.
She stated that she had no evidence that the property had ever been sub-let or
unsecured and that it was a well-maintained property, where the surrounding area had a
healthy mix of abodes and was an area of high demand. She added that she had received
no complaints from the other neighbouring property.
She advised the Members that there had been an antisocial behaviour plan in
place which included pre-tenancy checks, signing all tenants onto a tenancy agreement,
interventions if incidents did occur and prevention of future incidents.
She informed the Committee that the current, young professional tenants had
previously lived in another property managed by the Agent and that there had been no
complaints and they had been highly recommended by their previous landlord. She
added that the current tenants had complained of feeling harassed by the complaints and
felt that the noise coming from the property had not been excessive. However, she
acknowledged that the Council’s Noise Team had attended a recent incident where the
early morning noise had been audible and that the tenants had been provided with a
warning.
Ms. Greene stated that the current tenants had been informed that their tenancy
would not be renewed after their tenancy agreement had ended.
Several of the Members commended the objector for her submission of a
comprehensive and compelling case and expressed sympathy with her and her family,
due to the impact of the antisocial behaviour that had been endured whist the property

B997

Page 133

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

had operated as a House in Multiple Occupation. A Member objected to the inference
that the current tenants of the property felt aggrieved that complaints, some of which had
been validated by the Council’s Noise Team, had been made.
One Member referred to the lack of intervention from multiple agencies in
response to the continual complaints and referred to Schedule 2(b) of the HMO Act
(Northern Ireland) 2016, ‘the proposed management arrangements for the living
accommodation are satisfactory’, stating that, she felt in light of the case presented by
the Objector, this condition had not been complied with and that a responsibility lay with
the Committee to act in its role as the licensor.
Following further discussion, the Committee agreed to refuse the application and
delegated authority to the Director of City Services to finalise the reasons for refusal.
Application for a New Licence to operate a House
of Multiple Occupation for 5 Riverview Street
The Committee considered the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

To consider an application for a Licence permitting the use of
premises as a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO).
Premises
5 Riverview Street
Belfast
BT9 5FD

1.2

Application
No.
8908

Applicant(s)
Mr Che Gill

Managing
Agents
Hampton Estate
Agency Limited
T/A Hampton
Estates

Members are reminded that licences are issued for a 5-year
period with standard conditions. Where it is considered
necessary to do so, the Committee can also impose special
conditions.
Background

1.3

The property had the benefit of an HMO licence granted by the
Northern Ireland Housing Executive (“NIHE”) which expired
on the 16 March 2021 for 4 persons.

1.4

A reminder letter was sent to the owner on the 28 January
2021 informing him that his licence would be expiring on the
16 March 2021 and informing him that, “if you do not submit
the application before the existing licence expires any future
application will be treated as a New Application and the
council may only grant the licence if it is satisfied that the
occupation of the accommodation as an HMO would not
constitute a breach of planning control or would result in
overprovision of HMOs in the locality.” (Appendix 3)

B998

Page 134

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

1.5

The owner applied for a temporary exemption notice “TEN”
on the 14 May 2021 and specified the following steps with a
view to securing that the HMO ceases to be an HMO - “We
intend to serve a 12 week notice to quit to the tenants at the
property in line with the current Covid-19 regulations
informing the tenants that the house cannot be occupied as
an HMO whilst the licence has expired”. The TEN was granted
on the 17 May 2021.

1.6

On the 14 May 2021 an HMO licence application was received
from the owner of the accommodation. The NIHMO Unit
subsequently rejected the application on the 1 June 2021 as
the granting of the new licence would constitute a breach of
planning control.

1.7

On the 17 November 2021 an HMO licence application was
received from the owner of the accommodation.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Taking into account the information presented Committee is
asked to hear from the Applicant and make a decision to
either:
(i)
(ii)

Grant the application, with or without any special
conditions; or
Refuse the application.

2.2

If the application is refused, the Applicants have a right of
appeal to the County Court. Such an appeal must be lodged
within 28 days of formal notification of the decision.

3.0

Main Report
Key Issues

3.1

Pursuant to the 2016 Act, the Council may only grant a licence
if it is satisfied that:
a) the occupation of the living accommodation as an
HMO would not constitute a breach of planning
control;
b) the owner, and any managing agent of it, are fit and
proper persons;
c) the proposed management arrangements are
satisfactory);
d) the granting of the licence will not result in
overprovision of HMOs in the locality;

B999

Page 135

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

e) the living accommodation is fit for human habitation
and—
(i) is suitable for occupation as an HMO by the
number of persons to be specified in the
licence, or
(ii) can be made so suitable by including
conditions in the licence.
Planning
3.2

As this is a new application the NIHMO Unit consulted with
the Council’s Planning Service who on the 19 November 2021
confirmed that a Certificate of Lawful Existing Use or
Development (“CLEUD”) was granted with the planning
reference LA04/2021/1905/LDE.
Fitness

3.3

When considering the fitness of an applicant the Council
must have regard to any offences concerning fraud/
dishonesty, violence, drugs, human trafficking, firearms,
sexual offences, unlawful discrimination in, or in connection
with, the carrying on of any business; or any provision of the
law relating to housing or of landlord and tenant law. It also
permits the Council to take into account any other matter
which the council considers to be relevant.

3.4

The NIHMO Unit has consulted with the following units within
the Council’s City and Neighbourhood Services Department –
(a)

Environmental Protection Unit (“EPU”) - who have
confirmed that in relation to night-time noise there
has been no relevant enforcement action required in
respect of the HMO in the last 5 years,

(b)

Environmental Protection Unit (“EPU”) - who have
confirmed that in relation to day-time noise there has
been no relevant enforcement action required in
respect of the HMO in the last 5 years,

(c)

Public Health and Housing Unit (“PHHU”) - who have
confirmed
that
in
relation
to
rubbish
accumulation/filthy premises, there has been no
relevant enforcement action required in respect of
the HMO in the last 5 years,

(d)

Enforcement Unit (“EU”) - who have confirmed that
in relation to litter and waste, there has been no
relevant enforcement action required in respect of
the HMO in the last 5 years.

B1000

Page 136

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

3.5

The Applicants and Managing Agent have confirmed that they
have not been convicted of any relevant offences as set out
at paragraph 3.3 of this report.

3.6

The Applicant or Managing Agent have not been convicted of
any HMO related offences by the Council. The EPU, PHHU and
EU, solely in respect of their statutory functions, have
confirmed that there are no relevant, previous convictions in
respect of the Applicant, Managing Agent or occupants. Due
to data protection issues which have recently arisen, PSNI
have not been accepting or responding to notification of
these applications. Officers are continuing to engage with
PSNI to find a resolution to this issue.

3.7

Officers are not aware of any other issues relevant to the
Applicant’s fitness.
Overprovision

3.8

For the purpose of determining whether or not the granting of
a licence would result in an overprovision of HMOs in the
locality of the accommodation, and in order to ensure
consistency as both a planning and licensing authority the
locality was defined as being HMO Policy Area “HMO 2/19
Stranmillis” as defined in the document “Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMOs) Subject Plan for Belfast City Council Area
2015.

3.9

Legal Services has advised that there is a clear requirement
in Section 8 of the 2016 Act upon the Council to be satisfied
that the granting of a licence will not result in overprovision.

3.10

On the date of assessment, 17 January 2022 there were a total
of 342 licensed HMOs in HMO policy area “HMO 2/19
Stranmillis” which equates to 45% of the total dwelling units,
which in turn exceeds the 30% development limit as set out at
Policy HMO 1. The 342 licensed HMOs have a capacity of 1466
persons.

3.11

The total number of dwelling units in a Policy Area is
measured by Ordnance Survey’s Pointer database.

3.12

The Council must also consider the need for housing
accommodation in the locality and the extent to which HMO
accommodation is required to meet that need.

3.13

The council recognises that there is a need for intensive
forms of housing and to meet this demand, Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMOs) are an important component of this

B1001

Page 137

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

housing provision. HMOs, alongside other accommodation
options within the private rented sector, play an important
role in meeting the housing needs of people who are single,
who have temporary employment, students, low-income
households and, more recently, migrant workers.
3.14

In September 2017 The Housing Executive published the
document “Housing Market Analysis Update – Belfast City
Council Area” which states “HMOs form an important element
of the PRS, particularly for younger people on low incomes
and for single people, under the age of 35, affected by the
limitation of housing benefit to the shared room rate.
Anecdotal evidence also indicates that this has been a
popular sector with migrant workers.”

3.15

On the 21 January 2022 there were 5 licensed HMOs
advertised for let on the website Property News in BT9, from
the information provided on the website this represented 16
bed spaces, although not all of these may have been available
for immediate occupancy.

3.16

A survey of 45 properties undertaken on 21 January 2022
determined there was accommodation available in 5 licensed
HMOs advertised on the website Property News in BT9. From
the information provided on the website this represented 16
bed spaces, although not all of these may have been available
for immediate occupancy.

3.17

Anecdotal evidence from conversations with HMO managing
agents suggest that that there is currently a lack of HMO
accommodation available in the locality. It is too early to tell
whether this is a temporary problem or evidence of an
emerging long-term supply issue.

3.18

The fact the use of the property as an HMO is permitted for
planning purposes is a relevant consideration in determining
whether the grant of this licence will result in overprovision.
There is an argument that it may not do so as the premises
are already being used as an HMO.

3.19

However, it should be borne in mind that planning permission
was granted on the basis that the use had been established
for 5 or more years and was therefore immune to
enforcement. No assessment of overprovision was made at
that time. Given the level of licensed HMO properties in this
locality as set out above it would be highly unlikely that a
planning application for a new HMO in the area would be
successful as the thresholds in the 2015 Plan have been
significantly exceeded.

B1002

Page 138

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

Objections
3.20

No objections have been received in relation to this
application.
Attendance

3.21

The applicant and/or their representatives will be available to
discuss any matters relating to the licence application should
they arise during your meeting.
Suitability of the premises

3.22

The accommodation was certified as complying with the
physical standards for an HMO by a technical officer from the
NIHMO service on the 14 January 2022.
Notice of proposed decision

3.23

On the 27 January 2022, pursuant to Paragraph 9 of Schedule
2 of the Houses in Multiple Occupation Act (Northern Ireland)
2016, Officers issued a Notice of Proposed Decision to the
Applicant setting out the terms of the proposed licence.
Appendix 4

3.24

The Notice of Proposed Decision stated that the council
proposed to refuse the licence as The Council is not satisfied
that(a) the granting of the licence will not result in
overprovision of HMOs in the locality in which the
living accommodation is situated.
A statement of reasons for the proposal was included in the
Notice of Proposed Decision.

3.25

The statement of reasons outlined the following as the
Council’s basis for refusal:Overprovision
In accordance with Section 12 of the Houses in Multiple
Occupation Act (Northern Ireland) 2016 “2016 Act” the
Council is satisfied that the granting of the HMO licence will
result in overprovision of HMO accommodation in the locality
of the accommodation for the purpose of section 8(2)(d) of the
2016 Act.

B1003

Page 139

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

For the purpose of Section 12(2) of the 2016 Act. The Council
has determined the locality of the accommodation as being
HMO Policy Area “HMO 2/19 Stranmillis” as defined in the
document “Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) Subject
Plan for Belfast City Council Area 2015 (the “2015 Plan”)
In making this decision the Council has had regard to:
(a) the number and capacity of licensed HMOs in the
locality
(b) the need for housing accommodation in the locality
and the extent to which HMO accommodation is
required to meet that need
To inform the Council in its consideration of the above
provisions, the Council has taken account of the 2015 Plan
and in particular, Policy HMO 1 and Policy HMO 2.
The total number of dwelling units in a Policy Area is
measured by Ordnance Survey’s Pointer database.
In regard to Section 12(2)(a) the number and capacity of
licensed HMOs in the locality.
On the date of assessment, 17 January 2022 there were a total
of 342 licensed HMOs in HMO policy area “HMO 2/19
Stranmillis” which equates to 45% of the total dwelling units,
which in turn exceeds the 30% development limit as set out at
Policy HMO 1. The 342 licensed HMOs have a capacity of 1466
persons.
In regard to Section 12(2)(b) the need for housing
accommodation in the locality and the extent to which HMO
accommodation is required to meet that need.
A survey of 45 properties undertaken on 21 January 2022
determined there was accommodation available in 5 licensed
HMOs advertised on the website Property News in BT9. From
the information provided on the website this represented 16
bed spaces, although not all of these may have been available
for immediate occupancy.
Anecdotal evidence from conversations with HMO managing
agents suggest that that there is currently a lack of HMO
accommodation available in the locality. It is too early to tell
whether this is a temporary problem or evidence of an
emerging long-term supply issue.
In assessing the number and capacity of licenced HMOs as
well as the need for HMO accommodation in the locality.

B1004

Page 140

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

Officers cannot be satisfied that the granting of the HMO
licence will not result in overprovision of HMO
accommodation in the locality of the accommodation for the
purpose of section 8(2)(d) of the 2016 Act.
Applicant’s response to the notice of proposed decision
3.26

On the 3 February 2022 the applicant submitted a written
response to the notice of proposed decision (Appendix 4).

3.27

The applicant suggests that his application would have been
renewed if the deadline for renewal had not been missed
which was caused by, and at the height of the coronavirus
pandemic when inspections were unable to proceed due to
government guidance.

3.28

The applicant goes on to suggest that the proposed decision
is procedurally unfair and unreasonable given the
circumstances that were presented at the time. He refers to a
letter from the HMO Unit in August 2020 which states, “Belfast
City Council, Housing in Multiple Occupation (HMO) are
operating a reduced service,” and that …, Council officers are
currently unable to undertake HMO inspections, in respect of
applications submitted in view of Covid-19 government
guidance.

3.29

The letter of August 2020 also states “You can make an
application for a licence and payment only at this time.
Existing licence holders should submit their renewal
application online before the expiry of their existing licence
(including the required payment). If the renewal application is
received before the expiry date the existing licence will,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 21 of the Houses in
Multiple Occupations Act (Northern Ireland) 2016, continue to
have effect until the application is determined.

3.30

The applicant refers in his response to the statement made to
this committee in May 2021 by David Polley, the DfC Director
of Housing Supply “The legislation is quite explicit that it was
not intended to reduce the number of HMOs which were
already there. The explanatory memorandum for Section 20
does say that an application to renew cannot be refused on
the grounds of overprovision.”

3.31

As this application was submitted after the existing licence
expired, this is a new licence application and Section 20 does
not apply.

B1005

Page 141

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

Financial and Resource Implications
3.32

None. The cost of assessing the application and officer
inspections are provided for within existing budgets.
Equality and Good Relations Implications

3.33

There are no equality or good relations issues associated with
this report.”

The Chairperson welcomed the Applicant, Mr. C. Gill, to the meeting.
Mr. Gill informed the Committee that the reasons for his application having been
submitted late were that, during the Covid-19 pandemic, he isolated with his vulnerable
parents. He stated that upon receipt of letter in August 2020, to advise him that he must
renew his HMO licence, he presumed that while restrictions were in place that he would
not be able to renew his application with the HMO Unit.
He pointed out that, during the pandemic, he had issued rent reductions to his
tenants as they had been employed by the NHS and had been subject to periods of
isolation.
He further added that, in September 2020, he had travelled to France for business
purposes and had intended to return, upon his family having been vaccinated, however,
in January 2021, when he had been due to return to Belfast, his flight had been cancelled
as a result of the pandemic. He highlighted that the house had been vacant for the
previous seven months and stated that he had thought that some mitigations would have
been in place surrounding the renewal process, given the impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic.
Following discussion with the Divisional Solicitor, the Applicant agreed that officers
would apply to the Court for an extension of time and the Committee agreed to defer the
decision, pending further legal advice.
Non-Delegated Matters
The Exhibition and Rating of "Foscadh" Irish Language Film
The Building Control Manager reported that, a request had been received on 21st
February regarding the screening of an Irish Language film entitled “Foscadh” on the 11th
March, as part of an Irish Film Festival, with screenings planned at the Omniplex cinema
at the Kennedy Centre and the Odeon in the City Centre.
He informed the Committee that the film had been classified as a 16 rating by the
IFCO (Irish Film Classification Office) and that it had not been given a rating by the British
Board of Film Classification (BBFC).
He pointed out that approval to permit the film to be exhibited was usually
considered and given by the Licensing Committee, however, the request had been

B1006

Page 142

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

received after the February Committee meeting and the screening had been proposed to
take place before the March meeting of the Committee, on 11th March.
He reported that discussions had taken place with Legal Services with regard to
the options available to the Council and that Legal Services had advised that the decision
could be taken under the delegated authority of the Strategic Director of Place and
Economy (in accordance with paragraph 2.3 of the Scheme of Delegation which dealt
with emergencies and cases of urgency), subject to consulting the appropriate
Chairperson and reporting the matter to the Licensing Committee at its subsequent
meeting.
He informed the Members that, as the film had not been classified by the BBFC
and there was no equivalent 16 rating, it had not been considered appropriate for officers
to determine whether it should be shown with a BBFC rating of 15 or 18.
The Building Control Manager stated that the matter had been discussed with the
Chairperson of the Licensing Committee and the appropriate course of action had been
considered to be that the film would be allowed to be shown and advertised as having an
IFCO classification of 16 only and that the Strategic Director of Place and Economy had
exercised his powers of delegated authority and had approved the exhibition of “Foscadh”
in cinemas in Belfast on the 11 March 2022 as part of an Irish Film Festival with an IFCO
rating of 16.
The Committee noted the report.
Issues raised in advance by Members
To reconsider the refusal of a Designating Resolution
for a Street Trading Site in King Street - Councillor McCusker
Councillor McKeown addressed the Committee on behalf of Councillor McCusker,
and he informed the Members that Councillor McCusker had made a request to the
Committee to reconsider the decision of the Licensing Committee, taken on 10th March
2021, to refuse to designate a new street trading site on King Street for the sale of hot
and cold food and non-alcoholic beverages at night-time.
In response to a question from a Member, regarding the legal implications of
designating a site where the applicant had indicated that he would use the services of a
private security firm, the Building Control Manager stated that the Committee was being
asked to permit reconsideration of the designation of the site. If agreed, this would entail
undertaking further consultation with the PSNI and other relevant agencies along with
public notification of the application, as part of the designation process, and this issue
would be raised with the relevant parties.
Proposal
Moved by Councillor Magee,
Seconded by Councillor McAteer,

B1007

Page 143

Licensing Committee,
Wednesday, 16th March, 2022

That the Committee reconsider the decision of its meeting of 10th March 2021, to
refuse to designate a street trading site in King Street.
On a recorded vote, seven Members voted for the proposal and six against and it
was declared carried.
For 7

Against 6

Councillor
Donnelly
(Chairperson); and
Councillors M. Kelly, Magee,
McAteer, McCabe, McCann
and McKeown.

Aldermen Rodgers and Sandford;
and
Councillors Bunting, Howard, T.
Kelly and McCullough.

Chairperson

B1008

Page 144

Agenda Item 10
Planning Committee
Wednesday, 2nd March, 2022
SPECIAL HYBRID MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Members present:

Councillor Carson (Chairperson);
The High Sheriff, Councillor Hussey;
Councillors Brooks, Garrett, Hanvey, Maskey,
O’Hara and Spratt.

In attendance:

Ms. K. Bentley, Director of Planning and Building Control;
Mr. E. Baker, Planning Manager (Development Management);
Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor;
Ms. C. Donnelly, Democratic Services Officer; and
Mrs. L. McLornan, Democratic Services Officer.
Apologies

Apologies for inability to attend were received from Councillors Matt Collins, Groogan,
Hutchinson and Murphy.
Declarations of Interest
No declarations of interest were recorded.
Planning Application
THE COMMITTEE DEALT WITH THE FOLLOWING ITEMS IN PURSUANCE OF THE
POWERS DELEGATED TO IT BY THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING ORDER 37(e)
LA04/2021/2299/F - Change of use relating to part of
unit 34 ground floor area from (class a1) retail unit to
(sui generis) coffee shop with provision of external
seating area; change of use (including re-configuration
of internal stair/lifts, ancillary spaces and all associated
works) of first and second floor levels of unit 34 and
existing first floor level of unit 61 (class a1) and mall
01-k9 to (sui generis) family entertainment centre to
include, crazy golf; lazer quest; indoor caving;
escape rooms; bumper cars; virtual reality arcade;
restaurants & bars and outdoor terrace at second
floor; and (class d2) cinema with bar. 61 & Mall 01-K9
Castlecourt Shopping Centre, Royal Avenue
The Planning Manager (Development Management) provided the Committee with an
overview of the application. He advised that the site was located within Belfast City Centre
and comprised frontage units within the CastleCourt shopping centre on Royal Avenue.
The site included vacant retail units on the ground, first, and second floors and was last
occupied by Debenhams Department store.

F1473

Page 145

Special Meeting of Planning Committee,
Wednesday, 2nd March, 2022

The Members were advised that the key issues which had been considered during the
assessment of the proposal included:









the principle of loss of retail space and proposed uses at the location;
the economic impact of the proposal;
layout, design and impact on built heritage;
impact on amenity / character of the area;
impact on transport and other infrastructure;
impact on flooding and drainage;
economic considerations; and
developer contributions

The Planning Manager explained that the site was within the City Centre in the BUAP
2001 and both versions of draft BMAP. He advised that it was also within the Primary Retail
Core within both dBMAP versions, and Primary Retail Frontage with draft BMAP 2014.
The site was located adjacent to the City Centre Conservation Area.
The Members were advised that the proposal comprised alterations to facilitate a
change of use from retail with the upper floors to entertainment uses, and reconfigurations at
ground floor to facilitate two retail units and a café. They were advised that the proposal
comprised City Centre uses, as defined in the SPPS, and therefore complied with that aspect
of the policy which promoted a “City Centre first” approach for retail and leisure uses.
The Planning Manager outlined that it was considered that the entertainment uses
would fulfil a complementary function and not adversely impact on the function or retailing
activities of the city centre.
The Committee was advised that the proposed physical alterations were largely
internal within the existing shopping centre and did not require planning permission. However,
some external alterations were necessary to the external facades to facilitate the proposal,
including the introduction of new glazing, doors, louvres, and shopfronts. The Council’s
Conservation Officer had been consulted and had no objections, concluding that the existing
CastleCourt façade was not considered to be of heritage value. The proposed changes were
considered sensitively designed and appropriate for the existing building and the character
and appearance of the adjacent Conservation Area would be preserved. The setting of nearby
Listed Buildings would not be harmed.
Given the current commercial use of the site, its City Centre location, the nature of
surrounding similar uses, and lack of any sensitive uses nearby, it was not considered that the
proposal would result in any adverse amenity impacts.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Late Items pack, whereby a response had
been received from Environmental Health confirming that it had no objections subject to
conditions regarding noise. He advised the Committee that the applicant had since confirmed
that they were in agreement with the conditions and that the wording of the conditions would
need to be refined by officers to ensure compliance with the six tests for conditions.

F1474

Page 146

Special Meeting of Planning Committee,
Wednesday, 2nd March, 2022

The Committee was also advised that DFI Rivers had submitted a response confirming
that it had no objections subject to a condition in respect of drainage. The applicant had
confirmed that they were content with the condition but had requested that the trigger point for
it be amended to occupation instead of prior to the commencement of works. The Planning
manager explained that the wording of the condition would need to be refined by officers to
ensure compliance with the six tests for conditions.
The Planning Manager advised that NI Water had recommended a refusal based on
the information provided, however, further information had since been provided by the
applicant to NI Water under the Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) process. The applicant had
sought to demonstrate that a reduction in overall footfall to the units and net reduction in
discharge rates was achievable from the site. He outlined that officers advised that account
must also be taken of the existing use and operations, associated discharge rates and the
significant number of unimplemented permissions across the city.
He reported that the Council had subsequently received verbal indications from
NI Water that it would remove it’s objection to the application and that a condition would be
necessary to resolve stormwater capacity prior to the development becoming operational.
The Members were advised that that was consistent with recent correspondence between
NI Water and the applicant, which the Council had had sight of. The officer’s recommendation
was, therefore, approval subject to NI Water formally withdrawing it’s objection. NI Water had
been re-consulted accordingly. Following NI Water’s response, he explained that further
consultation with DFI Rivers would be necessary to confirm compliance with PPS15 FLD3.
The Committee was advised that no objections had been received from any other
consultees and that no third party representations had been received from the public in respect
of the application.
The applicant had advised that the scheme comprised an investment of around
£10.8million. In addition, the development would create up to 125 jobs during the construction
phase, and up to 130 full time and part-time jobs post completion. The Committee was advised
that the proposal would also see the reoccupation of what once was the anchor store for
CastleCourt shopping centre, attracting footfall, and supporting both CastleCourt and the
wider City Centre.
The Planning Manager explained that the applicant was under an extremely tight
timeframe for the prospective tenants to be able to fit out the units for opening by
October/November 2022. If the works were not completed by November 2022 then they would
have to be delayed as ongoing works would interfere with Christmas trading for existing
occupiers of the shopping centre. He added that there was also concern about rising
construction costs and the impact that delays would have on the deliverability and affordability
of the scheme.
The Chairperson welcomed Mr. T. Stokes, agent, and Ms. L. Elliott, applicant, to the
meeting.

F1475

Page 147

Special Meeting of Planning Committee,
Wednesday, 2nd March, 2022

Mr. Stokes advised the Committee that:


over the last 10 years, the retail sector had been going through a period
of significant turbulence, which had then been further exacerbated by the
ongoing impacts brought by the COVID pandemic;



the Department Store concept had been hit at an unprecedented rate
leaving sizeable empty spaces across city centres. In a bid to address
that, the repurposing of large retail units had already taken place across
a number of the regional cities, such as Edinburgh and Liverpool;
since the loss of Debenhams, CastleCourt had no anchor to attract much
needed footfall - which also had a direct impact on the other 75 retailers
within the city centre. That section of Royal Avenue had become severely
run down and was a ghost town after 6pm every day of the week;
the application would help to kick-start the much-needed regeneration of
Royal Avenue, and would aid in addressing the existing disconnect
between the new Ulster University Campus development and the city
centre; and
the scheme represented a significant investment of around £11million and
a contractor had been appointed and was ready to start immediately.







Ms. Elliott, on behalf of Wirefox, advised the Committee that:








they were thankful to the Committee and to the Planners for holding a
Special meeting to consider the application;
the change of use permission also provided a much-needed kick start of
the regeneration of the Royal Avenue area which was in dire need of
reactivation, illumination and rejuvenation.
the direct economic benefits of the change of use were clear, with up to
125 jobs being created during the construction phase and a further 130
full and part time jobs post completion. However, it would also preserve
over 1,000 jobs in respect of those other 75 struggling retailers within the
centre;
the university campus would be fully open later in the year but that, with a
lack of progression with surrounding developments such as Tribeca,
The Sixth and Building blocks, and with a number of years before the
Belfast Stories tourist attractive would be open there was unfortunately
still a disconnect between the campus and the city centre, and Royal
Avenue remained a wasteland between the two; and
timing was critical and a successful leisure scheme relied on a strong
launch and as such openings were timed around key holiday periods. With
a 26-week construction programme before the tenants own fit outs, they
would achieve a Christmas opening. However, timing was so tight that if
they could not commence immediately the opening would be delayed until
next Easter at the earliest, which would be disastrous for the centre.

The Chairperson thanked the representatives for their attendance.

F1476

Page 148

Special Meeting of Planning Committee,
Wednesday, 2nd March, 2022

The Committee granted approval to the application, subject to formal resolution of NI
Water’s objection, with delegated authority given to the Director of Planning and Building
Control to finalise the conditions.
LA04/2021/1702/F - Alterations and 3 storey extension
to existing private hospital including vehicular access and
car parking (amendment to previously approved two storey
permission granted under LA04/2017/0005/Fat 807 - 809
Lisburn Road Belfast BT9 and incorporating part of Kingsbridge
Private Hospital at Nos 811- 815 Lisburn Road
The Planning Manager advised the Committee that the above application had been
granted approval by the Committee at its meeting on 15th February. He explained that it would
be necessary to notify the Department for Infrastructure in respect of the application, in view
of the objection from a statutory consultee, NI Water.
The Committee noted the update which had been provided.

Chairperson

F1477

Page 149

This page is intentionally left blank

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022
HYBRID MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Members present:

Councillor Hanvey (Deputy Chairperson);
The High Sheriff, Councillor Hussey;
Councillors Brooks, Matt Collins,
Garrett, Groogan, Hutchinson, Maskey, McMullan,
Murphy, O’Hara, Spratt and Whyte.

In attendance:

Ms. K. Bentley, Director of Planning and Building Control;
Mr. E. Baker, Planning Manager (Development Management);
Mr. K. Sutherland, Planning Manager (Policy);
Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor;
Mrs. S. Steele, Democratic Services Officer; and
Mrs. L. McLornan, Democratic Services Officer.

(Councillor Hanvey, Deputy Chairperson, in the Chair)
Apologies
An apology for inability to attend was reported from the Chairperson, Councillor
Carson.
Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of 15th February were taken as read and signed as correct.
It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council at its meeting on
1st March, subject to the omission of those matters in respect of which the Council had
delegated its powers to the Committee.
Declarations of Interest
No declarations of interest were recorded.
Motion: Historic Street Signs
The Committee considered the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

To consider a motion in relation to Historic Belfast Street Signs,
which the Standards and Business Committee, at its meeting on
22nd February, referred to this Committee.

1.0

Recommendations

1.1

The Committee is asked to

F1478

Page 151

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022



Consider the motion and to take such action thereon as
may be determined.

3.0

Main report

3.1

Key Issues
The Standards and Business Committee, at its meeting on
22nd February, considered a report providing details of the
motions which had been received for consideration by the Council
on 1st March.

3.2

In accordance with Standing Order 37(h), the following motion,
which had been proposed by Councillor McKeown and seconded
by Councillor de Faoite, was referred directly to the Planning
Committee for consideration.
Historic Belfast Street Signs
“This Council recognises the important role that traditional black
tile street signs play in the built heritage of Belfast and the
aesthetic benefits they bring to the character of the city. However,
it notes with concern the absence of robust protections to ensure
their upkeep, which could put at direct threat this significant part
of Belfast’s history.
The Council therefore agrees to undertake a review with the aim
of identifying firm and practical recommendations for
implementation in consideration of the following:


Creating a register of all historic street signs in Belfast
including, where possible, details of their ownership;



Putting in place arrangements for the timely repair and
upkeep of historic street signs, including those which are
listed and in council ownership, and those that are not
listed;



Establishing arrangements for the reinstatement of signs
which would have originally been traditional black signs
but have subsequently been replaced with generic street
signs – this could be done when the generic sign needs
replaced at the natural end of its lifespan or after damage.
Reinstatements should use the traditional white font and
black background and may include the use of other
materials if appropriate and more practical;

F1479

Page 152

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022



Assessing whether steps should be undertaken to
request the listing of all traditional Belfast street signs to
provide them with legal protection, particularly those that
are not in council ownership and may currently have to
protection;



Putting in place requisite resources to enable the above
to be rolled out and continued, including accessing
government or third party funding if available to enable
heritage and protection work to be undertaken; and



Any other relevant issues which arise during the course
of this review.”

3.3

The Committee should note that a motion which incorporated
some of the areas above had previously been referred to the
Planning Committee:
http://www.internalminutes/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=167&MID
=9745#AI56216.

3.4

A number of the street signs set out in the motion were
subsequently listed:
http://www.internalminutes/documents/s90925/20210420HEDListi
ngStreetSigns.pdf

3.5

Officers from Building Control, Planning and City Services are
seeking to progress the work set out in paragraph 3 of the original
motion and that the motion was referred to the Planning
Committee to allow it to determine whether it wishes to
incorporate the additional requests.

3.6

Financial and Resource Implications
None.

3.7

Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Assessment
None associated with this report.”

The Committee adopted the motion.
Committee Site Visits
The Committee noted that site visits had taken place in respect of the below applications
on 3rd March, 2022:


LA04/2021/2285/F - Apartment Development at 29 Parkside Gardens; and

F1480

Page 153

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022



LA04/2021/1808/F - Residential development comprising of 14 dwellings, access from
Lagmore View Lane and Lagmore Glen, completion of remaining areas of open space
(including hard and soft landscaping), provision of parking bays, speed bumps and
bollards to improve road safety along Lagmore View Road, and all associated site
works on lands South and East of 148-163 Lagmore View Lane North and West of 37
81 82 and 112 Lagmore Glen and Lagmore View Road
Request to hold a Pre-Determination Hearing
and Pre-emptive Site Visit

The Committee agreed to hold a Pre-Determination Hearing and Pre-emptive Site Visit
in respect of the following application:


LA04/2021/2856/O - Mixed use regeneration development comprising office (Class
B1), residential apartments (including affordable), retail (Class A1), hotel, leisure
(Class D2), public realm, active travel uses, cafes, bars and restaurants, and
community uses (Class D1), on lands surrounding the new Belfast Transport Hub
and over the Transport Hub car park, to the east and west of Durham St and south
of Grosvenor Rd. on lands to east of West Link (A12) and south of Grosvenor Road;
Lands at Grosvenor Road and intersection of Grosvenor Road and Durham Street;
Lands to the east of Durham Street and north of Glengall Street; Lands at Glengall
Street; Lands between Glengall Street and Hope Street including Europa Bus
Station, Great Victoria Rail Station, surface car parks at St Andrew’s Square;
Translink lands to west of Durham Street, south of BT Exchange building and north
of Murray’s Tobacco Works.
Request to hold a Pre-Determination Hearing

The Committee agreed to hold a Pre-Determination Hearing in respect of the following
application:


LA04/2020/1943/F and LA04/2020/1944/LBC - Residential conversion of the
existing listed warehouses to form 57 (1 to 3 bed units, including 60% social and
affordable to include a minimum of 20% social housing at 3-19 (Former
Warehouse) Rydalmere Street.
Planning Decisions Issued

The Committee noted a list of decisions which had been taken under the delegated
authority of the Strategic Director of Place and Economy, together with all other planning
decisions which had been issued by the Planning Department between 8th February and
4th March 2022.
Planning Appeals Notified
The Committee noted the receipt of correspondence in respect of a number of planning
appeals which had been submitted to the Planning Appeals Commission, together with the
outcomes of a range of hearings which had been considered by the Commission.

F1481

Page 154

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

Miscellaneous Items
Housing Monitor 2021 -2022
The Committee considered the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues

1.1

To provide an overview of the Council’s Housing Land Availability
Summary Report for the 2020/21 monitoring period.
The report presents the outcomes of annual housing land
monitoring and provides a snapshot of the amount of land
available for new residential development as of 1 April 2020. It will
be supported by an online map portal showing the status of all
existing housing monitor sites. The map portal will also spatially
reflect key information contained within the tables of the report.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the outcomes of the annual
Housing Monitor report for 2020/21 contained here and the
intention to publish this summary document and accompanying
online map portal on the Council’s website.

3.0

Main Report
Background

3.1

Members are reminded that the Planning Act (NI) 2011 requires the
Council to make an annual report to the Department for
Infrastructure (DfI) outlining the extent to which the objectives set
out in the Local Development Plan (LDP) are being achieved. As
the Council are currently preparing the first new LDP for Belfast
under this new legislation, the production of Annual Monitoring
Reports has not yet commenced. Instead, annual Housing Land
Availability Monitor reports (referred to as the ‘Housing Monitor’
reports) are being prepared by the Council until the new LDP is
adopted.

3.2

Members will be aware that the draft Plan Strategy, the first formal
stage of the Belfast LDP, was subject to Independent Examination
between November 2020 and March 2021. Although the Council
generally aim to publish the Housing Land Availability Summary
Report for the previous monitoring period in the Autumn each
year, the 2020/21 Report was prepared subsequent to the
Independent Examination. The publication of the report was
therefore delayed to avoid the introduction of new evidence in
advance of the Independent Examination report being forwarded

F1482

Page 155

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

to the Council. The Council received the ‘Independent
Examination Report of Belfast City Council’s Local Development
Plan: Plan Strategy’ on 4th February 2022.
3.3

While the Housing Land Availability Summary Report for the
2020/21 monitoring period is being brought to Committee at this
late stage, work has commenced on the Housing Land Availability
Summary Report for the 2021/22 monitoring period which will be
brought to Committee in late summer for publication in the
Autumn 2022.
Housing Land Availability Reports

3.4

The primary purpose of the Housing Monitor is to inform the
formulation of the Council’s new LDP. However, it will also help
the Council identify where a shortfall in potential land supply
might exist and can inform house-builders on the availability of
land that may be suitable for housing.

3.5

The Housing Land Availability Summary Report presents the
headline figures from a register of potential housing land
maintained by the Council, based on current planning policy
designations and planning permissions. This provides a snapshot
of the amount of land available for new homes and capacity for
future housing units as of 1st April 2020, as well as providing the
net gains in housing units for the 2020/21 period. This differs from
the new dwelling completion statistics published routinely by
central Government which only provide a total for new build
homes, without accounting for units lost as a result of
redevelopment.

3.6

This information is summarised within the report in relation to:




Each settlement within the District, including settlement
areas in the case of Belfast City;
Whether land falls within the existing urban footprint (the
continuous built-up area of the settlement) or is classified
as greenfield land; and
The type of land use zoning (i.e. land zoned for housing or
land zoned for mixed use development) or all other land.

3.7

The report will be supported by the online map portal showing the
status of all existing housing monitor sites, on the Development
Plan and Policy part of the Council website.

3.8

During the 2020/21 monitoring year 603 units were completed on
14.2ha of land across the District. 371.2ha of land remains, with
potential capacity for 21,680 residential units. This is based on
deliverable planning approvals and land allocated within the

F1483

Page 156

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

development plan, but doesn’t include other potential sites that
may be suitable for residential development.
3.9

The total number of dwellings completed in the district has fallen
by 13.6% from 698 in 2019/20 to 603 in the current monitor year.
The proportion of dwellings completed within the Urban Footprint
is recorded at 81.6% and, as of 1 April 2021, 36.1% of the remaining
potential available for future dwellings is on land zoned for
housing or mixed use development.

3.10

It is emphasised that the monitor represents a register of housing
land based on policy designations and planning permissions,
rather than an accurate picture of all potentially viable housing
land. It should also be noted that this year’s report is based on
data for the period thus far impacted by the Covid-19 public health
emergency. The full implications of the Coronavirus pandemic are
likely to be reflected in subsequent reports.

3.11

Finance and Resource Implications
There are no resource implications associated with this report.

3.12

Asset and Other Implications
None noted.

3.13

Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Assessment
The Housing Monitor report presents factual information and
makes no recommendations relating to the future allocation of
land for housing. There are therefore no relevant equality or good
relations implications attached to this report.”

The Committee adopted the recommendations.
Proposed approach to Employment Monitoring
The Committee considered the undernoted report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues

1.1

To make members aware of the on-going work in relation to the
development of the first draft Employment Land Monitor (ELM) for
Belfast. Members should note that additional work will continue in
respect of the digital mapping within the district to gain a complete
picture in relation to employment land across the city.

F1484

Page 157

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

1.2

The council is required to develop and maintain the Monitor to
support the delivery of the Local Development Plan and to inform
future decision making. Once established it will support the
monitoring of policy and the uptake of employment land as
projected within Policy EC2 (employment land supply) of the draft
Plan Strategy.

1.3

The proposed approach for the ELM reflects that established for
the Housing Land Availability Report and will be supported by a
similar online map portal.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the proposed form and content of
the draft Employment Land Monitor report for 2020/21 as set out
here.

3.0

Main Report
Background

3.1

The Planning Act (NI) 2011 requires the council to make an annual
monitoring report to the Department for Infrastructure (DfI) in
respect of the Local Development Plan (LDP) implementation.
The work on the evidence base for the draft Plan Strategy has
provided the foundation for the employment land monitoring that
will be formalised alongside the work to deliver Local Policies
Plan.
Employment Monitor Report

3.2

The primary purpose of the draft ELM is to inform decision making
and the ongoing performance of policy in respect of land supply
across the city. As an evolving information source, it will provide
a mechanism to identify where imbalances in land supply may
develop and can inform prospective investors or developers on
the availability of land that may be suitable for employment uses
across the city.

3.3

The draft ELM sets out the headline data from the register of
potential employment land, based on current planning policy
designations and planning permissions. This provides an
assessment at a point in time (31st March 2021) for the amount of
land available for employment purposes and capacity for future
employment across the city.

F1485

Page 158

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

3.4

This information is summarised within the report in relation to:




completed net employment gains over the period 2020/21;
remaining net supply (comprising extant consents and
sites where development is on-going) at 31st March 2021;
and
the potential additional supply in terms of vacant land
suitable for employment use at 31st March 2021;

3.5

This ELM report will be supported by the online map portal
showing the status of all existing employment monitor sites
alongside the other spatial mapping for the LDP on the council’s
website. For the 2020/21 monitoring year there was 2724m2 of
employment floorspace completed with the majority of this being
office floorspace. At the 31 March 2021 there was approximately
101,000 m2 of employment floorspace under construction and
509,000m2 remaining by way of extant planning permissions.
Applying the 40% building to plot ratio to the remining areas
provided an additional yield of 344,000m2.

3.6

As this is the first year of publication, the data relates only to one
year. It is difficult to identify pattern or trends or make conclusions
that might be more apparent with average figures calculated over
a longer timeframe.
Finance and Resource Implications

3.7

There are no resource implications associated with this report.
Asset and Other Implications

3.8

None noted.
Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Assessment

3.9

The draft Employment Monitor Report presents factual
information and makes no recommendations relating to the future
allocation of land for housing. There are therefore no relevant
equality or good relations implications attached to this report.”

The Committee adopted the recommendations.

F1486

Page 159

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

Restricted Items
The information contained in the reports associated with the following items
is restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local Government Act
(Northern Ireland) 2014.
Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of the
Press and public from the meeting during discussion of the items as, due to
the nature of the item, there would be a disclosure of exempt information as
described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the Local Government Act
(Northern Ireland) 2014.
Update on Local Development Plan (LDP)
The Planning Manager (Policy) provided the Members with a further update on the
documentation which had been received from the DfI and the proposed work programme to
address the requirements of the statutory Direction, including the potential process for the
Council to formally adopt what would be the first draft Plan Strategy to be brought forward
under the new system.
He provided the Committee with details in respect of the initial assessment of the
Required Amendments (RAs) as well as the proposal in respect of the more significant
changes to support the addition of a new strategic policy to the draft Plan Strategy.
After discussion, the Committee:
1. noted the contents of the report;
2. endorsed the proposed response to the requirement for a new strategic
policy and modifications to the draft Policy HOU1 for consultation;
3. agreed the proposal for an 8 week consultation as set out in the work
programme;
4. agreed to hold a Special meeting in respect of the issues raised and that, as
it was a situation of extreme urgency, pursuant to Standing Order 14, that
the minutes of the Special meeting be submitted to the Council meeting on
4th April 2022 for ratification so as to meet the timetable; and
5. agreed to the delegated authority requested in paragraph 3.14 for officers to
develop a revised LDP Timetable in consultation with DfI and the PAC.
Participation in Lisburn and Castlereagh
City Council Independent Examination of
Local Development Plan
The Planning Manager (Policy) advised the Committee that the Lisburn & Castlereagh
City Council (LCC) Local Development Plan (LDP) had progressed to the Independent
Examination stage and that the Council had received an invitation from the Planning Appeals
Commission (PAC) to participate. The Committee was also asked to note that the Antrim &
Newtownabbey Borough Council (A&NBC) LDP was also scheduled for Independent
Examination in May.

F1487

Page 160

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

He provided the Members with an update in respect of the proposed participation in
the Independent Examination process for the LCCC draft Plan Strategy and outlined the basis
for progression of a “Statement of Common Ground” with A&NBC.
The Committee:





noted the programme for the Independent Examination and the invitation
to participate in respect of the session “Sprucefield Regional Shopping
Centre”;
noted the proposed acceptance of the invitation to participate in respect
of the Sprucefield sessions and also the intention to pursue a watching
brief in relation to the other matters set out within the previous responses
to the draft Plan Strategy; and
supported the proposal for the “Statement of Common Ground” to be
progressed with A&NBC in respect of the ongoing development of the
LDP documents.

Local Development Plan (LDP) - Supplementary
Planning Guidance (SPG)
The Principal Planning officer provided the Members with an update on the preparation
of Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) in advance of public consultation and sought
approval for the final versions of the proposed Advertising and Signage and Transport
documents.
He explained that the SPGs represented non-statutory planning guidance that
supported, clarified and illustrated by example policies included in the current planning policy
framework including regional policy. The Committee was advised that they were a material
consideration in determining planning applications but did not in themselves contain policy
over and above what was set out in the plan. They must be read in conjunction with the LDP
and the Strategic Planning Policy Statement (SPPS) but, unlike the LDP, they were not subject
to the same scrutiny in terms of the statutory process.
The Members were advised that the SPGs had been prepared over the last two years
in conjunction with Government Departments and Agencies as well as a number of
representatives from professional bodies. He explained that the approach had helped to raise
awareness amongst those bodies, to alleviate and address their concerns and to ensure that
the Council was abreast of the latest issues.
The Committee:



agreed the proposed content of the latest versions of the SPGs; and
supported the addition of the Advertising & Signage and Transport documents to
the list SPGs proposed to be issued for public consultation.

F1488

Page 161

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

Planning Applications
THE COMMITTEE DEALT WITH THE FOLLOWING ITEMS IN PURSUANCE OF THE
POWERS DELEGATED TO IT BY THE COUNCIL UNDER STANDING ORDER 37(e)
Withdrawn Items
The Committee noted that the following two items had been withdrawn by the applicant
as they were no longer required:




(Reconsidered Item) LA04/2019/0082/F – Section 54 application to remove
condition 2 of planning permission Z/2010/0434/F on former site of Maple
Leaf at Park Avenue (Condition 2 relates to the requirement for the
approved social club to be constructed and operational); and
(Reconsidered Item) LA04/2019/0083/F – Section 54 application to remove
condition 2 of planning permission LA04/2015/0075/F on former site of
Maple Leaf at Park Avenue (Condition 2 relates to the requirement for the
approved social club to be constructed and operational)

(Reconsidered Item) LA04/2020/0847/F &
LA04/2020/1208/DCA - Partial demolition and
redevelopment of existing buildings to provide
16 apartments, communal bin store and landscaped
communal garden at 25-29 University Road
The Principal Planning officer explained that the application had been listed for
Committee on 15th June, 2021 but that it had been deferred to allow the Committee to visit
the site, which had subsequently taken place on 10th August, 2021. The application was then
on the agenda for the Committee on 17th August, 2021, however it was withdrawn from the
agenda as amended drawings were submitted late and the proposal description was
amended. Further to this, the application was subsequently refused by the Planning
Committee on 21st October, 2021 for the following reasons:
1. The proposal was contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD1 of Planning Policy
Statement 7 in that the scheme would result in overdevelopment of the
site as it failed to provide a quality residential environment for prospective
residents due to inadequate and inappropriate public and private amenity
space; and
2. The proposal was contrary to the SPPS and Policy QD1 of Planning Policy
Statement 7 in that the proposed amenity space would result in an
unacceptable adverse impact on proposed residents by way of noise and
nuisance.
The Committee was advised that amended drawings had been submitted by the
applicant on 22nd October, 2021, the day after the October Committee meeting. The drawings
included the reduction by one residential unit and the addition of a roof terrace on the third
floor.

F1489

Page 162

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

The Principal Planning officer explained that the Planning Department had sought legal
advice regarding the submission of the drawings. Whilst the amendments addressed the
refusal reasons in respect of the provision of amenity space, additional concerns had been
raised regarding personal safety and overlooking. She explained that while there was no
legislative provision to require the Council to consider amended plans at any point in the
planning process, the Council was duty bound to have regard to all material considerations.
Therefore, she explained that the amended drawings had addressed the Council’s concerns
with regard to proposed amenity space, in accordance with the guidance in Creating Places.
She explained that the additional concerns in relation to overlooking and personal
safety were not considered to be insurmountable, and that the agent had submitted
further amended drawings to address those concerns. The Members were advised that the
amended drawings were uploaded to the Planning Portal on 4th February 2022. The amended
application was subsequently re-advertised in the press, additional neighbour notification had
been undertaken and the Conservation Area Officer (CAO) had been reconsulted.
The Members were advised that the provision of the roof terrace would result in an
additional 40 square metres of amenity space within the proposed development. The reduction
in the number of units would also result in a reduction in the quantity of amenity space required.
The overall amenity space provision was now 177 square metres, equating to 11.8 sq metres
per unit. As per the previous Addendum report, the Principal Planning officer outlined that, as
the application site was located within an inner urban location, it was therefore accepted that
amenity space of 10 sq metres per unit was acceptable. Additionally, the addition of the third
floor roof terrace offered additional choice and space for prospective residents. She outlined
that, given that the proposal now complied with the guidelines of Creating Places, it was
considered that the proposed amenity space was now acceptable.
The Committee was advised that one additional objection had been received in respect
of the proposal. It stated that the buildings within the existing terrace were originally residential
in the form of individual dwelling and that the residential aspect had been entirely removed
and was of no comparable form in the latest proposals. The Principal Planning officer
explained that Nos. 25 and 27 University Road had been in use as a restaurant for a significant
period of time, prior to the fire and that the earliest planning permissions in relation to that use
dated back to the 1980s.
The Conservation Area officer had been reconsulted and had recommended that,
ideally, the ground floor restoration should be based on accurate historical record.
The Principal Planning officer explained that while the comments in relation to the ground floor
were noted, it was acknowledged that those points had not been made previously and that the
application was now at an advanced stage of the process. The Conservation officer’s
suggestions regarding the style and material of rooflights and dormers on the front elevation
were noted, however, and the Members were advised that appropriate conditions could be
imposed in the event of approval.
Finally, the Principal Planning officer explained that a Section 76 Planning Agreement
would be necessary as part of any approval, as no parking was provided for the scheme.
She explained that it would secure a Travel Plan to provide membership of a Car Club,
membership of Belfast Bikes and travel cards for 3 years. The Committee was advised that

F1490

Page 163

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

the agreement would also secure a façade retention system to ensure that the building fabric,
which was important to the appearance of the Conservation Area, was secured during
construction, retained and repaired where necessary.
The Chairperson put the officers recommendation to the Committee, namely, to grant
approval to the applications, subject to conditions and a Section 76 Planning Agreement and
to give delegated authority to the Director of Planning and Building Control to finalise the
wording of any conditions and the Section 76 Agreement. On a vote, ten Members voted for
the proposal, with 2 no votes, and it was carried.
LA04/2021/2285/F - Apartment development at
Parkside Gardens
The Principal Planning officer provided the Committee with an overview of the
application.
She drew the Committee’s attention to the large number of Late items which had been
received in respect of the application. She explained that letters of support had been received
from Newington Housing Association and the Housing Executive’s Belfast Region Place
Shaping Team. The Committee was advised that officers were supportive of social housing
but that the scheme should meet the tests of PPS7 QD1.
The Agent had also submitted correspondence, stating that no feedback had been
provided to them; that the refusal reasons included parking issues as well as an impact on
trees and that they struggled to understand how the Council had reached that conclusion with
DFI Roads and Tree Officer responses still outstanding; that the Arboricultural Impact
Assessment and Method Statement which had been submitted on 8th February had not yet
been reviewed; they disputed the density figures in the report; and q request for the application
to be withdrawn from the Planning Committee.
In response, the Principal Planning officer explained that the application had been the
subject of a Pre Application Discussion for a class C3 use – assisted living. The concerns
with the application under consideration had also been raised at the PAD despite the change
from class C3 to C1 use. She advised the Members that no DFI Roads or parking refusal
reasons were proposed and that reference to parking in the refusal reasons was in respect of
the layout being dominated by parking, which would contribute to, alongside other concerns,
a poor quality living environment for prospective residents. Regarding the trees, she stated
that an Arboricultural report had not been requested. Instead, the agent was asked to forward
the survey that was used to inform the condition of trees on the tree constraints map but that
no report was produced. The Tree officer had since considered the Arboricultural Impact
Assessment and Method Statement and had made a number of recommendations and had
subsequently requested the removal of refusal reason 4 regarding the impact to trees to be
removed.
In relation to density, she advised the Committee that the report, at 9.14, should in fact
read “The density of the proposal site would equate to 110 dwelling units per hectare. This is
nearly double the highest existing density in the area”.

F1491

Page 164

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

In respect of further comments which had been submitted by the agent as part of the
Late Items report, she advised the Committee that NI Water had recommended a refusal and
that the Council owned and maintained Alexandra Park. The agent had stated that there was
sufficient communal open space provided and that the site was located adjacent to Alexandra
Park. In response, the Principal Planning officer highlighted that officers considered the
amenity provision to be insufficient both in quality and quantum, as per the case officer report.
The Committee was advised that a consultation response was received from DFI
Roads on 10th February. It had reiterated its request for a Travel Plan. On 14th March the
applicant submitted a Travel Plan which included that each apartment would be offered and
provided:




a Metro Travel Card for 3 years, 100% subsidy;
a Car Club Membership for 3 years, 50% subsidy; and
Belfast Bike Scheme Membership for 3 years, 100% subsidy.

The Committee was advised that, if approval was to be granted to the application, a
Section 76 Agreement would be required to secure the green travel measures, subject to DFI
Roads comments.
The agent had submitted an amended layout and elevations, detailing the following
points:











contrary to the Development Management Report, the density of the
scheme (91.6 dwellings per hectare) was lower than the surrounding
residential area (111.2 dph) and was not therefore out of character.
Notably, the Council’s Local Development Plan Draft Plan Strategy, which
was a material consideration, contained Policy HOU4 which indicated that
in inner city areas a minimum density of 75 dph and a maximum of
150 dph would be appropriate;
an additional 96.1sqm of green amenity space was being provided,
resulting in a total of 263.1sqm of amenity space to serve the
11 apartments. That equated to 23.9sqm per apartment, far in excess of
the minimum standard of 10sqm as set out in Creating Places;
the additional amenity space was located to the east of the site
complimenting the space already proposed to the west of the site;
as the amenity space was now both east and west facing and as the
building stood off the proposed boundaries there would be no
unacceptable overshadowing of the amenity space;
the parking layout had been reorientated to reduce alleged dominance
and provide for the additional amenity space. One space per apartment
remained as did a disabled space to serve the complex needs apartment;
amended fenestration to the southern elevation nearest to existing
residential dwellings, comprising a cantilevered bay window to the first
and second floor apartments with obscure glazing facing the dwellings
opposite and clear glazing for outlook at the sides to prevent direct line of
sight while maintaining adequate day light and views over the open space;
Creating Places stated that “a separation distance greater than 20m will
generally be appropriate to minimise overlooking… And that greater

F1492

Page 165

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022





flexibility will generally be appropriate in assessing the separation
distance for apartments and infill housing schemes in urban locations and
higher density areas”;
the planning history advocated a 2.5 storey block;
the application addressed unmet social need; and
it included the regeneration of brownfield site.

In response, the Principal Planning officer outlined to the Committee that:












the agent’s amenity space calculations included paths around the building
which was wrong. The total amenity space was approximately 180 sqm.
That equated to approximately 16 sqm per unit. The key here was the
provision of ‘private open space’, as per ‘Creating Places’, as
the additional amenity space provided was not private. The site sat within
a residential area where the character was that of dwellings enjoying
private amenity space. The desire for private open space in apartment
developments was highlighted by the Planning Appeals Commission in
their report on an appeal against the refusal of permission for an
apartment scheme on Eia Street;
in respect of the relationship of the building to the proposed amenity
space - to the west, the space was sandwiched between the building and
the boundary of the site and adjacent trees, the overall quality of the space
provided was therefore questionable. Each area would be overshadowed
by the scale of the building due to the orientation. The additional amenity
space was sandwiched between a 3 storey building and high boundary
trees and would be completely overshadowed in the evening by the
building;
the amenity space had been provided at the cost of a turning area and the
re-positioning of two parking spaces;
the windows had not been removed and remained at first and second floor
level, giving the perception of being overlooked. As those windows were
located in habitable rooms (kitchen/dining area) it would be unreasonable
to use obscure glazing or to secure by a planning condition. Irrespective
of the introduction of obscured glazing on two windows the first and
second floor windows on the southern elevation facing directly onto the
rear of the two closest dwellings remain unchanged.
whilst a 20m separation distance was generally accepted, in this case
officers considered it to be insufficient. It was a three storey apartment
block in the immediate backland of 3 residential dwellings, with habitable
second floor windows overlooking the rear of adjacent housing. Flexibility
could be applied in higher density areas but not to the extent whereby a
window at approximately 7.5m above ground level overlooked an adjacent
dwelling;
proximity to open space did not outweigh the need for adequate and
appropriate amenity space on-site;
8 units were previously permitted as an Outline in principle only, not 11;

F1493

Page 166

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022




it was acknowledged that it was in an area of housing need but, as the
proposal failed to meet specific planning policy requirements it did not
meet regional planning policy; and
whilst regeneration was welcomed, it should be in a manner that was
appropriate to the site and the existing context.

The Chairperson welcomed Mr. G. McGill, agent, Mr. R. Dougan, architect, and
Mr. B. Kerr, Apex housing, to the meeting. Together they advised the Committee that:








an additional 96sq metres of amenity space was provided, totaling 263sq
metres on site, which equated to 23.9sq metres per apartment and was
therefore far in excess of the minimum standards in Creating Places;
the parking layout had been redesigned;
obscured glazing was proposed in parts to mitigate against the possibility
of overlooking;
there were many other 2.5 storey buildings in the immediate vicinity;
they queried how the Council had calculated the density of the site, as they
calculated it as 91 dwellings per hectare, while the density of the
surrounding area ranged from 77 to 233 dwellings per hectare;
North Belfast was the area of greatest housing need in the City, with 2906
applicants on the waiting list; and
singles and small families accounted for 75% of that waiting list.

A Member thanked the representatives for their presentation. He stated that he had
attended the site visit in respect of the application and queried why they had included 11 car
parking spaces as part of the scheme.
In response, Mr. McGill explained that the site was within an inner city area and there
would usually be a greater amount of parking required but that the site’s proximity to transport
links justified the reduced level of parking. He added that they felt that the new layout had
addressed officers’ concerns in terms of creating more amenity space.
A further Member queried why the application included no private amenity space for
residents. In response Mr. McGill explained that it was felt that the open space to the east and
the west of the site was adequate and compliant with policy, and that while they acknowledged
that the planners had stated that the site’s proximity to Alexandra Park did not justify a lower
level of open space within the development, Mr. McGill was aware of numerous examples
whereby a reduced level of open space had been deemed acceptable because of their
proximity to existing areas of open space. Mr. Dougan added that the site was bounded by
Alexandra Park on three sides.
In response to a Member’s question regarding overshadowing, Mr. Dougan advised
the Committee that the amenity spaces to both the east and the west of the building would
give the residents options for both morning and evening sunshine, which was better than the
nearby houses which had north facing gardens.
A Member stated that comparing the application with terraced housing which was built
a number of years ago was not an adequate level of ambition for modern day residential
accommodation.

F1494

Page 167

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

In response to a further Member’s question, Mr. McGill stated that officers had not
provided their calculations in regards to the stated levels of density, and that they disputed
them as they were very different to their own figures. He added that he was happy to share
their calculations with the Committee as they were confident in them.
A Member asked officers what they would have liked to have seen in the application in
terms of amenity space. In response, the Principal Planning officer outlined that the Eia Street
Planning Appeals Commission decision had illustrated that amenity space had to be of quality
and not just of quantity. She explained that the building in the application would largely
overshadow both areas of amenity space provided for quite a period of the day and, given that
all residents were relying on that space because there was no private amenity space, it did not
constitute a quality living environment. She added that officers had considered the plot ratio
of the building to the site and had concluded that two sides of the building would have an
outlook onto hardstanding areas and to the backs of other buildings. In relation to the density
query, she stated that the proposed density was much higher than the surrounding area as it
comprised dwelling houses and the application was a high density apartment block.
A Member asked the agent whether they would consider removing some car parking
spaces in order to explore the creation of additional amenity space. Mr. Dougan explained
that one space per unit had been requested by the client.
In regards to the amenity space, Mr. Dougan advised that Creating Places provided
that “private communal open space was acceptable in the form of landscaped areas,
courtyards or roof gardens at a minimum of 10 – 30 sq metres per unit, where the appropriate
level was to be determined for the particular context and design concept.” In response to a
further Member’s question, he clarified that the areas would be screened by a boundary.
In response to a Member’s question as to whether they would reconsider the number
of car parking spaces which would be provided, in order to address the amenity space issues,
Mr. McGill confirmed that they would.
A number of Members stated that there were other concerns with the application which
would not be addressed by the reconfiguration of the parking spaces, including the density,
the layout of the hardstanding, the overshadowing of the amenity space, the obscured glazing
of the windows and that there was a statutory objection from NI Water. They stated that it was
important that the applicant was aware that those issues would remain of concerns to other
Members.
Moved by Councillor Murphy,
Seconded by Councillor Maskey and
Resolved - that the Committee agrees to defer consideration of the
application to allow the applicant to reconsider the number of parking
spaces provided within the development with a view to addressing amenity
concerns.

F1495

Page 168

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

(Reconsidered Item) LA04/2019/0081/F –
12 affordable housing apartments on former site
of Maple Leaf at Park Avenue
(Councillor Hutchinson left the meeting at this point in proceedings)
The Planning Manager provided the Committee with the details of the application and
application LA04/2020/2325/F, which was also on the agenda and was inter-related.
He explained that the application, along with associated applications
LA04/2019/0082/F and LA04/2019/0083/F, had been considered by the Planning Committee
in December 2019. The Committee had resolved to approve all three applications subject to
conditions and a Section 76 Planning Agreement. The planning agreement was intended
to secure the following:




a developer contribution of £52,000 for enhancement works at the King
George V Playing Fields;
securing the 12 apartments as affordable housing; and
ensuring the delivery and ongoing maintenance of the proposed pocket
park to be provided as part of the development of the 12 apartments.

He reported that, since the applications had been approved by the Planning
Committee, both the Planning Service and Legal Services had made significant efforts to
finalise the Section 76 Planning Agreement. However, it had not been possible to progress it
with the applicant. Firstly, it was disputed that the 12 apartments should be delivered as
affordable housing, despite it being central to the consideration of the planning balance and
justification for the grant of planning permission, the proposal being contrary to Policy OS 1 of
PPS 8 through the loss of Open Space. Secondly, and more recently, by failure to commit to
the delivery of the pocket park, which was essential recreation space to off-set the lack of
amenity space within the proposed development, as well as to help compensate for the loss
and limited provision of Open Space overall. He stated that officers considered the terms of
the planning agreement originally agreed by the Committee to be wholly reasonable.
The Members were reminded that the Section 54 applications, LA04/2019/0082/F and
LA04/2019/0083/F, had been withdrawn by the applicant as they were no longer required.
He stated that officers advised that the application could not be separated out from the
agreement.
The Committee was provided with the planning history of the site. In June 2011,
permission had been granted on the site and adjacent land to the east where the Maple Leaf
Club was originally located for mixed use development comprising 21 dwellings and a
replacement social club (Z/2010/0434/F). The original permission included conditions
requiring the provision of social housing and the build out of the replacement social club,
required to offset the loss of open space. Those conditions were subsequently varied under
applications Z/2011/0827/F and Z/2011/0829/F.
Planning application LA04/2015/0075/F was granted in February 2016 for
modifications to the original scheme, for the replacement of the Maple Leaf Club and the
erection of 21 dwellings (Z/2010/0434/F). The amended scheme reduced the size of the club

F1496

Page 169

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

and amended some of the house types. Condition 2 prevented occupation of the residential
units until the replacement Maple Leaf Club had been erected in accordance with
the new approved plans. Condition 3 required that the development would be delivered as
social / affordable housing. The Planning Manager advised that it appeared that the main site
access and part of the access road had been constructed and therefore, it was considered
that the development had commenced and represented a fall-back for the developer, albeit it
would require the construction of the replacement social club.
In 2019, the applicant had applied for permission for 12 apartments on the land where
the replacement social club was to be built (LA04/2019/0081/F). Two associated applications
were submitted at the same time seeking removal of the conditions requiring the construction
of the replacement social club attached to planning permissions Z/2010/0434/F and
LA04/2015/0075/F (LA04/2019/0082/F and LA04/2019/0083/F respectively). He explained
that all three applications were approved by the Planning Committee in December 2019,
subject to conditions and the completion of a Section 76 Planning Agreement.
In terms of the original planning permission for the erection of 21 dwellings and
replacement social club on the application site and adjacent land (Z/2010/0434/F) and
subsequent modifications (planning permissions Z/2011/0827/F, Z/2011/0829/F
and LA04/2015/0075), those were considered to have commenced by virtue of the formation
of the access and road. Therefore, the applicant had a fall-back position, albeit the housing
development could not be occupied without the delivery of the community building as
previously granted.
The Committee was advised that a further application for 21 dwellings on the adjacent
land had been submitted by the landowner and Housing Association (LA04/2020/2325/F).
That application was being considered subsequent to this one due to the linked nature of the
applications. He explained that that application was also for affordable housing and was being
brought forward by a Housing Association with funding support from NIHE. NIHE had advised
that in order to secure the funding from this year’s housing programme, planning permission
would need to be granted by 31st March 2022 although it might still be possible to progress
the scheme with a resolution from the Council to grant permission. The Committee was asked
to note that application LA04/2020/2325/F was reliant on application LA04/2019/0081/F being
progressed to approval, as it was reliant on the pocket park being granted planning
permission. He outlined that it would serve not only the proposed 12 apartments but also the
proposed 21 dwellings (as well as other surrounding housing).
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Late Items pack, where the Northern
Ireland Housing Executive (NIHE) had advised that it was supportive of the application.
The NIHE had stated that the site was located within the Middle East Housing Need Area
which had a five year need for 307 units for the period 2021-2026.
The Planning Manager explained that the applicants had also confirmed their
agreement to the inflationary uplift (Consumer Price Index linked) to the £52,000 Financial
Developer Contribution towards enhancements at the King George V Playing Fields.
In relation to the delivery and ongoing maintenance of the pocket park, the Planning
Manager explained that it was essential to off-set the substandard level of amenity within the

F1497

Page 170

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

proposed 12 apartments, as well as to help off-set the loss of open space and the lack of open
space within the wider development.
In response to a Member’s question as to why the original Section 76 Planning
Agreement terms could not been met by the developer, the Planning Manager explained to
the Committee that the reasoning was set out in the Committee report. While they appreciated
that it was not an ideal scenario, officers were nevertheless keen to see the applications
progressed given that they would deliver significant benefits to the area, including much
needed quality social housing.
After discussion, the Committee granted approval to the application with conditions
and subject to a Section 76 Planning Agreement to secure the following:




a developer contribution of £52,000 for enhancement works at the King
George V playing fields – the value of the contribution would be subject
to an inflationary uplift for the period from December 2019;
securing the 12 apartments as affordable housing in perpetuity; and
ensuring the delivery and ongoing maintenance of the proposed pocket
park to be provided prior to occupation of any of the approved
12 apartments.

Delegated authority was given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to
finalise the wording of conditions and the Section 76 Planning Agreement. If the Section 76
was not signed and completed within 3 months, the application would be reported back to the
Committee.
LA04/2020/2325/F - 21 dwellings (affordable housing)
on former site of Maple Leaf at Park Avenue
The Planning Manager advised the Committee of the details of the application, which
was linked to the previous application, LA04/2019/0081/F. It sought permission for
21 social/affordable housing units, comprising 17 townhouses and 4 semi-detached dwellings,
with car parking, landscaping and associated site and access works.
He outlined the key issues which had been considered during the assessment,
including the principle of development, the loss of open space, provision of public and private
amenity space, impact on the character and appearance of the area, impact on residential
amenity, impact on existing trees / proposed landscaping, access and parking, drainage and
flood risk and waste-water infrastructure.
The Committee was advised that the site was un-zoned ‘whiteland’ within the BUAP
2001 and draft BMAP 2015. The proposed development would result in the loss of open
space, including the bowling green previously located on the site, protected by Policy OS1 of
PPS 8.
The Planning Manager explained that permission had been granted in June 2011,
under Z/2010/0434/F, on essentially the same site, but that had also included land to the west
for a mixed use development including a replacement of the original Maple Leaf club and
21 dwellings. That Members were advised that that permission included conditions requiring

F1498

Page 171

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

the provision of social housing and build out of the replacement social club, which was required
to offset the loss of open space. Those conditions were subsequently varied under
applications Z/2011/0827/F and Z/2011/0829/F.
The Committee was advised that LA04/2015/0075/F was granted in February 2016 for
modifications to the original scheme for replacement of the Maple Leaf Club and erection of
21 dwellings (Z/2010/0434/F). The amended scheme reduced the size of the club and
amended some of the house types. The Planning Manager explained that Condition 2
prevented occupation of the residential units until the replacement Maple Leaf Club had been
erected. Condition 3 required the development to be delivered as social / affordable housing.
He outlined to the Committee that it appeared that the main site access and part of the access
road between Blocks A and C had already been constructed and that that served the
development of 13 houses to the north of the site (LA04/2015/0052/F). Therefore, it was
considered that the development had commenced and represented a fall-back position for the
developer, albeit that it would require the construction of the replacement social club.
He reported that the current application for 21 social/affordable dwellings was a standalone
application for residential development and that the developer did not wish to construct the
social club as previously approved.
He reminded the Committee that it had previously resolved to approve application
LA04/2019/0081/F for 12 apartments (social/affordable housing) on the part of the site
previously approved for the replacement social club.
The Members were advised that Policy OS2 required public open space to be provided
as an integral part of new housing schemes of 25 units or more, and stated that at least 10%
of the total site area should be open space in normal circumstances. Whilst the proposal was
for 21 dwellings, he advised the Committee that it was being brought forward in combination
with the development of the immediately surrounding lands of 13 units and the proposed
12 apartments to the west (46 units in total). The proposal included some minor areas of
maintained open space, however, those areas did not amount to 10% and offered limited
amenity value. The proposal was therefore contrary to Policy OS 2 of PPS 8.
The Committee was also advised that Policy OS1 of PPS 8 stated that development
resulting in the loss of existing open space would not be permitted, however, an exception
would be allowed where it was clearly shown that redevelopment would bring substantial
community benefits that decisively outweighed the loss of the open space. It was considered
that the provision of affordable housing did not by itself outweigh the loss of the open space.
The Planning Manager reminded the Committee that, in resolving to grant planning
permission for the 12 apartments to the west (LA04/2019/0081/F), the Committee had taken
the view that the relaxation of the requirement to provide a new club to replace the Maple Leaf
Club and to off-set the loss of open space from the site could be justified provided that:
1. the 12 apartments were delivered as affordable housing;
2. a Financial Developer Contribution of £52,000 was paid to improve off-site
open space facilities; and
3. that the proposed pocket park in front of the apartments was delivered to
provide valuable open space to serve not only the proposed 12 apartments

F1499

Page 172

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

but also the surrounding houses, including the extant permissions for
21 dwellings on the application site.
He advised, therefore, in order to be consistent with the Committee’s previous
decisions in December 2019, in respect of the 12 apartments on the adjacent site, it was also
necessary that the pocket park would be delivered as part of the scheme for 21 dwellings.
Otherwise, it would have insufficient open space and there would be insufficient off-set for the
loss of the original open space on the site. Moreover, he advised that the £52,000 should also
be secured as part of any permission for the 21 dwellings. He explained that that amount was
agreed by the Committee in December 2019 but should be increased to allow for inflation.
He outlined that an obligation should also secure the temporary treatment of the site if the
construction of the 12 apartments was to be delayed or not built. Subject to those obligations,
he outlined that the proposal was considered acceptable having regard to Policies OS 1 and
OS 2 of PPS 8.
The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Late Items pack, whereby the agent had
confirmed their agreement to the following obligations, to be secured by way of a Section 76
Planning Agreement:
 a single payment of £52,000 plus inflationary uplift (Consumer
Price Index linked); and
 the delivery of the 21 dwellings as social/affordable housing.
However, for logistical reasons, the applicant had advised that they were unable to
agree to the requirement that the pocket park would be delivered prior to occupation.
They advised the Committee that that was due to the following reasons:






underneath the site of the pocket park was the main sewer and
electrical cable. Access would be required until the full adoption
of the sewers;
the access for gas connection;
the construction of the apartment block would require access for
scaffold, plant and piling rig;
it was the only area left for welfare facilities; and
it would be the last part of construction on the overall site from a
practical view.

The Planning Manager advised the Committee that the applicant had stated that they
were confident that they would be able to deliver the 12 apartments within that period and at
the same time complete the pocket park. However, should that not be possible, it proposed a
clause in the Section 76 Agreement to require the delivery of the pocket park within 24 months
from occupation of the first dwelling within the 21 dwelling scheme. The pocket park would be
managed by Choice Housing Association.
The Planning Manager outlined to the Members that it would be impracticable to deliver
the pocket park prior to occupation of the 21 dwellings for the reasons set out by the applicant
and therefore, the officer recommendation would be that the pocket park was to be delivered
no later than two years from the date of first occupation. A planning obligation would also be
required to secure its future management.

F1500

Page 173

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

On balance, the Committee was advised that it was considered that the proposed
development respected the surrounding context and was appropriate to the character and
topography of the site in terms of layout, scale, proportions, massing and appearance of
buildings and landscaped and hard surfaced areas.
He explained that minor concerns regarding overlooking between Blocks C and D had
been raised, however, given the extant approval on the site and the similar layout, it was
considered acceptable. The Member were advised that there were no concerns regarding
natural light, outlooking or shadow.
The Committee was asked to note that the Environmental Health Service had raised
concerns regarding the level of noise within the external amenity areas of the 4 semi-detached
dwellings. However, it had concluded that if the development was desirable and given its urban
location, it should not be prohibited on the basis of high external noise levels in some garden
areas. Consequently, it had not offered any objections to the proposal.
In terms of private amenity space, each dwelling would have an average provision of
approximately 50 square metres. The Planning Manager explained that there were slight
concerns regarding the amenity space provision of some proposed dwellings. However, given
that there was an extant approval on the site for a similar layout, it was considered acceptable.
In regards to parking, the proposed development was accessed via Park Avenue.
No in-curtilage parking was proposed, however, communal car parking space was proposed
within the development. DFI Roads had provided comments on the proposal and had offered
no objection, subject to conditions.
The Members were advised that the proposal involved the removal of trees along the
Park Avenue boundary. A tree survey had been submitted and the Council’s Tree Officer had
no objection. Furthermore, additional compensatory planting had been proposed which would
help to soften the proposal and assist its integration.
The Committee granted approval to the application with conditions and a Section 76
Planning Agreement to secure the following:






provision of the 21 units as affordable housing (social / intermediate
housing);
the pocket park proposed under LA04/2019/0081/F was to be delivered
no later than two years from the date of first occupation of the 21 units;
the future management of the pocket park;
temporary treatment of the site for 12 apartments if those were delayed
or not built out;
securing of the £52,000 with inflationary uplift since December 2019 (if
it had already been paid in relation to application LA04/2019/0081 then
it would not have to be paid twice).

The Committee further agreed that delegated authority be given to the Director of
Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of conditions and the Section 76 Planning
Agreement.
(Councillor Hutchinson re-joined the meeting at this point in proceedings)

F1501

Page 174

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

LA04/2021/1242/F - Change of use from
coffee shop to extension of amusements arcade
on the ground floor at 28 Bradbury Place
The Planning Manager provided the Committee with the principal aspects of the
retrospective application.
He explained the key issues which had been considered during the assessment of the
application included the principle of an amusement arcade at that location, the impact on
the character and appearance of the area and the impact on amenity.
He outlined that the site was “white land” within BUAP and dBMAP and within the
Belfast City Centre in both Development Plans. The surrounding area was of mixed character
containing a variety of retail, offices, bars, restaurants and a hotel opposite. New purpose built
managed student accommodation was being constructed on the land to the south. There were
no family dwellings or schools in the immediate area.
The Committee was advised that Environmental Health and DFI Roads had offered no
objections. Building Control, which was responsible for amusement licensing, was concerned
that the proposal might result in a cumulative impact due to the number of amusement arcades
in the surrounding area. There were currently three other amusement / gambling premises
within 200 metres. Officers advised that the proposal was to extend an existing amusement
arcade and not to create new amusement arcade premises. The site was located within the
City Centre where main town centre uses such as this were acceptable in principle. There
would be no harmful impacts on the character and appearance of the area, amenity or
transportation.
The Committee was advised that no third party objections had been received.
(Councillor Groogan joined the meeting at this point during proceedings)
The Deputy Chairperson welcomed Ms. L. McCausland, on behalf of the applicant, to
the meeting. She advised the Committee that while the sign on the exterior of the site had
been changed, there were no gaming machines currently within the café area of the site and
that Building Control had been out on a number of occasions and could therefore verify that.
In response to a Member’s question, the Planning Manager confirmed that, while the
Permit Policy was a material consideration for the Committee, officers did not feel that there
were any planning reasons on which to refuse the application. The Divisional Solicitor advised
the Committee that the applicant would still have to go to the Licensing Committee to request
a permit for the site, irrespective of the decision taken by the Planning Committee.
The Chairperson advised the Committee that the application was recommended for
approval, with delegated authority given to the Director of Planning and Building Control to
finalise the conditions. On a vote, six Members voted for the recommendation, two against
and four no votes, and it was accordingly declared carried.

F1502

Page 175

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

LA04/2021/2825/A - Retention of mesh banner
signage (19.1m by 9.84m) for a temporary period
of 24 months on former Belfast Telegraph Printworks,
124-132 Royal Avenue
The Principal Planning officer outlined the details of the retrospective advertisement
consent which was being sought for a temporary mesh banner sign for a period of 24 months.
The Committee was advised that the Belfast Telegraph Building itself, adjacent, was
listed and that the site was directly opposite the Cathedral Quarter Conservation Area.
The key issues which had been considered during the assessment of the proposed
development included:





impact on local amenity
impact on public safety
impact on the setting of listed buildings; and
commercial and regeneration considerations

The Members were advised that the site was located within the city development limits
for Belfast as designated within the Draft Belfast Metropolitan Area Plan 2004.
Historic Environment Division had been consulted and considered that the proposal
was contrary to the policy requirements of SPPS 6.12 and BH11 of PPS6. It had stated that
the material, size, scale, alignment and location of the banner signage, in proximity to the
historic fabric of the listed building, adversely affected its setting. HED noted that previous
permissions in respect of the signage had been granted consent for 2 years and 1 year
respectively.
The Principal Planning officer outlined that the proposed advertisement was
considered contrary to Planning Policy (PPS17 Outdoor Advertisements) and was therefore
considered unacceptable. There was a history of previous applications on the site for the same
proposal. However, the most recent application, LA04/2021/1586/A, had been before the
Planning Committee for consideration in October 2021. At that meeting, the Committee had
raised concerns with the fact that the proposal had already been granted an extension
and there was no further advancement in the development of the site. The Committee had
resolved to refuse the application in November 2021 on the following grounds:
1. The proposed advertising, was contrary to AD 1 of PPS 17, in that the
advertising by virtue of its position on the host building, its size and scale
would through its undue prominence and excessive visibility have an
adverse impact on the amenity of the area, the character of the area and
detract from the appearance of the building.
2. The proposed advertising shroud, was contrary to BH 11 of PPS 6, in
that the advertisement would, if permitted, not respect the architectural
form and detailing of the Listed Building by reason of its scale, height
and alignment and did not respect the character of the setting of the
heritage asset.

F1503

Page 176

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

The Deputy Chairperson welcomed Mr. S. McGimpsey, applicant, to the meeting.
He outlined the difficulties that the commercial property market was facing as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic. He advised that the locality was going through a period of transition with
the construction of the new university campus and that the aim of the application was to secure
a tenant and funding package to enable the commencement of development of the site.
The Principal Planning officer explained that, whilst the applicant’s position was not
unreasonable, it could be argued that, given the advert had been in place for such an extended
period, and had failed to garner the required interest, then the owners should perhaps consider
deploying other means of advertising.
A Member stated that they did not feel that the sign was doing any harm in the area.
Further Members requested clarity from officers in respect of whether an enforcement
case had been raised in respect of the sign which had been displayed on the building very
recently, despite the Committee having rejected the application in November 2021.
In response, the Principal Planning officer explained that enforcement cases were paused
where an application was going through the planning process.
The Committee agreed to refuse Advertising Consent as the proposal was contrary to
PPS 17 – Control of Outdoor Advertisements, Policy AD1 and paragraphs 6.12 of the SPPS
and Para’s 6.20, 6.59 & Para 6.60 of the SPPS in relation to the impact on the setting of the
Listed Building and the Conservation Area.
(The Committee adjourned for five minutes at this point in proceedings)
LA04/2021/0720/F - Change of use of a dwelling to
2 apartments with an extension at 64 Ashley Avenue
The Principal Planning officer presented the main details of the application to the
Committee, for the subdivision of an existing dwelling into two apartments with a two-storey
rear extension.
She explained that the surrounding area was residential and that the site was located
within the Lisburn Road draft Area of Townscape Character in dBMAP (2014).
The Committee was advised that the application had been submitted before the
Committee as NI Water objected to the proposal.
The key issues which had been considered during the assessment included:








the principle of dwelling at that location;
character/layout/design;
private amenity/landscaping;
access/parking;
impact on neighbouring amenity;
impact on an established residential area; and
the NI Water consultation response.

F1504

Page 177

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

The Principal Planning officer explained that the area displayed both dwelling houses
and apartments as well as conversion to apartments and therefore, in principle, the conversion
was acceptable. She described how the scale and massing of the extension was considered
sympathetic with the existing dwelling and the surrounding area. The Members were advised
that the internal space standards were exceeded, and that the private amenity space provided
was also well in excess of that recommended.
She outlined that NI Water had not recommended refusal but that it had stated that
public foul and public storm capacity was not available at present to service the proposed
development.
The Principal Planning officer explained that no supporting data or information had
been provided by NI Water in respect of the application. She outlined that, while the objection
was a material consideration, it was a matter for the Committee to determine the weight to be
attached to it.
The applicant had been advised to liaise with NI Water and NI Water had advised that
it intended to upgrade the Waste Water Treatment Works. The Principal Planning officer
explained that the proposed apartments would contained 3 bedrooms, which was the same
as the existing dwelling and that the maximum number of occupants was not therefore being
increased. She outlined that whilst it was acknowledged that each apartment would have its
own kitchen and toilet which might generate more waste water, it was considered that the
modest scale of the scheme presented a significantly like for like proposal which would not
exacerbate the impact on the waste water system to such a level that would warrant a refusal.
She advised the Committee that the applicant was currently in discussions with NI Water
regarding a potential solution and that it was considered that the issue could be resolved by
means of a pre occupation condition.
The Committee was advised that NI Water had a duty to connect significant committed
development across the city to its waste water infrastructure. Such development, which
included unimplemented permissions for over 20,000 houses and significant levels of
commercial space across the city, would not all come forward at once and some might not
come forward at all. It was therefore considered unlikely that the proposal would result in a
significant impact on waste water infrastructure over and above the existing use of the site.
It was reported that one objection had been received, citing issues with on-street
parking in the area. The Principal Planning officer explained that DFI Roads had been
consulted and had no objections.
A Member queried whether the officers had the figures in relation to the existing
number of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and flats on that street. She also queried
whether, given the Local Development Plan (LDP) was at a more advanced stage, prematurity
would be a factor in respect of the Committee taking a decision on the application without
those figures.
In response, the Principal Planning officer advised that unfortunately officers did not
have those figures to hand but that the LDP had not yet been adopted and that officers were
content that the application could be approved. The Divisional Solicitor advised the Committee

F1505

Page 178

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

that the SPPS required that the Committee considered existing policies until such times as the
draft plan Strategy had been adopted and therefore limited weight should be given to the draft
plan. She added that officers did not feel that the application would engage the issue of
prematurity and that prematurity applied in cases where the type and scale of development
would prejudice the delivery of the aspirations within the LDP. However, it was up to the
Committee to consider if it wished to defer the application in order to receive the figures which
had been requested.
Moved by Councillor Groogan,
Seconded by Councillor O’Hara and
Resolved – that the Committee agrees to defer consideration of the
application in order that it would be provided with the figures of existing HMOs
and flats within the area, in light of concerns about potential prematurity in
relation to the draft LDP Plan Strategy.
LA04/2021/2144/F - Residential (social housing)
development comprising of 2no. Apartment buildings
containing 52no. apartments (housing mix of 5no.
3p/2b Wheelchair & 47no. 3p/2b CAT 1 apartments)
at 150 Knock Road. (Change of design to extant planning
permission ref: Z/2011/0426/F)
The Principal Planning officer provided the Committee with the key aspects of the
application.
The key issues which had been considered during the assessment of the proposal
included:










the principle of the proposed development and use at that location;
layout, scale, form, massing, and design;
impact on built heritage;
impact on amenity;
impact on transport and associated infrastructure;
flooding and drainage impacts;
impact on natural heritage assets;
contamination and remediation of the site; and
developer contributions.

The Committee was advised that the site fell within the development limit within the
BUAP and in both versions of dBMAP and was not subject to any zonings. The Principal
Planning officer explained that redevelopment of the site for residential use was acceptable
under the previously granted permission and that there had been no change in policy direction
since that time, subject to detailed considerations as set out in regional policies.
He explained that the proposed layout essentially repeated the previously approved
layout arrangements, comprising two blocks, one behind the other, with areas of landscaping
and parking. The front block siting had been revised from the previous permission and was

F1506

Page 179

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

within a more constrained footprint so that the block did not extend as close to the site frontage.
He outlined that the separation distances between the apartment blocks had been slightly
reduced to an average of 33 metres. The rear block was located further away from the rear
boundary compared to the previous approval by approximately 1.5 metres.
The Committee was advised that the layout did not include basement parking within
the layout, as previously approved. Parking court areas were proposed instead, resulting in
an increased area of hard-surfacing compared with the previous permission. He explained
that it roughly equated to the larger built form area of the buildings in the previous permission
and was acceptable.
The Members were advised that the front block had been reduced in height by
approximately 1 metre from the previous approval. The height of the rear block had also been
revised, with an overall reduction of approximately 1.9-2 metres from the highest section, but
with a slight increase of the lower section of 1.3 metres compared to the previously approved
details.
The Principal Planning officer reported that the proposal would not adversely impact
on the amenity of existing residents due to the separation distances to existing properties and
the layout which would ensure no adverse amenity impacts for prospective residents.
He explained that amenity space provision equated to 18 square metres per unit and the
overall open space provision exceeded the 10% requirement in PPS7 & PPS8. The site was
also in close proximity to public open space. The floorspace of the proposed apartments
was in accordance with the space standards as set out in PPS7.
Parking would be provided at a ratio of 1:1 which was slightly below parking standards.
However, Travel cards for a period of 3 years, in addition to a car club facility, were proposed
as part of the travel plan arrangement to mitigate against the deficit. DFI Roads had no
objections and the proposal was therefore considered compliant with relevant policies.
The Principal Planning officer explained that 35 objections had been received along
with one letter of support. The issues raised included height and positioning of the buildings,
impact on traffic, residential use was not appropriate given its proximity to the A55 in terms of
pollution from vehicle fumes and noise, health and safety impacts from the adjacent golf
course, it ignored the surrounding established environment, it was a major development for
which the developer had failed to consult stakeholders, it assumed use of Shandon Park Golf
Club land to enable the development to proceed and that it would destroy the existing
boundary treeline. The issues raised had been fully considered in the report.
The Principal Planning officer outlined that officers had met objectors from Shandon
Park Golf Club on 10th March, 2022. They had reiterated their objections at the meeting,
including the need for a ball catch fence.
The Chairperson welcomed Mr. H. Thompson, on behalf of Shandon Park Golf Club,
to the meeting.

F1507

Page 180

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

He advised the Committee that:
















the Golf Club had no objection to the development of the site for social
housing, rather, their objections focused on two main points:
 the positioning of the residential blocks and how the developer
intended to construct them without damaging the Club’s
property and the existing landscaping; and
 the boundary treatment which was proposed now that the
works had commenced and the developer had removed
the existing boundary trees and hedgerow;
the natural boundary to the south consisted of trees and hedgerow and
had been destroyed by the developer’s contractor, who, over the last
couple of months, had cleared everything inside the development site
including the Club’s property;
while the Club had been advised that that was a civil matter between the
parties, it was important to note that not only had the boundary been
destroyed but in doing so the developer had regraded the few metres of
Shandon land on the outside of the fence to enable the retaining walls to
be built;
the Club had written to the developer regarding the destruction of its land
and existing boundary and, in response, they had claimed that they would
be providing enhanced landscaping which was ludicrous as trees and
landscaping would take at least 20 years to mature;
he requested that the Committee would, if granting permission, condition
that the applicant would provide a ball-catcher fence 10-12 metres high to
provide protection whilst any new landscaping was maturing, similar
to another development at 55 Shandon Park whereby the developer had
been given planning approval subject to conditions to erect a ball-catcher
fence and semi-mature trees;
before the site was cleared, the thick boundary hedging on all sides was
very difficult to penetrate. The new development had now stripped this
significantly, not only on the south side but also the northern boundary
which sloped very steeply to a river which formed their joint boundary;
clearing the hedging had exposed the development to a slope of 9-10
metres high over a length of 15 metres. They believed that with the site
cleared of vegetation, it was only a matter of time before the ground
collapsed and blocked the watercourse; and
it was anticipated that the difficulties encountered by trespass, anti-social
behaviour and abuse that they experienced elsewhere, where the course
perimeter was weak, would be echoed here, if the planning approval did
not condition the erection of a substantial metal fence on all boundaries
rather than a timber post and board fence which would deteriorate in a
few years.

F1508

Page 181

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

The Chairperson then welcomed Mr. B. Owens, agent, Mr. P. Turley, Architect, and
Ms. A. Conway, Radius Housing, to the meeting. Together they advised the Committee that:










the apartments were for the active elderly/over 55s and 5 units for
wheelchair users;
they wanted to be a good neighbour and had offered to meet with the
objectors in respect of the boundary concerns raised, however, the extant
permission meant that there was a fallback position for the applicant and
that they were keen to commence with the development as quickly as
possible;
the design was not dissimilar to the previously approved plans and in fact
provided significant betterment with reduced building heights and greater
separation distances from the surrounding boundaries;
in relation to trees and boundaries, an independent tree impact
assessment had been submitted which identified a number of trees to be
removed due to health and safety and tree condition;
a landscaping plan had also been submitted which sought to complement
and supplement the retaining boundaries and included a number of semi
mature trees;
the area was in great need of social housing and that it was important to
note that those who would be moving into the newly built accommodation
for the over 55s would therefore free up family accommodation elsewhere
in the system; and
it was a vacant brownfield site and the project would bring regeneration of
£10 million.

A Member asked the officers if the request from the Golf Club for the requirement to
install a ball-stop fence could be included as part of any approval. In response, the Principal
Planning officer explained that it would not be appropriate to attach such a condition as the
health and safety issues was a matter for the golf club to ensure that golf balls did not stray
into adjacent land from their property. He sought to clarify that the application in respect of
55 Shandon Park which Mr. Thompson had cited had originally been submitted without a ball
stop fence and that subsequent plans had then included a fence. He advised the Committee
that it was not clear whether the applicant had volunteered to implement the fence as part of
the application but he confirmed that the fence had not been conditioned by officers.
In response to a further Member’s question, Mr. Owens advised the Committee that
the extant permission had permitted the applicant to clear the site within its original terms and
that they were happy to meet with Mr. Thompson and the Committee on site if that was
requested but that he did not feel that it should hold up the process.
A Member suggested that the Committee could defer the application to allow the
Committee to meet on site with the objectors and the applicant. A further Member stated that
it would be senseless to delay the application as there was an extant planning permission in
place for the site and that social housing was much needed in that area. He added that the
parties could meet to discuss the fence and boundary arrangements after the application had
been dealt with.

F1509

Page 182

Meeting of Planning Committee,
Tuesday, 15th March, 2022

The Committee granted approval to the application, with delegated authority given to
the Director of Planning and Building Control to grant permission subject to conditions and
to enter into a Section 76 Planning Agreement with the applicant to secure the green travel
measures.
LA04/2021/2780/F - Application under section 54 of the
Planning Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 in respect to
planning permission LA04/2018/1932/F (residential
development comprising units (47 dwellings, 40 apartments,
3 bungalows) and associated access, landscaping and play
park) to vary condition 9A (seeking to vary remediation
strategy to be implemented) on lands directly to the
South of Kilwee Business Park, Upper Dunmurry Lane
The Committee was advised that the application sought to vary conditions 9 and 10 of
planning permission LA04/2018/1932/F in order to amend the required remediation strategy
for the site.
Condition 9 had been successfully discharged under LA04/2019/1741/DC on
3rd September 2019. However, under the current variation of condition application, an
Updated Remediation Strategy had been submitted for consideration. The Updated Strategy
had updated the assessment of the site with respect to ground gas, concluding that special
gas protection measures were not required.
Environmental Health had been consulted and had offered no objections to the
variation of conditions 9 and 10, having recommended wording in respect of it.
The Committee granted approval to the application, subject to conditions and the
satisfactory conclusion of public re-consultation. Delegated authority was given to the Director
of Planning and Building Control to finalise the wording of conditions.

Deputy Chairperson

F1510

Page 183

This page is intentionally left blank

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 29th March, 2022
SPECIAL REMOTE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE
Members present:

Councillor Carson (Chairperson);
Councillors Groogan, Hanvey,
McMullan and O’Hara.

In attendance:

Ms. K. Bentley, Director of Planning and Building Control;
Mr. K. Sutherland, Planning Manager (Policy);
Mr. D. O’Kane, Principal Planning Officer;
Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor;
Mrs. S. Steele, Democratic Services Officer; and
Mrs. L. McLornan, Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies
No apologies for inability to attend were received.
Declarations of Interest
No declarations of interest were recorded.
Restricted Item
The information contained in the reports associated with the following
item is restricted in accordance with Part 1 of Schedule 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.
Resolved – That the Committee agrees to exclude the members of
the Press and public from the meeting during discussion of the items
as, due to the nature of the item, there would be a disclosure of exempt
information as described in Section 42(4) and Section 6 of the Local
Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.
Local Development Plan (LDP)
draft Plan Strategy (dPS) – Update
The Director of Planning and Building Control reminded the Committee that, at its
meeting held on 15th March, it had been provided with an overview of the documentation
which had been received from the Department for Infrastructure (DfI) and the proposed
work programme to address the requirements of the statutory Direction, which had
included detail regarding the potential process for the Council to formally adopt what
would be the first draft Plan Strategy to be brought forward under the new system.
She provided a further update in respect of the ongoing engagement with DfI and
NI Water and on independent legal advice which had been sought in relation to the
proposal for the additional policy developed in response to the DfI formal Direction.

F1511

Page 185

Special Meeting of Planning Committee,
Wednesday, 29th March, 2022

The Members were advised that it was proposed that the Planning Service would
continue to engage with both the DfI and NI Water, with the overall approach and work
programme being maintained. She reported that a meeting would be held between
Council officers and NI Water the following day. She advised that the Council’s
endorsement of the new policy would be sought at the Council meeting of 4th April,
subject to any significant additional issues being identified in discussions with the DfI and
NI Water in the interim.
After discussion, the Committee:
1. noted the contents of the correspondence received from the DfI;
2. noted the the update in respect of the ongoing engagement and advice
in respect of the approach to the progression of the plan to potential
adoption; and
3. agreed to continue in accordance with the programme approved by
Committee at its meeting on 15th March, 2022, subject to any additional
issues being identified in discussions with the DfI and NI Water in the
interim.

Chairperson

F1512

Page 186

Agenda Item 11
Climate and City Resilience Committee
Thursday, 10th March, 2022

MEETING OF THE CLIMATE AND CITY RESILIENCE COMMITTEE
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND
REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS
Members present: Councillor Baker (Chairperson);
Aldermen Dorrian and Rodgers; and
Councillors Brooks, Canavan, de Faoite,
Flynn, Gormley, Hanvey, Long, McCann,
McKeown, McLaughlin, Spratt and Walsh.
In attendance:

Mr. J. Tully, Strategic Director, City and Organisational Strategy;
Ms. D. Caldwell, Climate Commissioner;
Mr. J. Greer, Director of Economic Development;
Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor;
Mr. R. McLernon, Resilience Co-ordinator; and
Mr. J. Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies
Apologies for inability to attend were reported on behalf of The Deputy Lord Mayor,
Alderman Haire and Alderman Sandford.
Declarations of Interest
No Declarations of Interest were reported.
Overview of agreed Terms of Reference
The Committee noted the agreed Terms of Reference.
Climate actions – headline summary of business plan
The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update Members on the work
programme coordinated by the Belfast City Council Climate Unit
at both city and council level.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to note the contents of the climate
business plan, which includes workstreams at both council and
city level.

H1

Page 187

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022

3.0

Main report

3.1

The Climate Unit is a small team within Belfast City Council
currently comprising four staff. The Unit is in the process of being
restructured and expanded to replace the temporary roles in order
to deliver the city and council needs to address climate and
resilience as outlined in the Belfast Agenda and Resilience
Strategy. Once recruitment is completed, the team will comprise
the following posts:









Climate Commissioner,
Climate Programme Manager – Council,
Climate Programme Manager – City,
Adaptation and Resilience Advisor,
Green Economy Advisor,
Monitoring, Learning and Reporting Officer,
Project Support Officer – Climate, and
Project Support Assistant.

3.2

The initial focus of the Climate Unit was the development of the
Belfast Resilience Strategy, which was launched in December
2020 following approval by Council. In the same month the Belfast
Net Zero Carbon Roadmap and the Belfast One Million Trees
Programme were also publicly launched.

3.3

The Belfast Resilience Strategy set out a goal “to transition Belfast
to an inclusive, net-zero emissions, climate-resilient economy in
a generation” and identified three key areas of focus – Climate
adaptation and mitigation, Participation of children and young
people, and Connected net-zero emissions economy, along with
thirty projects that collectively would enhance city resilience.

3.4

Since then, the Climate Unit has been focused on coordination of
city and council structures, and the development of the city and
council climate plans, as well as delivering projects such as
Belfast One Million Trees and the VPACH project. The Unit is
responsible for two separate but related workstreams at City Level
and Council Level.
City Level
Governance structures
The Climate Commissioner co-chairs the Belfast Resilience and
Sustainability Board (with NIHE, the Utility Regulator and NI
Water) within the Belfast Community Planning Partnership
structure and the Climate Unit handles all coordination and
secretariat functions. The Board is responsible for delivering the
Belfast Resilience Strategy.

H2

Page 188

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022

The Climate Commissioner co-chairs the the Belfast Climate
Commission in partnership with QUB, as part of the PCAN (placebased climate action) Network with Leeds, Edinburgh and other
cities. The Climate Commission has set up a number of working
groups including Just Transition, Youth Working Group, Business
and Finance, Food, and Community Climate Action Working
Group. The Commission is co-chaired by Belfast City Council and
QUB.
The Resilience and Sustainability Board has typically been
responsible for citywide planning and delivery, while the
Commission provides advice and research, such as the Belfast
Net Zero Carbon Roadmap.
Projects
The Resilience Strategy is being delivered through 30 projects
(summarised in the Ambitions document). These are led by a
range of different institutions and include:













Green Port - Belfast Harbour is planning reach Net Zero
by 2030
Sustainable Urban Drainage - DfI is working to ensure
that Belfast has a network of sustainable drainage
systems in place to cope with the expected increase in
flood events and to cope with an expanding population.
Zero Emissions city bus fleet by 2030 - Translink is in the
process of decarbonising its entire bus fleet by 2030 via
H2 fuel cell and electric buses
Bolder Vision for Belfast - a blueprint for creating a
greener more accessible city centre;
Belfast One Million Trees Project - at both city and council
levels, working with a wide range of voluntary,
community, statutory and private partners including the
Woodland Trust, The Conservation Volunteers, the
National Trust, and Belfast Hills Partnership;
VPACH Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Project - has
examined the potential for residential charge points in
Belfast;
Training and skills for an inclusive low-carbon economy
– BCC has secured £220,000 to develop a Retrofit Skills
Academy;
Investment in existing NIHE stock - NIHE have an
investment programme that is retrofitting it’s existing
stock to make it more efficient and also making sure that
new builds are future proofed so that they don’t require
retrofitting in future;
Sustainable Tourism - Belfast is now ranked in the top 20
cities in the GDS (Global Destinations Sustainability)
Movement, the world’s leading benchmarking and
performance improvement programme for tourism

H3

Page 189

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022










destinations – the team provides support to Visit Belfast
in making annual submissions to the Index;
Belfast Stories - A Low Carbon Exemplar for the City, this
will be a landmark signature experience in the heart of our
city centre;
Developing a Hydrogen Ecosystem - city partners
including NI Water, Catagen, B9 Energy and Artemis are
investing to develop green hydrogen across energy,
waste, housing, water and transport sectors;
LDP – the statutory framework to enable an inclusive, net
zero, climate resilient transition – its core objectives are
to promote a green and active place and a smart
connected and resilient city;
Ulster University Architects of Change Project delivering a training programme to business leaders
across the region on strategies for smart cities, zero
emission buildings and neighbourhoods, due to launch
with a series of workshops in March 2022;
Linenquarter BID Sustainable District Project - working
collaboratively with city partners, the city’s first
‘Sustainable District’ bringing together business, the
public sector and the private sector to collaborate and
innovate on energy, water and waste efficiency,
decarbonisation and sustainable practices, to accelerate
the city’s transition to a climate-resilient economy,
includes the REACT festival which took place during
COP26.

The team is also responsible for reporting to the Carbon
Disclosure Project across a range of categories in relation to the
city’s emissions and climate plans – Belfast’s first submission
was made in 2021, with the city receiving a B grade.
Last year the Council signed up to the Race to Resilience, Race to
Zero, WWF One Planet City Challenge, the Real Play Coalition as
an Ambassador City, and the Glasgow Food and Climate Pledge.
The team also engages with numerous cities globally via
membership of city networks such as Core Cities, APSE Energy,
ICLEI, the Resilient Cities Network, and Eurocities, which has led
to involvement in projects and opportunities to learn from other
UK and international cities. Other work include:






Coordinating the Belfast City Council Yoursay
Engagement Platform sections which relate to Resilience
and Sustainability, the Belfast One Million Trees Project
and the Youth Climate Engagement process;
Supporting the development of a local delivery framework
for the Energy Strategy and Green Growth Strategy,
working with DAERA, DfE, SIB, Invest NI and three other
Councils;
Mainstreaming Climate/Environment in the Belfast
Agenda via the ongoing review process;
H4

Page 190

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022




Supporting and facilitating the development and delivery
of a portfolio of investable climate projects aligned to
international best practice to accelerate the transition to a
green economy; and
Leading the delivery of the Sustainable Futures work
under the ‘Reset for Growth’ report under the Inclusive
Growth Commission.

Council Level
Governance structures
The Belfast City Council Climate Plan Programme Board, which is
an officer Board established to guide the development of the BCC
Climate Plan. It is chaired by the Director of City and
Organisational Strategy.
There are a number of ongoing workstreams summarised below.













Coordinating of the BCC Climate Fund and coordination of
the project pipeline process, working closely with Physical
Programmes and City and Neighbourhood Services. The
fund is examining the feasibility of projects such as EV
infrastructure on the council estate, use of Solar PV,
development of a larger tree nursery following the
development of Grovelands tree nursery pilot, single use
plastic policy and a number of suggested pilot projects
primarily from Physical Programmes and City and
Neighbourhood Services.
Commissioning the Belfast City Council Environmental
Sustainability Review which completed in March 2021.
Developing the Belfast City Council Carbon Baseline,
Trajectory, and Energy Audit process, which will be
completed in March 2022.
Developing the draft Belfast City Council Adaptation Plan
through a co-design process throughout 2020 and 2021.
Developing the of Belfast City Council Climate Plan,
Climate Risk Assessment and Climate Investment Plan.
Membership of Sustainable NI, and the Local Government
Climate Action Network, which are networks of Local
Authorities in Northern Ireland established under DAERA
to promote cross council learning and collaboration.
Coordinating the Council’s involvement in COP26 and
subsequent city to city and network activity including links
to Greater Manchester, Liverpool Region and Dublin.
Coordinating responses to relevant consultations
including the DFE Energy Strategy, DAERA Green Growth
Strategy and DFI draft Flood Risk Management Plan 2021 –
2027.
Managing the delivery of the Horizon 2020 Upsurge Project,
in a partnership with QUB which is focused on bringing
unused land back into use at Lower Botanic Gardens for
H5

Page 191

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022








research, training and engagement purposes, with links to
satellite sites at BCC run community gardens and
allotments.
Supporting the integration of climate across council
functions such as the Physical Programmes capital project
pipeline, Neighbourhood Regeneration Fund, and support
for the Bolder Vision.
Coordination of climate training for Council officers, CMT
and Elected Members, working with Climate NI to deliver
Climate Emergency Training across Council.
Participating in the TRACE pilot to enable reporting,
assessment, aggregation and management of supply chain
emissions so we can use our procurement power in
support of climate commitments.
Supporting the establishment of a housing Retrofit
Delivery Hub to drive the retrofit agenda in Belfast.

4.0

Financial and Resource Implications

4.1

All activities are financed through previously approved internal
and external funding.

5.0

Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Implications

5.1

Any good relations or equality implications will be identified as
part of the Council’s screening process.”

The Committee noted the contents of the Climate Business Plan.
Update on Current Issues
The Committee noted the following report which provided an update in relation to the
progress to date to develop the Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with a
progress update on the Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor (DBEC)
and work on a development plan, strategy and action plan to
progress this work.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Members of the Committee are asked to:


Note the contents of this report and progress to date to
develop the Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor.

3.0

Main report

3.1

At its meeting on 9th June 2021, Members of the City Growth and
Regeneration Committee were provided with an update on
H6

Page 192

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022

progress to support the development of the Dublin-Belfast
Economic Corridor including proposals for work on a
development plan and governance structure involving business
and elected representatives. Members noted the progress to date
and endorsed the approach.
3.2

The DBEC group proceeded with the commissioning of a
development plan, strategy and action plan for the partnership.
Belfast City Council acted as lead partner on the tendering and
contract management of this work. The development plan is
progressing well. It is being supported by a working group of
officials from across the partnership. Activities include:








3.3

Review of successful corridors, including staffing,
funding, legal and governance structures including
powers and purpose, and successful initiatives or
projects carried out by the partners
Review of existing cross border structures/entities and
funding, legislative environment
Review of existing research and delivery in priority
sectors to identify gaps in provision/research, areas of
alignment and potential for collaboration
Identification of options to support the development of a
DBEC entity aligned with the partnership’s ambitions
including recommended governance, legal and operating
structures
Development of a detailed resource plan to support the
delivery of the DBEC entity including identification of
potential sources of funding.

To date, the delivery team has undertaken research in relation to
future governance, operational, legal and resourcing models for
the partnership. This has included a comparative analysis of other
corridors and consultations with existing cross border
institutions and relevant internal and external stakeholders.
The next steps for stage 1 include finalising consultations with
cross border bodies and preparing the implementation and
resourcing plan. Once approved the delivery team will proceed to
stage 2 of the project.
Since the previous update, the inaugural meeting of the Dublin
Belfast Political Oversight Group took place on 23rd November
2021 at City North Hotel, Dublin. The CEOs of the council partners
attended the meeting along with the three elected representatives
from each council. A Chair and Vice Chair of the group were
elected to serve a one-year term. The Chair is Councillor
Pete Byrne from Newry Mourne and Down District Council and the
Mayor of Fingal, Councillor Seána Ó Rodaigh, of Fingal County
Council was elected as Vice-Chair. The team delivering the
development plan used this session as an opportunity to
undertake a consultation workshop with elected representatives
and officials and this will feed into the development plan.

H7

Page 193

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022

3.4

It was previously decided to delay the convening of a business
advisory group until work on the development plan and strategy
has progressed. It is expected that the private sector will be
consulted as part of the current work.

3.5

The first stage of the research is being finalised and emerging
priorities are listed below,
-

-

The need for dedicated resourcing plan including a single
staff resource to drive the development of the corridor
and make applications for funding
The need for the creation of a standalone alone entity and
provision of associated annua budget
Agreement on key areas for policy co-operation – skills,
research and innovation, climate mitigation/action etc.

Next Steps

3.6

-

Proposal for resourcing and funding model for
consideration by CX and elected member advisory board

-

Appointment and in parallel funding applications to be
made to secure annual budget

Financial and Resource Implications
The work on the development plan will be resourced from the
2021/22 Enterprise and Business Growth budget.

3.7

Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Assessment
The unit is currently undertaking a process of equality screening
on the overall work programme, this will ensure consideration is
given to equality and good relation impacts throughout the
delivery of this project.”
Proposed areas of focus for future meetings
of the Climate and City Resilience Committee

The Committee considered the following report:
“1.0

Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues

1.1

The purpose of this report is to seek approval from Members on
the proposed areas of focus for discussion at future meetings of
the Climate and City Resilience Committee.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to approve the suggested topics and
agree those which should form the agenda for the forthcoming

H8

Page 194

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022

meetings of the Climate and City Resilience Committee. Members
may wish to suggest additional items for consideration.
3.0

Main report

3.1

It is proposed that the Committee undertake Climate Emergency
Training which will be delivered by Climate NI, working with
officers in the Climate Unit. Options for training include:

3.2

a)

Delivery by dedicating a future meeting of the Committee
(7th April for example) to a three-hour training session
which would be followed by individual work to complete
the full seven-hour training and receive accreditation.
This approach would support Belfast City Council being
accredited as a Climate Literate Organisation and would
show leadership as we seek to embed climate training
throughout the organisation.

b)

Delivery at two future Committee meetings so that all
content is delivered in by Climate NI within the Committee
meeting structure.

c)

Delivery through a session held outside of the existing
meeting schedule, however, we are mindful of Members
time and the challenge of finding time for such as
session.

It is proposed that the subsequent meetings of the committee
would focus on the following key areas:


An update on the Electric Vehicles Initiative (EVI) which
would be set in the context of the DFE coordinated NI
Energy Strategy, ongoing work on this topic by DFI, and the
work undertaken to date in Belfast through the VPACH
project;



The One Million Trees Programme;



The Council’s baseline emissions and results of the energy
review;



Climate Fund – update on pilot projects;



Bolder Vision;



Belfast Stories;



Housing retrofit and decarbonising heat in buildings;



Challenges and opportunities for collaboration through the
Shared Island Unit and Shared Prosperity Fund;



The Dublin Belfast Economic Corridor initiative;
H9

Page 195

Climate and City Resilience Committee,
Thursday, 10th March, 2022



Cyber Security arrangements in Belfast City Council and
wider considerations;



Port Health and Port checks legal position

4.0

Financial and Resource Implications

4.1

No financial or resource implications are anticipated at present.

5.0

Equality or Good Relations Implications/
Rural Needs Implications

5.1

Any good relations or equality implications will be identified as
part of the Council’s screening process.”

In response to a number of questions, the Strategic Director confirmed that there were
a number of items which fell within the remit of other Committees. However, where there
were specific areas of work relating to climate, reports would be submitted to this Committee
for consideration.
After discussion, the Committee adopted the recommendation and agreed to a
Member’s request that Prof. Ciaran White BL and Francis Costello be invited to a future to
address the Committee in relation to their research on the possibility of Northern Ireland
securing European Parliament and European Committee of the Regions elected
representation.

Chairperson

H10

Page 196

Agenda Item 12
Standards and Business Committee
Wednesday, 30th March, 2022

MEETING OF THE STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER AND
REMOTELY VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS
Members present: Councillor McCullough (Chairperson);
Aldermen Copeland; and
Councillors Black, Bunting, Canavan, Corr,
Gormley, T. Kelly, Lyons and Pankhurst.
In attendance:

Mr. J. Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer,
Ms. N. Largey, Divisional Solicitor,
Mrs G. Boyd, Democratic Services Officer.

Apologies
No apologies were reported.
Minutes
The minutes of the meeting of 22nd February were taken as read and signed as
correct. It was reported that those minutes had been adopted by the Council, at its meeting
on 1st March, subject to the omission of those matters which had been delegated to the
Committee.
Declarations of Interest
Councillor Pankhurst declared an interest in respect of item 2(b) Notice of Motion –
University Dispute – Industrial Action - that he was a PhD Candidate and employed by a
university and left the meeting whilst the item was under consideration.
Motions
The Committee considered a report in relation to Notices of Motion which had been
received for consideration by the Council at its meeting on 4th of April.
The Committee considered each motion in turn and agreed the following:
Graffiti Removal
That the motion in relation to the Graffiti Removal should be referred, in the first
instance, to the People and Communities Committee.

I . 21

Page 197

Standards and Business Committee,
Wednesday, 30th March, 2022

University Sector - Industrial Dispute
That the motion in relation to University Sector – Industrial Dispute, be referred to the
Council for debate, with no restrictions on the number of speakers.
City of Sanctuary
That the motion in relation to City of Sanctuary, be referred to the Council for debate,
with no restrictions on the number of speakers.

Chairperson

I . 22

Page 198

Agenda Item 13a
University Sector - Industrial Dispute
This Council acknowledges the contribution to civic and economic life made by both Queens
University Belfast and University of Ulster to the citizens of Belfast City. Belfast City Council
also notes the high standard of teaching and research carried out by staff at both
universities and the benefits made to the people of Belfast as an employer.
This Council is concerned at the current Industrial dispute taking place throughout the
university sector and in particular its detrimental impact upon the international reputation, civic
and economic contribution of Queens University Belfast and University of Ulster to the City.
This council is further concerned of the failure to resolve this dispute will mean staff will seek
employment outside the sector impacting upon quality of teaching and research and the local
and international standing as universities of excellence.
Belfast City Council is also concerned at the failure of Universities and Colleges Employers'
Association (UCEA), of which Queens University Belfast and University of Ulster are
members, in addressing the proposed 35% cut in the Universities Superannuation Scheme
payable to staff on retirement.
Belfast City Council is further concerned the Universities and Colleges Employer’s
Association appear to have no resolve in negotiating an amicable solution and is therefore
prolonging unnecessarily the industrial dispute.
Belfast City Council therefore calls upon both local University Vice Chancellors to use their
influence with the Universities and Colleges Employers' Association to resolve this dispute
and if required for call for an allocation from the sector’s reserves estimated at £46.8 billion to
be used to support the Universities Superannuation Scheme.
This Council asks the Lord Mayor to write to both Vice Chancellors expressing the views of
council and in particular the dispute to be resolved fairly and that Belfast City Council supports
the principle of adequate pensions for all employees on retirement.

Proposer: Councillor Heading
Seconder: Councillor Lyons

Page 199

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13b
City of Sanctuary
“That this Council supports Belfast City Council becoming a “Council of Sanctuary” and
supports the initiative to have Belfast recognised as a “City of Sanctuary”.
As a council we recognise that:
a) A “Council of Sanctuary” is a place that provides a welcome and safe place for asylum
seekers, refugees and migrants and supports the conditions that will allow people from these
backgrounds to feel safe, valued and included in Belfast.
b) We recognise as leaders we have a responsibility to receive and include new residents
with care and dignity.
c) This commitment to become a “Council of Sanctuary” does not seek to provide preferential
treatment to one community over another, instead it recognises that during the arrival,
settlement and integration journey, asylum seekers, refugees and migrants face many
challenges and that as city leaders we will play our part in working to build a culture of
welcome, equality and inclusion.
d) This council will work to implement a “City of Sanctuary” through our actions and policies,
through understanding the lived experience of communities that are new to Belfast and
through supporting our partners in the community and voluntary sectors.
The Council Resolves to:







Join a network of cities and towns which promote the inclusion and welfare of people
who are fleeing violence and persecution in their own countries and become a
recognised “Council of Sanctuary”
Continue to understand the lived experience of refugees, asylum seekers and migrants
living in Belfast
Continue to work with organisations in the city who support refugees, asylum seekers
and migrants
Challenge anti-refugee and anti-migrant attitudes wherever they are found
Ensure equality in the provision of our services and facilities and that public spaces
can be accessed and enjoyed by everyone
Develop an internal Race Equality and Diversity Action Plan – that will review how we
deliver our services and take action as an employer to create a diverse workforce.”

Proposer: Councillor Kyle
Seconder: Councillor McMullan

Page 201

This page is intentionally left blank

